Public Document Pack
Agenda for Cabinet
Thursday, 8th October, 2020, 3.00 pm
Members of Cabinet
Councillors M Armstrong, P Arnott (Chairman), P Hayward
(Vice-Chairman), J Bailey, G Jung, D Ledger,
P Millar, M Rixson, J Rowland and J Loudoun

Venue:

Online via the Zoom app

East Devon District Council
Blackdown House
Border Road
Heathpark Industrial Estate
Honiton
EX14 1EJ
DX 48808 HONITON

Contact:

Amanda Coombes, Democratic Services
Officer 01395 517543 or email
acoombes@eastdevon.gov.uk

Tel: 01404 515616
www.eastdevon.gov.uk

(or group number 01395 517546)
Tuesday, 6 October 2020
Important - this meeting will be conducted online and recorded by Zoom only.
Please do not attend Blackdown House.
Members are asked to follow the Protocol for Remote Meetings
This meeting is being recorded by EDDC for subsequent publication on the Council’s
website and will be streamed live to the Council’s Youtube Channel at
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCmNHQruge3LVI4hcgRnbwBw
Public speakers are now required to register to speak – for more information please use
the following link: https://eastdevon.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/have-your-say-atmeetings/all-other-virtual-public-meetings/#article-content
1

Public speaking
Information on public speaking is available online

2

Minutes of the previous meeting held on 30 September 2020 (Pages 4 - 14)

3

Apologies

4

Declarations of interest
Guidance is available online to Councillors and co-opted members on making
declarations of interest

Mark Williams, Chief Executive

page 1

5

Late items
Late items have been submitted and included on the agenda with the approval
of the Leader.
These are:
 Financial Strategy 2021 – 2031, listed under item 7
 Revenue and Capital Outturn Report 2019 – 2020, listed under item 8
 Financial Monitoring Report 2020/21,listed under item 9
 Test and Trace Support Payment Scheme report, listed under item 10
 Member Champions, listed under item 11
 Complaints to the Ombudsman during 2019/20, listed under item 12
 Protocol for Members Advisory Panels on Planning Matters update, listed
under item 13
 Leader's annual report on urgent executive decisions, listed under item 14
 Acquisition of Ocean Blue, The Esplanade, Exmouth - Process followed
and business case for acquisition, listed under item 15
 Newton Poppleford & Harpford Neighbourhood Plan Examiner’s report,
listed under item 16.

6

Confidential/exempt item(s)
To agree any items to be dealt with after the public (including the Press) have
been excluded. There are no items which officers recommend should be dealt
with in this way.

Matters for Decision
7

Financial Strategy 2021 - 2031 (Pages 15 - 36)

8

Revenue and Capital Outturn Report 2019 - 2020 (Pages 37 - 45)
During 2019/20 budget monitoring reports have informed members of budget
variations and the anticipated year-end financial position. This report contains
the final position for the year and compares this outturn position against the
budgets set.

9

Financial Monitoring Report 2020/21 (Pages 46 - 51)
This report gives a summary of the Council’s overall financial position for
2020/21 at the end of month five (31 August 2020).

10

Test and Trace Support Payment Scheme (Pages 52 - 94)
Test and Trace Support Payments have been introduced by Central
Government to encourage people on low incomes who will be financially
impacted to self-isolate when they are required to do so. This in turn will help
reduce the transmission of Covid-19 and avoid further social and economic
restrictions.

11

Member Champions (Pages 95 - 101)
For members to consider the possibility of the reintroduction of a small number
of Member Champions.

page 2

12

Complaints to the Ombudsman during 2019/20 (Pages 102 - 108)
This report provides information on complaints referred to and decided by the
Local Government and Housing Ombudsman during 2019/20.

13

Protocol for Members Advisory Panels on Planning Matters update (Pages
109 - 113)
The report seeks to review the protocol for Members Advisory Panels on
planning matters to ensure that the protocol is up to date and reflects good
practice.

14

Leader's annual report on urgent executive decisions
There were no urgent key decisions taken in the last year.

15

Acquisition of Ocean Blue, The Esplanade, Exmouth - Process followed
and business case for acquisition (Pages 114 - 121)

16

Newton Poppleford & Harpford Neighbourhood Plan Examiner's Report
(Pages 122 - 134)

Decision making and equalities

For a copy of this agenda in large print, please contact the Democratic
Services Team on 01395 517546

page 3

Agenda Item 2
EAST DEVON DISTRICT COUNCIL
Minutes of the meeting of Cabinet held at Online via the Zoom App on 30
September 2020
Attendance list at end of document
The meeting started at 6.00 pm and ended at 9.10 pm
196

Public speaking
Sophie Martin had submitted a question, asking how many individuals have been issued
with a Section 59 Police Reform Act 2002 warning notice in 2019/2020 in Exmouth and
how have EDDC followed up with persistent offenders who continue to race up and down
Queen’s Drive and around Exmouth Town persistently. She also asked if the recently
installed CCTV has been effective, as she believed the purpose of it was to help identify
potential offences. She outlined how the attractions and potential of the town were
blighted by the ongoing problem of antisocial behaviour resulting from cars speeding in
the town.
In response, the issue was recognised as a police matter for enforcement, but that the
Local Action Group, set up under the umbrella of the Community Safety Partnership,
continued to work to resolve the perennial problem. A highway barrier had been
considered by the County Council in previous years, but was not considered viable.
Data has been requested from the Police, and agreement was made to write to Sophie
Martin, outlining the background of the work of the Community Safety Partnership in
dealing with this issue and the enforcement data; and for the Chief Executive to ensure
our Community Safety Officer raised the matter with the Police and liaise with Exmouth
Police Inspector, Antonia Weekes in that regard.

197

Minutes of the previous meeting
The minutes of Cabinet held on 21 July 2020 were confirmed as a true record.

198

Declarations of interest
Minute 205 Minutes of the Overview Committee 24 September 2020.
Councillor Andrew Moulding, Personal, Patron of Arc.
Minute 205 Minutes of the Overview Committee 24 September 2020.
Councillor Ian Hall, Personal, Devon County Councillor and Mental Health Champion,
Vice-Chairman of the Trustees of Arc, Chair of Cloakham Lawns Sports Centre.
Minute 207 Exeter and East Devon Enterprise Zone.
Councillor Paul Hayward, Personal, Director of Science Park Ltd.

199

Confidential/exempt item(s)
There were no items identified.

200

Forward Plan

page 4

Cabinet 30 September 2020

Members agreed the contents of the Forward Plan for key decisions for the period
1 October 2020 to 31 January 2021.
201

Minutes of Scrutiny Committee held on 21 May 2020
Members received and noted the Minutes of Scrutiny Committee held on 21 May 2020.

202

Minutes of Community Grant Panel held on 1 September 2020
Members received and noted the Minutes of Community Grant Panel held on
1 September 2020.
RESOLVED that the following recommendations be agreed:
Minute 25 Crowdfund East Devon - Budleigh Salterton Community Workshop
Bid
a maximum grant of £4,867 be made towards the project from the Crowdfund East
Devon pledge.
Minute 26 Crowdfund East Devon - Coleridge Memorial Statue Bid
a maximum grant of £5,160 be made towards the project from the Crowdfund East
Devon pledge.

203

Minutes of Strata Joint Scrutiny Committee held on 8 September
2020
Members received and noted the Minutes of Strata Joint Scrutiny Committee held on 8
September 2020.

204

Minutes of Budget Setting and Capital Allocation Panel held on 16
September 2020
Members received and noted the Minutes of Budget Setting and Capital Allocation Panel
held on 16 September 2020.
RESOLVED that the following recommendations be agreed:
Minute 5 Draft Financial Strategy 2021 – 2031
1. the debate by the Budget Setting and Capital Allocations Panel on the Draft
Financial Strategy 2021 – 2031 is taken into account prior to the strategy being
presented to Council;
2. a Task and Finish Forum be set up on the topic of Commercialisation, to
include specifically the issue of asset transfer to town and parish councils in
conjunction with the Asset Management Forum. The Forum to consist of ten
members, politically balanced. In the event that political cannot be achieved, to
reapportion seats as appropriate.

205

Minutes of the Overview Committee 24 September 2020
page 5

Cabinet 30 September 2020

The minutes of the Overview Committee of 24 September 2020 were submitted as a late
item with agreement of the Leader.
Members received and noted the minutes of the Overview Committee of 24 September.
Discussion on Minute 64 (relating to Local Authority Mental Health Challenge and the
Healthy Weight Declaration) included:




Need for supporting staff and councillors with poor mental health
Clarity on the role being recommended by the Overview Committee, to establish if the
desire was to sign up to the declaration or to go further in providing a form of mental
health service;
Complexity of the subject matter for one officer to cover was questioned, with warnings of
the possible ramifications if incorrect advice was given.

RESOLVED that Cabinet note and thank the Overview Committee for its work and
recommendations; and instruct the Strategic Lead for Housing, Health and Environment
to prepare a report to be brought to the next Cabinet to consider the recommendations
and cost/resourcing implications, with a view to signing the Local Authority Mental Health
Declaration.

206

Minutes of the Housing Review Board 17 September 2020
The minutes of the Housing Review Board of 17 September 2020 were submitted as a
late item with agreement of the Leader.
Members received and noted the Minutes of the Housing Review Board of 17 September
2020.
RESOLVED that the following recommendations be agreed:
Minute 72 Advantage South West - renewal of subscription
that the Council continue paying the annual subscription to maintain the membership to
Advantage South West.
Minute 73 Air source heat pumps
Approve the continued use and installation of air source heat pumps as a viable carbon efficient
alternative to conventional boilers.
Minute 75 Climate change action plan
1. Members agree to the climate strategy actions detailed in the report.
2. Members endorse the cultural shift required to move to a carbon neutral housing service
within 20 years.
1. Approval is given for the need for an additional Programme Works Officer who will focus
on energy efficiency measures and drive forward the programme for improvements to the
housing stock, with additional funding being designated from the Housing Revenue
Account.
page 6

Cabinet 30 September 2020

Minute 78 Finance report to end August 2020
Agree the budget reallocations within the report, note the impact assessments and
approve the report on the Housing Revenue Account financial position to end of August
2020.
Minute 79 Stock condition survey

Approve the delivery of the stock condition survey by an external consultant sourced
through an approved procurement framework.
Minute 80 Formal complaints

1. that the Housing Leadership Team re-iterate the importance of outstanding
customer care, considering additional training and awareness opportunities where
appropriate.
2. that the Housing Operational Managers group reviews processes to ensure they
are effectively co-ordinating responses and updates on formal complaints and
councillor enquiries raised with them.
3. that the Housing Services Manager works with the council’s Information and
Complaints Officer, and customers on the Designated Tenant Complaints Panel,
to self-assess against the ombudsman’s new code by 31 December 2020.
4. that the Housing Services Manager ensures that better communication is given
from Housing Officers in responding to queries from tenants to effectively manage
expectations of customers.
Minute 81 Sailor's Rest, Exmouth - allocations and management

Approve the policy to provide support and clarity to the allocation and management
process for the flats at 18A and 18B St. Andrews Road, Exmouth, whilst they are being
used as move on accommodation.
Minute 82 Structure of the housing service

RECOMMENDED:
1. that Cabinet note the changes to the structure and approve the need for the recruitment
of a specialist Mental Health Support Officer to work within the housing services team.
2. that Cabinet approve additional funding (£37,500 – Grade 6 with associated costs) is
designated from the Housing Revenue Account.

207

Exeter & East Devon Enterprise Zone
The Enterprise Zone Programme Manager provided an update on the financial position
with regard to the Enterprise Zone (EZ) programme which sought approval for additional
borrowing against future ring-fenced business rate income. The additional borrowing
would allow further investment in enabling the delivery of new commercial space and
jobs in the Enterprise Zone, supporting recovery from
Covid-19 and providing opportunities for clean and inclusive growth.
In response to a question on the Covid-19 Economy and Business Recovery Prospectus,
it was confirmed that a further report was set to go before Cabinet in October on the
plan.
RESOLVED that Cabinet:
1. Notes the progress made within the Enterprise Zone designation
2. Agrees the principle of a £1m fund to enable the continuation of an Enterprise
Zone Business Rate Relief programme
page 7

Cabinet 30 September 2020

3. Receives further papers setting out detailed investment proposals.
RECOMMENDED to Council
4. That it agrees the principle of increasing borrowing up to £20m against ring fenced
business rate income to fund the delivery of capital projects.
REASON
Cabinet last received a paper on the financial position of the EZ in March 2019. During
the intervening period, work had focused on gaining approval for projects that support
the delivery of the EZ, in terms of overcoming identified barriers and bringing forward
catalytic investments that could increase the pace of delivery for new commercial space
and jobs.
208

COVID-19 Recovery planning
The Service Lead Countryside and Leisure outlined the work that had and was being
progressed to produce a cohesive approach to East Devon DC’s recovery planning as
the district emerges from the Response stage of Covid-19. The report aimed to give
Cabinet reassurance that the Recovery planning work had followed best practice
guidance from the Devon Emergency Planning Partnership (DEPP) in terms of process
and documentation. The Council had been fully engaged with Team Devon’s strategic
recovery planning work through participation in various sub groups such as the Devon
Recovery Co-ordination Group and the Economy and Business Recovery group.
The Leader expressed his thanks to officers for their efforts during the pandemic, with
specific thanks to the Chief Executive in regard to his report to Team Devon earlier that
day.
Other Members voiced their thanks and admiration for the achievements across the
services by officers in difficult circumstances, dealing with vastly increased workloads.
The Portfolio Holder for Finance led a short applause by the Cabinet and Members to
show their appreciation.
RESOLVED that Cabinet:
1. Approved the Service recovery planning process and supports the work of council
officers providing leadership and support to the Council’s recovery work.
2. Noted that officers of East Devon District Council were leading the work on the
Service Recovery Action Plan and would continue to provide support to progress
the individual work streams.
3. Continued to support and participate in the engagement of Devon CC’s strategic
recovery co-ordination work through Officers membership of its thematic sub
groups.
REASON
To ensure that East Devon District Council could continue to co-ordinate its recovery
planning work with its internal services and to participate fully with Team Devon’s
strategic recovery planning work. This would enable a continuation of current recovery
planning work and so retain a cohesive approach to its Service Recovery Action Plan
going forward whilst uncertainty still remains over the likelihood and impacts of further
spikes of the pandemic. Other recovery plans had been produced at a strategic level
such as Team Devon’s Economy & Business Recovery Plan but these were not placepage 8

Cabinet 30 September 2020

based and sufficiently fine-grained as to be effective at district level. There were and
would continue to be issues and themes that were best progressed at this strategic level
and so the Council’s alignment with these recovery plans would be important. The focus
for this Council had been working on its own internal recovery arrangements.
209

Towards Zero Carbon Development in the West End
Henry Gent had submitted two questions on this report prior to the meeting.
Question 1: CO2 emissions from energy from waste
A recent report provided several estimates for the CO2 emissions from waste
incinerators. The average figure is 800 g CO2/KWhe. Table 3 in the report from UKWIN
(below) provides several examples of different estimates.
UKWIN-2018-Incineration-Climate-Change-Report.pdf
What is the figure used by WSP in the feasibility study when calculating the CO2
emissions by the proposed EfW Hill Barton power station in g CO2/kWhe ?
Answer
WSP (consultants) has not used a figure for emissions from the process of waste
incineration in this report.
Referring to DCC approved planning application, the Portfolio Holder for Coast, Country
and Environment read out the Council’s environment officer submission to the
application, which covered the extensive gas cleaning system to be incorporated in the
efW plant and the ongoing maintenance and monitoring.
The Portfolio Holder stated he would research further information on emissions and
respond to Mr Gent directly.

Question 2: proportion of feedstock that will be fossil fuel based products
Of the waste feedstock to be burned at the EfW Hill Barton CHP station, what proportion
will be fossil fuel based products?
Answer
The County Council acts as the Waste Disposal Authority and hence it determined the
planning application for the EfW plant at Hill Barton. The following is an extract from the
relevant officer report;
“The energy generation process will utilise fibre fuel derived from commercial and
industrial waste, commonly known as Refuse Derived Fuel (RDF). This fuel is typically
composed of plastics, composites, textiles, and small amounts of wood, paper &
cardboard, and is the residual material remaining after recyclable materials, metals and
inert materials have been removed from the waste received at transfer stations and
material recycling facilities such as the EMS facility at Hill Barton.”
The Service Lead Growth, Development and Prosperity set out the key issues
associated with achieving large scale zero carbon development in the West End of the
District. He provided an overview of the results of a recently completed feasibility study
and sought endorsement for the principle of submitting a funding application to the Heat
Network Investment Programme.
In response to a question about burning plastics, the Portfolio Holder for Coast, Country
and Environment outlined how filtering systems within the stack of a plant deal with
gases given off through burning, with checks by the Environment Agency to ensure these
are fully operational. He also added that he would like to see some flexibility to review
page 9

Cabinet 30 September 2020

any new technology in the field reviewed, as and when it arose, because of the
timescales of delivery.
RESOLVED that Cabinet:
1. Noted the findings of the feasibility study and the key issues associated with
achieving zero carbon development at Cranbrook and Skypark.
2. Endorsed the principle of submitting a funding bid to the Heat Network Investment
Programme.
3. Received a further report setting out a proposal for the role that Council could play
in enabling the delivery of zero carbon development including the investment
case.
REASON
To ensure that there was a clear pathway for achieving large scale zero carbon
development in the West End of the District.
210

Nature Recovery Networks & Re-Wilding projects
Mr Ed Dolphin read out a statement, in which h welcomed and complimented the report
confirming the wide recognition that our natural environment is degrading rapidly and
there is a need for action. He felt that some aspects of the plan for re-wilding can be
controversial, especially in urban settings, grass cutting being one theme to recent
stories and letters in the Sidmouth Herald. The experimental regime needs refinement,
but many objections are based on misconceptions, which is recognised in the report,
recommending a campaign of public engagement and enlightenment. He highlighted
that he works with a number of environmental groups and organisations and our natural
environment is in crisis, the decline of insect populations being one of the most
significant problems confronting us. EDDC’s Nature Recovery Networks & Re-wilding
Projects can make an important contribution to biodiversity in East Devon, and he
commended the report to the Cabinet.
The Strategic Lead Housing, Health and Environment presented his report that promoted
the wider coverage of nature recovery networks and re-wilding projects, building on the
work undertaken already in some of the district’s green spaces. It took the form of a
review document with a series of recommendations to form a policy on nature recovery
networks and re-wilding activity. The report built on the priorities and objectives set out in
the Green Space Plan and was consistent with the council’s corporate outstanding
environment theme. The report looked at national guidance and considers definitions and
existing projects. The initiative advances a commitment in the Climate Change Strategy
and stated objectives in several Service Plans.
Tree planting was raised as an issue for inclusion in the recommendation, but agreement
was reached that this would be included in a specific report on the work required to
deliver this action from the Climate Change Strategy.
Members spoke about the need to address factors such as the extreme decline in insect
species, including a statement about the Woodbury Wide Awake festival that built on
wildflower surveys in that area.
Concern was raised about planting areas set out in new developments as a requirement
of the planning conditions, which were subsequently removed or impacted by the owners
page 10

Cabinet 30 September 2020

of the newly built properties. An example was given of trees without Tree Preservation
Orders being removed from a development in Exmouth.
RESOLVED that Cabinet:
To progress the Climate Change Strategy and Service Plan commitments on nature
recovery and re-wilding;
1. extend coverage of nature recovery networks and rewilding projects, carefully
defining EDDC aspirations;
2. work through the green spaces identified in the Green Space Plan and assess
whether they were suitable for recovery/re-wilding;
3. identify a suitable re-wilding site in every East Devon town as an exemplar
within a year;
4. identify areas of Housing land suitable for nature recovery and/or re-wilding
and consult with tenants with proposals;
5. map and record areas identified for recovery/re-wilding and monitor the
benefits arising from the process;
6. establish an improved understanding of the position of fauna and flora species
in the district;
7. establish a campaign to promote the benefits of rewilding in a range of
settings; and
8. establish a project group, adopt the guiding principles, and specify what
constitutes re-wilding and how this can be achieved in the district.
REASON
To progress ambitions in the Climate Change Strategy, Green Space Plan, and Service
Plans aimed at achieving improved biodiversity and natural habitats through re-wilding
and implementing nature recovery corridors.
211

Exeter Airport
The Service Lead Growth, Development and Prosperity provided an overview of the
impact of the Covid-19 pandemic on the operation of Exeter Airport and set out a
proposed package of support. This provided a response to a request for business rate
relief and sought approval for additional funds to be made available through the
Enterprise Zone programme to enable the Long Lane enhancement scheme to progress.
The potential to bid to the forthcoming Free Port programme was highlighted as well as
the potential to develop a sustainable aviation cluster centred on the Airport.
In response to a query on protecting the Council’s investment, the Service Lead
confirmed that the Airport are willing to enter in negotiations to conclude the terms of a
funding agreement with security provided in the form of a Parent Company Guarantee.
Discussion took place on encouraging all local MPs to pursue the proposal from MP
Simon Jupp for introducing business rates relief for airports on a national basis. Other
nearby airports such as Bournemouth also had no current rate relief, as opposed to the
approach in Scotland of providing a one year business rate holiday for all airports.
Members were asked to use their best endeavours to lobby MPs to help secure action on
rate relief on a national stage. The Strategic Lead for Finance confirmed that, if
forthcoming, this would overwrite the local rate releief that was being put forward in the
report.

page 11

Cabinet 30 September 2020

The issue of the impact of heavy goods traffic outside of the Long Lane scheme would
be taken up with the County Council.
RESOLVED that Cabinet:
1. Note the significant impact of the Covid-19 pandemic on the operation of the
Airport,
2. Supported the proposed business rate relief request within State Aid limits to be
funded through the Enterprise Zone programme,
3. Endorsed increasing the budget for the Long Lane project by £1.1m,
4. Granted delegated authority to the Chief Executive in consultation with the
Leader, Deputy Leader and Portfolio Holder for Finance to agree the terms of and
complete the funding agreements and any other necessary legal documentation to
achieve the above recommendations,
5. Noted the potential for an application to be submitted for Freeport status and to
receive a further report on these proposals before any bid was submitted,
6. Endorsed the concept of a sustainable aviation cluster centred on Exeter Airport
and received a further report on how this concept could come forward.
RECOMMENDED to Council:
7. The borrowing of up to £3.7m against ring fenced business rate income to
implement the scheme.
REASON:
To ensure that there was a package of support in place for the Airport to help counteract
the impact of the lockdown, promote recovery and chart a course to a more sustainable
future.
212

Deferred items to next Cabinet
The Leader, with the agreement of the Cabinet, deferred the following items to the next
meeting of the Cabinet:
 Financial Strategy 2021 – 2031
 Revenue and Capital Outturn Report 2019 – 2020
 Financial Monitoring Report 2020/21
 Member Champions
 Complaints to the Ombudsman during 2019/20
 Protocol for Members Advisory Panels on Planning Matters update
 Leader’s annual report on urgent executive decisions
 Acquisition of Ocean Blue, The Esplanade, Exmouth – Process Followed and
Business Case for Acquisition

Attendance List
Present:
Portfolio Holders
M Armstrong
P Arnott
P Hayward
J Bailey
G Jung

Portfolio Holder Sustainable Homes and Communities
Leader
Deputy Leader and Portfolio Holder Economy and Assets
Portfolio Holder Corporate Services and COVID-19
Response and Recovery
Portfolio Holder Coast, Country and Environment
page 12

Cabinet 30 September 2020

P Millar
M Rixson
J Rowland
J Loudoun

Cabinet apologies:
D Ledger

Portfolio Holder Democracy and Transparency
Portfolio Holder Climate Action
Portfolio Holder Finance
Portfolio Holder Policy Co-ordination and Regional
Engagement

Portfolio Holder Strategic Planning

Also present (for some or all the meeting)
Councillor Mike Allen
Councillor Denise Bickley
Councillor Susie Bond
Councillor Colin Brown
Councillor Maddy Chapman
Councillor Olly Davey
Councillor Alan Dent
Councillor Peter Faithfull
Councillor Steve Gazzard
Councillor Ian Hall
Councillor Sam Hawkins
Councillor Nick Hookway
Councillor Sarah Jackson
Councillor Paul Jarvis
Councillor Vicky Johns
Councillor Kathy McLauchlan
Councillor Helen Parr
Councillor Geoff Pook
Councillor Geoff Pratt
Councillor Val Ranger
Councillor Eleanor Rylance
Councillor Brenda Taylor
Councillor Joe Whibley
Councillor Tom Wright
Also present:
Officers:
Tim Child, Service Lead - Place, Assets & Commercialisation
Simon Davey, Strategic Lead Finance
Ed Freeman, Service Lead Strategic Planning and Development Management
John Golding, Strategic Lead Housing, Health and Environment
Naomi Harnett, Principal Projects Manager East Of Exeter
Susan Howl, Democratic Services Manager
Debbie Meakin, Democratic Services Officer
Charles Plowden, Service Lead Countryside and Leisure
John Symes, Finance Manager
Anita Williams, Principal Solicitor (and Deputy Monitoring Officer)
Mark Williams, Chief Executive
Andrew Wood, Service Lead - Growth Development and Prosperity

page 13

Cabinet 30 September 2020

Chairman

Date:

page 14

Agenda Item 7
Report to:

Cabinet

Date of Meeting 30 September 2020
Document classification: Part A Public Document
Exemption applied: None
Review date for release N/A
Financial Plan (2021 – 2031)
Report summary:
Attached is the draft Financial Plan (2021-2031) for members to consider.

Recommendation:
1. That Cabinet recommend to Council approval of the Financial Plan (2021-2031).
2. Members consider the minutes of the Budget Strategy and Capital Allocation Panel and
endorse or otherwise the steer being given to address the projected budget shortfall outlined in the
Financial Plan.

Reason for recommendation:
It is good practice in managing the finances of the Council to produce a Financial Plan looking at
the future direction of the Council’s budgets.
To consider the implications of spending plans and the level of resources likely to be available. It
is only by looking at the Council’s budget over a longer period, that action can be taken that will
influence the direction and shape of future service delivery within a balanced budget.

Officer: Simon Davey, Strategic Lead Finance sdavey@eastdevon.gov.uk 01395 517490
Portfolio(s) (check which apply):
☐ Climate Action
☐ Corporate Services and COVID-19 Response and Recovery
☐ Democracy and Transparency
☐ Economy and Assets
☐ Coast, Country and Environment
☒ Finance
☐ Strategic Planning
☐ Sustainable Homes and Communities
Financial implications:
Detailed in the Plan attached

page 15

Legal implications:
There are no legal implication requiring comment
Equalities impact Low Impact
Although this may lead to separate reports to cabinet which could have an impact which can be
accessed at the time.
Climate change Low Impact
Risk: Although this may lead to separate reports to cabinet which could have an impact which can
be accessed at the time.
Links to background information
Link to Council Plan:
Priorities (check which apply)
☒ Outstanding Place and Environment
☒ Outstanding Homes and Communities
☒ Outstanding Economic Growth, Productivity, and Prosperity
☒ Outstanding Council and Council Services

page 16

Financial Plan (2021 -2031)

page 17

1. About this Plan
Our Financial Plan considers the General Fund 1 position and the Capital Programme 2,
the third area of the Council’s finances the Housing Revenue Account 3 is reviewed and
monitored within its own 30 year Business Plan.
The purpose of this Plan is to define how the Council will structure and manage its
finances over the next ten years in order to deliver services to residents and support the
objectives detailed within the Council Plan.
The Financial Plan also links with other key plans and documents of the Council
including Service Plans, Treasury Management Strategy and input from the Budget
Setting and Capital Allocations Panel (Member Group) and the Council’s Senior
Management Team.
The Financial Plan requires the preparation of an annual Medium Term Financial Plan
Model (MTFP) and is an essential part of the budget setting process. The MTFP
provides a financial model and forecast of the cost of providing services over a rolling
ten-year period, together with an estimate of the financial resources that are likely to be
available to the Council. The process is designed to provide an early warning of any
potential deficit in the required level of resources.
As well as considering the General Fund, the MTFP also reviews the affordability of the
Council’s capital investment programme, matching its forecast potential available
funding against planned capital spending over a five year horizon.
The development of a ten-year financial model is based upon a number of assumptions
and perceived risks which clearly become more difficult to predict as the period covered
lengthens. However, as a broad principle the model has been developed on the basis of
‘reasonable and prudent’ forecasts and assumptions in accordance with sound
accounting practice.
2. Fundamental principles
Underpinning this plan, the following fundamental principles have been adopted by the
Council:
• To secure the financial stability of the Council as we continue to respond and
recover from the Pandemic.
• Annually, a balanced revenue budget will be set with expenditure to be limited by
the amount of available resources.
•

The General Fund balance will be maintained at the adopted level.

1. The General Fund records day to day spending on the delivery of Council services 2. Capital Programme spending relates
to the purchase or enhancement of assets, expenditure that has a benefit greater than a year. 3. Housing Revenue Account
records spending on Council Housing and its landlord function.

2
page 18

• If required to balance the budget resources will be redirected from low to high
priority services to meet objectives set out in the Council Plan.
• Council Tax increases will be kept within annually announced government
guidelines to ensure a local referendum is not triggered.
In considering the capital budget, the Council will continue to follow the methodology of
scheme scoring and prioritisation. The Council will also seek to maximise the use of its
assets.
3. Financial background
Of recent years the most significant impacts on the Council’s finances came from the
Comprehensive Spending Review in 2010 and following Spending Reviews where the
Government cut local authorities funding to tackle the financial crisis at the time.
The Council has seen a reduction in Government funding of 60p in the pound.
The MTFP has the added pressure of inflationary increases, continued low investment
income, an increasing call on services, members’ ambitions to enhance and improve
services, a new commitment to a carbon reduction programme and the wish to keep to
moderate increases in fees and charges.
These factors have shaped the finances of the Council over recent years and placed it
in a continuing difficult position of setting balanced budgets.
The Council has a good track record of delivering balanced budgets, meeting its
spending plans and Council Plan outcomes through careful financial management and
planning ahead. Careful decisions have been taken where service savings have been
made, initiatives taken in the areas of; asset management, shared service provision,
systems thinking principles, the persuasion of customers to use more convenient and
cost effective means of transacting with the Council, procurement efficiencies and
income generation. These initiatives have been implemented with the overall arching
principle to protect front line services to the public.
The Council has facilitated and encouraged business and housing growth in the district
to deliver its ambitions and benefited in additional government funding through New
Homes Bonus and extra Business Rate income.
A balanced budget was agreed by Council for 2020/21 despite a projected gap of £0.7m
for the year alone, this was achieved as in prior years by following the themes originally
contained in the Council’s Transformation Strategy and then further refined to 3 key
areas:
 Fit for purpose
 Commercialisation
 Careful Choices

3
page 19

There is now a new and significant risk to the financial stability of all Councils through
the impact of Covid-19; for this Council this has seen in year unbudgeted costs and a
significant decline in income obtained from customer receipts along with a reduction in
the collection of business rates and council tax. The continuation of these financial risks
are reflected in this Financial Strategy as we look forward.
It is time to reflect going forward on the right approach to balance the Council’s budget
determined by a new Council Leadership and dealing with and recovery from Covid-19.

4. Medium Term Financial Plan
The base for the MTFP is the 2020/21 approved budget and the current cost of ongoing
services, adjusted to take account of a range of unavoidable costs such as pay
increases, inflationary pressures, the implementation of any approved changes to the
budget and any costs arising from new legislation and associated regulations or
changes in resident demand. The MTFP takes account of any forecast variations in the
level of both investment and fee income.
The Plan also considers and makes reasonable assumptions about the likely incomes
from council tax and central government funding.
The MTFP is designed to model scenarios and to aggregate the sum of all potential
financial inputs, to determine whether the Council will have sufficient resources to
achieve its objectives, or indeed whether action is required to bridge a funding gap.
In formulating these calculations a number of assumptions have been made and a
range of external influences considered. The various risks and pressures are detailed at
the end of the Plan with commentary on their potential impact. Brexit was a substantial
risk in considering the economic situation and implications on the MTFP but the
consequence of the Pandemic is now the central concern.
Appendix A to the Financial Plan contains the summary page of the MTFP including an
analysis of costs and inflation applied.
A similar exercise has been undertaken in respect of future capital expenditure, detailing
the anticipated level of resources required, together with potential funding sources
available to the Council to support its planned programme of works and where there are
revenue implications these have been acknowledged within the Plan.
MTFP – Revenue Position
The position on General Fund services is detailed in the table below and shows the
current year 2020/21 for comparison and forms the basis from which future
assessments have been made. The 2020/21 position is the set budget, the implications
effecting this budget are considered going forward.
Some key areas to note in this calculation:


Service Budgets - This position is calculated based on current service
provision adjusted where there are known resident demand changes,
4
page 20

contract agreements or legislative requirements. This position does not
include any growth in service or staffing to the Council’s current service
level with the exception of:
-

Inclusion of a £50k annual budget for an ecologist position/ or
the purchase of expertise when required. This is as a
consequence of bio-diversity net gain requirement introduced in
planning legislation.

-

£195k has been allowed for the development of a Local Plan.

-

A significant uplift of £615k per annum has been included as
part of the next stage in the Recycling and Refuse Contract.
There is also a £730k capital investment requirement.

-

Work is still ongoing on determining the implications of the
Council’s commitment to a carbon reduction programme. The
MTFP assumes a commitment ongoing of £323k per annum
which although significant and beyond most Councils financial
commitment it is short of the full requirement. Without
government or other external support the Council does not have
the financial ability to meet the full programme but the
programme will be progressed and the Council will work to
consider how the full agenda can be actioned.

-

Service budgets and income budgets from fees and charges
are assumed to return to pre covid-19 levels within the MTFP.
This follows the 2020/21 budget monitoring position seen after
“lock-down” ended. Additional financial assistance to residents
dealing with recession it is assumed will come from existing
schemes which are Government funded, implications of
additional council tax support scheme costs has been
accounted for. In terms of additional business support it is
assumed this will be within the limits of specific reserves held for
this purpose by the Council.

The Council’s 2020/21 budget book is a useful reference as it details
significant information about the service provision currently provided; costs
and income received, staffing resources involved in each area, the assets
utilised and number of service users.

5
page 21



Government Funding General - The 2020/21 Local Government Finance
Settlement was a one-year spending round only. This put on hold reforms
planned for 2020/21; changes to both the local government funding
formula and the re-basing and implementation of a new business rate
retention scheme. The settlement basically carried forward spending
allocations from 2019/20 into 2020/21.
The Government has announced it intends to undertake a full review of
local authority funding for 2021/22. Although it has stated that changes to
Business Rate Retention Scheme will not be introduced in 2021/22 it has
indicated that additional growth being retained by Council’s maybe
considered.
Understanding this funding position and the implication on other core
funding mechanisms (Business Rate Growth and New Homes Bonus) is
critical to determining the MTFP position but there is real uncertainty at the
moment.
The MTFP assumes a fall to baseline funding for the Council from
2022/23; taking away any growth in business rates (2020/21 budget
£1.5m and assumed £2m in 2021/22) and the demise of NHB (2020/21
budget £1.5m). Should funding fall even lower it assumes there would be
some transitional arrangements to phase significant decreases.
The Government has in recent months acted to support local authorities
through the financial implications of Covid-19 and has stated it will look to
support and stabilise local government finances going forward. What this
means in reality is unknown and until the Local Government Finance
Settlement is announced (normal timescales of late November/early
December) it will remain unknown which makes planning extremely
difficult.
To add to the complexity of planning ahead the Government is shortly to
publish a recovery and devolution white paper which is likely to have an
impact on the shape of local government going forward. No assumption of
the outcome of this has been addressed in the MTFP.



Business Rate income - this has been assumed under the existing
arrangements; the 50% rate retention scheme. The Government had
intended to introduce a 75% retention scheme from 2020/21, but this is
still under review. The implication is likely to be the same level of funding
but with greater incentive to retain additional growth above the
Governments funding baseline. This has not been factored in and will be
6
page 22

considered in further updates of the Plan. If introduced in this form then
the impact is unlikely to be material in the early years of the Plan.
The MTFP assumes in 2021/22 the Council will be £2m above the
baseline funding level (retained growth). This is still considered prudent
and does factor in the recent decline in business rate collection through
Covid-19. The Council does have reserves to mitigate losses if this level of
income does not materialise.
 Council Tax - The Government has for a number of years determined
rural district councils can increase their council tax by £5 a year or up to
2% whichever is the greatest before triggering a local referendum. This is
the level of income the Government assess is available to the Council and
the MTFP applies this increase annually. As a result of Covid-19 and
reduced collection rates no surplus on the collection fund has been
assumed and the base increase as been prudentially set taking account of
lower growth and an increase in Council Tax Support costs.
 New Homes Bonus (NHB) - Income retained in the General Fund to
support revenue costs has been included in budgets for a number of years
at £1.5m. The scheme is ending in its current form with the annual
amount reducing; this gives £1.5m available in 2021/22 then falls to £0.9m
in 2022/23 and then ends. A replacement for NHB has been consulted on
with the Government wishing to sharpen the incentivising of housing
growth in the most effective way, no announcement of a replacement
scheme has been made so no additional income has been included in the
Plan at this time.

The MTFP shows a projected deficit for 2021/22 of £0.694m which then increases
reaching £5.653m in 2030/31 as a deficit shortfall in the annual budget. Clearly this is
an unsustainable pattern and not one that the Council will allow, this updated MTFP is in
line with previous assessments and reports to Council. A summary position of the
MTFP is given below.

7
page 23

Summary of MTFPRevenue

2020/21
£000

2021/22
£000

2022/23
£000

2023/24
£000

2024/25
£000

2025/26
£000

2026/27
£000

2027/28
£000

2028/29
£000

2029/30
£000

2030/31
£000

15,592

15,592

16,501

17,623

18,551

19,225

19,801

20,390

21,801

21,605

22,233

-

376

537

378

115

0

0

90

(90)

0

0

-

533

585

550

559

576

589

601

614

628

640

15,592

16,501

17,623

18,551

19,225

19,801

20,390

21,081

21,605

22,233

22,873

NNDR Gov’t
baseline
NNDR income
above baseline
Rural Grant

(2,667)

(2,721)

(2,775)

(2,831)

(2,887)

(2,944)

(3,004)

(3,064)

(3,125)

(3,188)

(3,251)

(1,500)

(2,000)

(300)

(400)

(500)

(600)

(300)

(400)

(500)

(600)

(700)

(226)

(226)

(226)

(226)

(226)

(226)

(226)

(226)

(226)

(226)

(226)

Council Tax

(8,828)

(9,204)

(9,586)

(9,972)

(10,364)

(10,760)

(11,161)

(11,568)

(11,980)

(12,396)

(12,818)

(857)

(656)

(650)

(675)

(800)

(825)

(825)

(825)

(825)

(825)

(825)

483

500

540

580

600

600

600

600

600

600

600

(122)

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

(70)

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

(305)
(1,500)

0
(1,500)

0
(922)

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

0

0

(80)

0

0

0

(90)

0

0

0

(15,592)

(15,807)

(13,919)

(13,604)

(14,177)

(14,756)

(14,916)

(15,573)

(16,056)

(16,635)

(17,220)

-

694

3,704

4,947

5,048

5,045

5,474

5,508

5,549

5,598

5,653

-

694

4,398

9,345

14,393

19,438

24,912

30,420

35,969

41,567

47,220

Net Service Costs
Amendments to
base budget
Pay & Inflation and
other inescapables
Net Budget
Requirement

External Interest
Interest/Loan
Repayments
Collection Fund
Surplus
Savings Target Procurement
Reserves for one
off expenditure
New Homes Bonus
to support general
funding
Agreed use of
General Fund
Total Resources
Available
Annual Budget
Shortfall if no
action taken
Cumulative
financial position
for information only
as Council is not
allowed to take
forward a deficit
position –
expenditure needs
funding in year.

This row shows the shortfall in the annual budget assuming no action is taken.
As stated if no action is taken to reduce budgeted expenditure and/or increase budgeted
income then there will be a projected budget shortfall in 2021/22 of £0.694m. This gap
in the annual budget grows to £5.653m by 2030/31 at the end of the MTFP period.
However, the Council is unable to set an unbalanced budget, therefore the table
below is more useful in looking at the budget gap on the basis that each year’s shortfall
will be found in turn by reducing expenditure or increasing income in the Council’s
budget (with a permanent effect). Thereby the shortfall below represents what is
required to be found each year.

8
page 24

Table: MTFP Model – Annual budget shortfall assuming previous year’s shortfall was
found.
General Fund

Budget Shortfall

2021/22
£000

2022/23
£000

2023/24
£000

2024/25
£000

2025/26
£000

2026/27
£000

2027/28
£000

2028/29
£000

2029/30
£000

2030/31
£000

694

3,010

1,243

101

(3)

428

35

41

48

56

The model identifies the pressures and influences on the Council’s revenue budgets and
highlights a shortfall between the Council’s spending requirements and the amount of
finance available. Actions will need to be taken to meet these shortfalls and the need to
keep finding savings year on year is not to be underestimated.
A clear message from the Plan is there is a need to address the funding gap and there
are no resources available for growth unless capacity is found through a combination of;
reprioritising spending, the achievement of savings or increased income.
There will be additional service expenditure raised during the annual budget process but
within this Plan only unavoidable costs have been included. Debate on these additional
items will be held during the budget process and prioritisation of spend considered
against existing service spend.
MTFP Revenue - The Way Forward
Previously presented to Members’ alongside the Financial Plan was the Council’s
Transformation Strategy which played an integral part in meeting our deficits in the past.
The Transformation Strategy was then developed further into three main themes:


Fit for purpose – continuous review of the staffing structure to ensure the right
posts are in place to support the objectives of the Council and ensuring the
Council was being operated efficiently and effectively.



Commercialisation – This was ensuring the Council looked to maximise income
generation from new or existing areas where it was seen customers would value
and pay for a service which in turn would generate a profit to help support the
overall costs of running the Council. Also linked to this theme was the Council’s
investment framework.



Careful Choices – This was a process of explanation to residents of the financial
position of the Council, the cost of services provided and determining prioritise of
the public and non-prioritise where costs could be saved.

A combination of the Pandemic, Government intention on tightening property investment
and a new Leadership of the Council requires these areas to be reconsidered to
determine if this is still the appropriate approach to balancing the Council’s budgets.
There are elements/actions within these headings that members are likely to be content
on progressing but they do need debating.
This Strategy proposes a two stage approach which is linked to understanding the
cause of the MTFP funding gap and reflects the current uncertainty of Government
9
page 25

funding for local authorities and possibly even the shape of local government going
forward.
There is a funding gap of £4.9m up to the next District election (2023/24), the assumed
change in funding of Business Rates and NHB accounts for £3.1m of this shortfall.
General Fund

MTFP Budget Shortfall

Change in Business Rates & NHB
Underlying MTFP shortfall – service costs
increasing above income generation

2021/22
£000

2022/23
£000

2023/24
£000

Total

694

3,010

1,243

4,947

0

2,278

822

3,100

694

732

421

1,847

The changes in funding are uncertain in terms of extent and timing and although likely to
be implemented to a degree or to its full extent it puts the Council in a precarious
position of having to make significant savings and likely service reductions without being
certain on the level and timing of savings required.
It is proposed that the funding gap is addressed in terms of the underlying MTFP
shortfall at this stage and although plans should be considered for the larger deficit sum
actions are held until there is clarity on timing and extent.
To mitigate and de-risk this approach It is recommended that Council create a new
reserve from additional business rates received in 2019/20 (details contained in 2019/20
Outturn Report to Cabinet on 30/9/20) of £2m. This reserve to be used to mitigate and
de-risk the implications of the Government funding changes until the outcome is known
and can be planned for appropriately. Having such a reserve can then buy time, if
required, to fund a sudden fall in funding whilst the Council reshapes its budget, but at a
time and to a degree that’s required instead of progressing at this point when there are
so many uncertainties.
The immediate shortfall in 2021/22 is estimated at £0.7m this is part of the underlying
funding gap and needs to be addressed in preparation for the 2021/22 budget. There
are actions previously raised that need to be debated and with member agreement
could meet this gap; Fit for Purpose proposals, commercialisation and better use of
assets (public conveniences, car parks – reviews in progress) or other areas members
may wish to bring forward. Progress on these proposals will be considered through the
Budget Setting and Capital Allocations Panel before formalising in reports to Council.

Capital
The Council maintains a programme of capital expenditure designed to improve a wide
range of community facilities and local infrastructure. The forward funding projections
below only include rolling items and projects identified early by managers; there will be
proposals missing from this list that will need to be considered for funding out of
available resources.
10
page 26

There will be a disparity between the Council’s capital spending aspirations being
greater than the amount of finance available. In producing these figures agreed
principles have/will be applied:


Capital works associated with the Housing Revenue Account are self funded;
these costs have been included in the HRA business model. Any capital
receipts generated from the HRA are used to finance HRA expenditure.



A capital bid process is in place whereby appraisal forms are completed for
each scheme and a scoring methodology applied to prioritise expenditure
within resources available. This prioritisation is overseen by the Member
Budget Strategy & Capital Allocation Panel.

MTFP Model – Capital Expenditure and Funding Position

Net Capital
Expenditure
HRA Financing
GF Capital Receipts
External Interest
New Homes Bonus
– allocated
Sec 106 & Grants
Project Reserves
Capital Reserve
Net Internal/
External Borrowing

2020/21
£000
15,510

2021/22
£000
6,721

2022/23
£000
4,717

2023/24
£000
4,717

2024/25
£000
5,148

(4,906)
(100)
(2,054)

(4,906)
(100)
(70)

(4,906)
(100)
-

(4,906)
(100)
-

(4,906)
(100)
-

(8,450)

(1,645)

(289)

(289)

(142)

The Programme expenditure includes only those schemes already approved by Council
and rolling items such as; the provision of statutory disabled facility grants, the public
toilet renovation programme, equipment replacement for street scene services and
housing improvement schemes (fully funded by HRA contribution). Bids will come
through the annual budget process giving a different picture to that given above
and there will be choices to make in order to keep expenditure within resources
available.
The position on internal/external borrowing over the period requires net funding of
£10.815m, however the Council’s internal borrowing position improved significantly in
2019/20 through a large capital receipt whereby the Capital Financing Requirement
compared with external borrowing moved from under borrowed position of £7.275m to a
£1.054m over borrowed position. The implication being significant borrowing has not
been required to be factored in to the MTFP revenue position based on the above
position.
Key issues to consider for this Plan in terms of capital are:


Only rolling items, or early request for items, have been included in the MTFP
with headroom for essential year on year requests. No amount is included for
future coast protection or flood prevention schemes. If any schemes do come
11
page 27

forward, it is assumed they will attract Government funding if of high enough
priority.


Any scheme inclusion in the Programme over and above this core annual
expenditure needs to be considered carefully for inclusion in future
programmes on a case by case basis to determine if they meet corporate
objectives and, if they can be self funded, evidenced in a business case or
delivered in conjunction with other agencies/partners. Some schemes will
come with no funding but may still be required to be funded due to their nature.



New Homes Bonus monies allocated to the Capital Programme represents the
Balance available after deducting £1.5m to fund the General Fund and it is
assumed the grant scheme is ending.

The Way Forward – Capital programme
 There is a clear necessity for the continuation of the member Panel to consider
the allocating of capital resources against competing capital scheme bids.
 The programme needs to be populated with realistic expenditure estimates
into the future; further work has been undertaken on Council assets costs and
these can shortly be populated into the Model but further work is required with
other services managers across the Council
 The Project Management Guidelines will continue to be used to inform the
capital bid process through detailed capital appraisal forms and Initial Project
Proposal Document (IPPD). With the continued monitoring of progress on key
projects through the Council’s Strategic Management Team and member
Panel.

12
page 28

EXTERNAL INFLUENCES AND KEY ASSUMPTIONS WITHIN THE REVENUE MTFP
MODEL

 Inflation
Inflation rates used are indentified in Appendix A of the MTFP attached.
Although the financial model is based upon what are believed to be a series of
prudent assumptions, there is inevitably a risk that some or all factors applied could
be inaccurate. The table below summarises the impact of any such inaccuracies that
would have a detrimental effect upon the financial plan:

Financial impact of changes in inflation assumptions 2021/22.
MTFP Predicted
Worse
Factor
Inflation Costs
by 0.5%
£000
£’000
Pay, N.I & Pension & other
678
156
employee costs + other
costs

Worse
by 1.0%
£’000
312

 Investment Returns
The approach adopted, of budgeting for investment income remains prudent. Investment
return predictions have been factored in to continue at less than 1% with a modest increase
starting to be reflected from 2023/24 this is materially effecting the position should this not
occur. Investment income in 2021/22 has been lowered as base year includes an increase
for property investment that was not undertaken.
 Council Tax Income

The MTFP follows recent Government practice of allowing a £5 a year increase.
Financial impact of changes in council tax levels (2021/22).

Level of council
Tax increase

Predicted
council tax
income

Loss of
income in
MTFP
13

page 29

Council tax yield at £5
(3.4%) increase
Yield at 2.0%
Yield at 1.0%
Yield at 0.0%

£000

2021/22
£’000

(9,204)
(9,079)
(8,990)
(8,901)

Nil
125
214
303

This calculation shows a one year effect, this reduction would be lost each year going forward
plus the opportunity to increase the level in future on a higher base.

 Cranbrook & other development
The expected build rate for Cranbrook has been considered along with service cost
implications. Areas such as recycling and refuse collection and street cleansing have been
included in the Plan when expected demand requires a stepped increase in cost. Other
planned development in the area has been considered alongside these figures. No new
large scale development has been factored into the Plan.


New Homes Bonus
Details are covered in the main Strategy the risk in income being below the projections are
unlikely as they are based in the main on current known taxbase numbers. The Plan
assumes the demise of the current scheme with no income being reflected on a possible
substitute scheme. Any such scheme will have positive implication on the MTFP both
revenue and capital but no projections can be made on this until Government outline any
replacement scheme.



Business Rate Income
The risks associated with Business Rate income has been covered in the Strategy, including
the Government’s intention of business rates rebasing. A £2m additional benefit has been
budgeted in 2021/22 for additional rates above the Council’s baseline, this is the sum that
will be budgeted and if the actual amount is less through a reduction in assessments or
collection of income drops than the difference will be met from the Business Rates Volatility
Fund which has a current balance of £0.639m.
Should the Government suddenly rebase for 2021/22 (unlikely but a risk that needs to be
considered) then the proposal of setting up a MTFP Risk Reserve of £2m will be used to
mitigate this for the year.



Brexit
The risks considered for local authorities centre around:
Direct EU funding – the most obvious financial impact of Brexit for local areas is the loss
of future EU funding, predominantly the European Structural and Investment Funds.
EDDC currently have no bids planned.
14
page 30

Inward investment – It is unknown how multinational companies will view the UK’s
attractiveness as a base for investment post-Brexit. At best, there is likely to be a delay in
the creation of the associated new jobs as plans are reviewed, and at worst those jobs
may go elsewhere and existing employers may relocate. There is risk in particular around
the growth point area particularly around attracting oversees companies onto the science
park. The immediate effect on the MTFP would be around business rate income
projections as highlighted below.
Business rate income – with the local retention of business rates, councils’ own financial
sustainability will increasingly depend on their ability to retain and grow rate-paying
businesses. In addition to the inward investment risk already mentioned, councils are
more financially vulnerable than before to the ebb and flow of the macroeconomic tide. A
pragmatic and prudent approach has been taken in projecting rate income based on
previous experience and the knowledge of site availability in the District. This area will be
monitored carefully for future refreshes of the Plan.
Demand pressures – the unpredictable impact of Brexit on demand for council services
may complicate the management of spending reductions in the coming years. The longer
term impact on demand will depend on how well each local economy fares, but there have
already been reports of worrying increases in hate crime, requiring a response from local
authorities and their partners. To date this has not impacted this Council and no
allowance has been made in the Plan for these factors.
Investments and borrowing – The Treasury Management Strategy ensures we monitor
the credit ratings of the limited number of deposit takers meeting our stringent investment
criteria. In addition, the downgrades to the UK’s rating haven’t yet led to higher borrowing
costs, but this is a risk that will be monitored.
Impact on pension fund deficits – pension fund deficits are already a volatile material
liabilities on local authority balance sheets. In the short term the impact of very low bond
yields is likely to drive up the deficits but to date there has been resilient asset valuations.
Supply of Labour – certain sectors have seen worrying trends in the reduction of labour
from abroad however this is not seen as factor effecting this Council. The risk could be
around the building industry should the Council enter into future large construction
projects.


Covid-19
The direct effect of Covid-19 on the Council’s finances has been presented to members
relating to the current financial year 2020/21 and the continuation of the implications in
income areas and additional costs has been reflected in the MTFP. The key direct risk is a
return to lockdown restrictions in the period the Plan covers from April 2021/22 onwards and
although in the main modest income flows have been included in the MTFP this would have
a detrimental effect. The assumption is made that Government would give direct financial
support as is currently the position.
There are wider implications on the District, its residents and businesses in terms of a
recession as a result of Covid. The implications will have to be determined in time with the
Plan updated as necessary – Additional welfare support and vulnerability assistance being
given by the Council is currently in the main being funded through additional Government
monies and it is assumed this will continue rather than a direct significant cost to the
Council. The Council has available monies it has set aside to assist with economic
15
page 31

sustainability in the District that it will have to determine how best to deploy but the Plan
assumes additional costs will not be over and above what is available.

16
page 32

EAST DEVON DISTRICT COUNCIL - MTFP summary Page
GENERAL FUND REVENUE BUDGET FORECAST
BASE
2020/21
Total

Note
BUDGET SET - pre COVID-19
AMENDMENTS TO BUDGET
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11

12
13

Addition

Total

15,592,350

One off Items of expenditure from Earmarked Reserves
Cranbrook Grant 20/21 £90k, 21/22 £60k, 22/23 £30k
Action East Devon Grant - Council approved 19/20 & 20/21
EDDC Elections
Clyst Honiton Parish Council Support - Council approved 5 yr grant
Strata Savings in base
Housing Benefits Overpayments reducing (£1.1m in base)
Refuse & Rcycling Contract - additional staff payment
Recycling & Refuse Contract contract renegoitation at 73,000 properties
Change in legislation no business rates on toilets
Savings on vechicle Allowances
Local Plan Preparation - Evidence, Consultation & Examination
Bio-diversity net gain requirment - post/expertise
Housing Benefit admin reduction
Cranbrook (costs not covered by 106's) + New development implications

page 33

104,803

0

215,590
9,427
44,816
21,165
387,361
(145,235)
533,124

PREDICTED BUDGET REQUIREMENT
FINANCED BY:
Government Grant - NNDR Gov't baseline (Settlement confirmed to 2020/21)
Rural Services Delivery Grant
NNDR Uplift - Amount above Baseline (Rebased 2021/22)
Council Tax 2020/21 = £146.78 - Growth in base 500 each year, Assume + £5 per annum increase or 2%
which is ever greater
Interest Income
Interest & Loan Repayment
Savings target (Procurement)
Council Tax Collection Fund Surplus
Earmarked Reserve - one off items of expenditure
New Homes Bonus to revenue (Gov't ended current scheme)
General Fund Balance - District Elections
GENERAL FUND BALANCE
TOTAL
(Abbreviations used - NHB = New Homes Bonus, N.I = National Insurance,
RSG = Revenue Support Grant, NNDR = National Non Domestic Rates)
ANNUAL (SURPLUS)/DEFICIT

IN YEAR ADDITION TO ANNUAL (SURPLUS)/DEFICIT

0

1,331,337

2024/25
Reduction

Addition

Total

27,000
35,000

0
(30,000)
0
0
0
0
250,000
0
308,000
0
(27,000)
(35,000)

56,000

0
0
0
(80,000)
(9,000)
0
100,000
0
160,000
0
(56,000)

80,000

0
0
(30,000)
0
80,000
0
0
100,000
0
308,000
0
0
(80,000)

422,340

(305,330)
(30,000)
(20,000)
0
0
0
400,000
77,000
0
(45,010)
(22,000)
115,000
50,000
21,410
30,000
271,070

92,000

20,440
50,000
536,440

488,000

110,000

378,000

35,000
295,000

145,000

115,000

0

104,803
0
104,803

0

0

0
0
0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

215,590
9,427
44,816
21,165
387,361
(145,235)
533,124

219,902
9,616
45,712
21,588
382,474
(94,066)
585,225

0

219,902
9,616
45,712
21,588
382,474
(94,066)
585,225

224,300
9,808
46,626
22,020
343,047
(95,948)
549,854

0

224,300
9,808
46,626
22,020
343,047
(95,948)
549,854

228,786
10,004
47,559
22,460
348,182
(97,867)
559,125

0

228,786
10,004
47,559
22,460
348,182
(97,867)
559,125

0

0

0

0

0

0

908,997

1,213,665

1,121,665

1,037,854

927,854

854,125

SERVICE PLAN COMMITMENTS NOT INCLUDED IN BASE BUDGET
23
None identified
TOTAL "UNAVOIDABLE" CHANGES TO BUDGET

Total

18,550,866

104,803
0

2023/24
Reduction

Addition

17,623,012

45,010
22,000

ONGOING BUDGET VARIANCES IDENTIFIED DURING BUDGET MONITORING
12
2020/21 Pay Award assumed at 2% latest offer 2.75%

Total
16,501,347

400,000
77,000

115,000
50,000
21,410
30,000
693,410

2022/23
Reduction

Addition

15,592,350

305,330
30,000
20,000

0

INFLATION
18 a
Employee Pay Award
b
Employees Other Costs
c
Superannuation
d
National Insurance
19
Inflation Summary - expenditure
20
Inflation Summary - fees, charges & contributions
TOTAL INESCAPABLE BUDGET CHANGES

2021/22
Reduction

422,340

30,000

250,000
0
308,000

20,440
50,000
628,440

92,000

30,000
80,000

100,000
0
308,000

110,000

80,000
9,000
100,000
0
160,000

0
145,000

674,125

15,592,350

16,501,347

17,623,012

18,550,866

19,224,990

2,667,320
225,590
1,500,000

2,720,666
225,590
2,000,000

2,775,080
225,590
300,000

2,830,581
225,590
400,000

2,887,193
225,590
500,000

8,827,500
856,780
(482,170)
70,000
122,000
305,330
1,500,000
0
0
15,592,350

9,204,091
656,780
(500,000)
0
0
0
1,500,000
0
0
15,807,127

9,585,686
650,000
(540,000)
0
0
0
922,409
0
0
13,918,765

9,972,281
675,000
(580,000)
0
0
0
0
80,000
0
13,603,452

10,363,876
800,000
(600,000)
0
0
0
0
0
0
14,176,659

0

694,219

3,704,247

4,947,413

5,048,331

694,219

3,010,028

1,243,166

100,918

APPENDIX A (i)
2025/26
Reduction

Addition

0
0

Total

2026/27
Reduction

Addition

Total

2027/28
Reduction

Addition

Total

2028/29
Reduction

Addition

Total

2029/30
Reduction

Addition

Total

2030/31
Reduction

Addition

Total

19,224,990

19,801,349

20,389,993

21,081,221

21,605,340

22,232,671

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
90,000
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
(90,000)
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0

90,000

0

90,000

0

0

0

page 34

0

0

0

0

0

0

90,000

0

90,000

0

90,000

(90,000)

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

233,362
10,204
48,510
22,909
361,197
(99,824)
576,359

238,029
10,408
49,480
23,368
369,179
(101,820)
588,644

0

238,029
10,408
49,480
23,368
369,179
(101,820)
588,644

242,789
10,616
50,470
23,835
377,374
(103,857)
601,228

0

242,789
10,616
50,470
23,835
377,374
(103,857)
601,228

247,645
10,829
51,479
24,312
385,789
(105,934)
614,120

0

247,645
10,829
51,479
24,312
385,789
(105,934)
614,120

252,598
11,045
52,509
24,798
394,433
(108,053)
627,331

0

252,598
11,045
52,509
24,798
394,433
(108,053)
627,331

257,650
11,266
53,559
25,294
403,315
(110,214)
640,871

0

257,650
11,266
53,559
25,294
403,315
(110,214)
640,871

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

576,359

588,644

588,644

691,228

691,228

614,120

524,120

627,331

627,331

640,871

233,362
10,204
48,510
22,909
361,197
(99,824)
576,359
0
576,359

0

0

0

90,000

0

0
0

640,871

19,801,349

20,389,993

21,081,221

21,605,340

22,232,671

22,873,542

2,944,937
225,590
600,000

3,003,836
225,590
300,000

3,063,912
225,590
400,000

3,125,191
225,590
500,000

3,187,694
225,590
600,000

3,251,448
225,590
700,000

10,760,471
825,000
(600,000)
0
0
0
0
0

11,568,661
825,000
(600,000)
0
0
0
0
90,000
0
15,573,163

11,980,256
825,000
(600,000)
0
0
0
0

12,396,851
825,000
(600,000)
0
0
0
0

12,818,446
825,000
(600,000)
0
0
0
0

14,755,998

11,162,066
825,000
(600,000)
0
0
0
0
0
0
14,916,492

0
16,056,036

0
16,635,135

0
17,220,484

5,045,351

5,473,501

5,508,057

5,549,304

5,597,536

5,653,058

(2,980)

428,150

34,556

41,247

48,232

55,522

EAST DEVON DISTRICT COUNCIL - MTFP summary Page
GENERAL FUND REVENUE BUDGET FORECAST
BASE
2020/21
Total

Note
BUDGET SET - pre COVID-19
AMENDMENTS TO BUDGET
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11

12
13

Addition

Total

15,592,350

One off Items of expenditure from Earmarked Reserves
Cranbrook Grant 20/21 £90k, 21/22 £60k, 22/23 £30k
Action East Devon Grant - Council approved 19/20 & 20/21
EDDC Elections
Clyst Honiton Parish Council Support - Council approved 5 yr grant
Strata Savings in base
Housing Benefits Overpayments reducing (£1.1m in base)
Refuse & Rcycling Contract - additional staff payment
Recycling & Refuse Contract contract renegoitation at 73,000 properties
Change in legislation no business rates on toilets
Savings on vechicle Allowances
Local Plan Preparation - Evidence, Consultation & Examination
Bio-diversity net gain requirment - post/expertise
Housing Benefit admin reduction
Cranbrook (costs not covered by 106's) + New development implications

page 35

104,803

0

215,590
9,427
44,816
21,165
387,361
(145,235)
533,124

PREDICTED BUDGET REQUIREMENT
FINANCED BY:
Government Grant - NNDR Gov't baseline (Settlement confirmed to 2020/21)
Rural Services Delivery Grant
NNDR Uplift - Amount above Baseline (Rebased 2021/22)
Council Tax 2020/21 = £146.78 - Growth in base 500 each year, Assume + £5 per annum increase or 2%
which is ever greater
Interest Income
Interest & Loan Repayment
Savings target (Procurement)
Council Tax Collection Fund Surplus
Earmarked Reserve - one off items of expenditure
New Homes Bonus to revenue (Gov't ended current scheme)
General Fund Balance - District Elections
GENERAL FUND BALANCE
TOTAL
(Abbreviations used - NHB = New Homes Bonus, N.I = National Insurance,
RSG = Revenue Support Grant, NNDR = National Non Domestic Rates)
ANNUAL (SURPLUS)/DEFICIT

IN YEAR ADDITION TO ANNUAL (SURPLUS)/DEFICIT

0

1,331,337

2024/25
Reduction

Addition

Total

27,000
35,000

0
(30,000)
0
0
0
0
250,000
0
308,000
0
(27,000)
(35,000)

56,000

0
0
0
(80,000)
(9,000)
0
100,000
0
160,000
0
(56,000)

80,000

0
0
(30,000)
0
80,000
0
0
100,000
0
308,000
0
0
(80,000)

422,340

(305,330)
(30,000)
(20,000)
0
0
0
400,000
77,000
0
(45,010)
(22,000)
115,000
50,000
21,410
30,000
271,070

92,000

20,440
50,000
536,440

488,000

110,000

378,000

35,000
295,000

145,000

115,000

0

104,803
0
104,803

0

0

0
0
0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

215,590
9,427
44,816
21,165
387,361
(145,235)
533,124

219,902
9,616
45,712
21,588
382,474
(94,066)
585,225

0

219,902
9,616
45,712
21,588
382,474
(94,066)
585,225

224,300
9,808
46,626
22,020
343,047
(95,948)
549,854

0

224,300
9,808
46,626
22,020
343,047
(95,948)
549,854

228,786
10,004
47,559
22,460
348,182
(97,867)
559,125

0

228,786
10,004
47,559
22,460
348,182
(97,867)
559,125

0

0

0

0

0

0

908,997

1,213,665

1,121,665

1,037,854

927,854

854,125

SERVICE PLAN COMMITMENTS NOT INCLUDED IN BASE BUDGET
23
None identified
TOTAL "UNAVOIDABLE" CHANGES TO BUDGET

Total

18,550,866

104,803
0

2023/24
Reduction

Addition

17,623,012

45,010
22,000

ONGOING BUDGET VARIANCES IDENTIFIED DURING BUDGET MONITORING
12
2020/21 Pay Award assumed at 2% latest offer 2.75%

Total
16,501,347

400,000
77,000

115,000
50,000
21,410
30,000
693,410

2022/23
Reduction

Addition

15,592,350

305,330
30,000
20,000

0

INFLATION
18 a
Employee Pay Award
b
Employees Other Costs
c
Superannuation
d
National Insurance
19
Inflation Summary - expenditure
20
Inflation Summary - fees, charges & contributions
TOTAL INESCAPABLE BUDGET CHANGES

2021/22
Reduction

422,340

30,000

250,000
0
308,000

20,440
50,000
628,440

92,000

30,000
80,000

100,000
0
308,000

110,000

80,000
9,000
100,000
0
160,000

0
145,000

674,125

15,592,350

16,501,347

17,623,012

18,550,866

19,224,990

2,667,320
225,590
1,500,000

2,720,666
225,590
2,000,000

2,775,080
225,590
300,000

2,830,581
225,590
400,000

2,887,193
225,590
500,000

8,827,500
856,780
(482,170)
70,000
122,000
305,330
1,500,000
0
0
15,592,350

9,204,091
656,780
(500,000)
0
0
0
1,500,000
0
0
15,807,127

9,585,686
650,000
(540,000)
0
0
0
922,409
0
0
13,918,765

9,972,281
675,000
(580,000)
0
0
0
0
80,000
0
13,603,452

10,363,876
800,000
(600,000)
0
0
0
0
0
0
14,176,659

0

694,219

3,704,247

4,947,413

5,048,331

694,219

3,010,028

1,243,166

100,918

APPENDIX A (i)
2025/26
Reduction

Addition

0
0

Total

2026/27
Reduction

Addition

Total

2027/28
Reduction

Addition

Total

2028/29
Reduction

Addition

Total

2029/30
Reduction

Addition

Total

2030/31
Reduction

Addition

Total

19,224,990

19,801,349

20,389,993

21,081,221

21,605,340

22,232,671

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
90,000
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
(90,000)
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0

90,000

0

90,000

0

0

0

page 36

0

0

0

0

0

0

90,000

0

90,000

0

90,000

(90,000)

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

233,362
10,204
48,510
22,909
361,197
(99,824)
576,359

238,029
10,408
49,480
23,368
369,179
(101,820)
588,644

0

238,029
10,408
49,480
23,368
369,179
(101,820)
588,644

242,789
10,616
50,470
23,835
377,374
(103,857)
601,228

0

242,789
10,616
50,470
23,835
377,374
(103,857)
601,228

247,645
10,829
51,479
24,312
385,789
(105,934)
614,120

0

247,645
10,829
51,479
24,312
385,789
(105,934)
614,120

252,598
11,045
52,509
24,798
394,433
(108,053)
627,331

0

252,598
11,045
52,509
24,798
394,433
(108,053)
627,331

257,650
11,266
53,559
25,294
403,315
(110,214)
640,871

0

257,650
11,266
53,559
25,294
403,315
(110,214)
640,871

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

576,359

588,644

588,644

691,228

691,228

614,120

524,120

627,331

627,331

640,871

233,362
10,204
48,510
22,909
361,197
(99,824)
576,359
0
576,359

0

0

0

90,000

0

0
0

640,871

19,801,349

20,389,993

21,081,221

21,605,340

22,232,671

22,873,542

2,944,937
225,590
600,000

3,003,836
225,590
300,000

3,063,912
225,590
400,000

3,125,191
225,590
500,000

3,187,694
225,590
600,000

3,251,448
225,590
700,000

10,760,471
825,000
(600,000)
0
0
0
0
0

11,568,661
825,000
(600,000)
0
0
0
0
90,000
0
15,573,163

11,980,256
825,000
(600,000)
0
0
0
0

12,396,851
825,000
(600,000)
0
0
0
0

12,818,446
825,000
(600,000)
0
0
0
0

14,755,998

11,162,066
825,000
(600,000)
0
0
0
0
0
0
14,916,492

0
16,056,036

0
16,635,135

0
17,220,484

5,045,351

5,473,501

5,508,057

5,549,304

5,597,536

5,653,058

(2,980)

428,150

34,556

41,247

48,232

55,522

Agenda Item 8
Report to:

Cabinet

Date of Meeting:

30 September 2020

Public Document:

Yes

Exemption:

None

Review date for
release

None

Subject:

Revenue and Capital Outturn Report 2019-2020

Purpose of report:

During 2019/20 budget monitoring reports have informed members of
budget variations and the anticipated year-end financial position. This
report contains the final position for the year and compares this outturn
position against the budgets set.
The report outlines the implications of these results on the Council’s
reserves and makes recommendations on any reserve transfers.
The Council’s Unaudited Accounts were issued on 17th August 2020 and
published on the Council’s website, it is anticipated the Audited Accounts
will be issued prior to the amended publishing date 30 November 2020.

Recommendation:

1. Cabinet consider and agree the outturn position for 2019/20 including
the implications and proposals relating to the Balances and Reserves
held by the Council.
2. To specially agree that £2m is transferred from the General Fund
Balance to create a new Reserve (MTFP Risk Reserve) and the
General Fund Balance is then retained at £4.395m as detailed in 2.7 of
this report.

Reason for
recommendation:

To report the outturn position for the Council’s approved budgets for the
General Fund, Housing Revenue Account and Capital Expenditure. This
financial position aligns to the Council’s Statement of Accounts but the
position in this report is presented in a style that accords to the budget
setting and monitoring reports that members receive.
Members are asked to note the variations from the budgets identified
within the report and consider the final position.
It is appropriate at this stage to reflect on the reserves and balances
held by the Council and determine if these are the right reserves at the
right levels going forward.

Officer:

John Symes – Finance Manager, jsymes@eastdevon.gov.uk

Portfolio Holder:

Portfolio Holder for Finance

Financial
implications:

Contained within the report

Legal implications:

Any legal implications are identified in the report and no further comment
is required.

page 37

Equalities impact:

Low Impact

Climate change:

Low Impact

Risk:

Low Risk
Financial monitoring reports have kept members informed during the
year of budget variations and the projected outturn position of the
Council’s finances. No areas of concern were raised with the Council
maintaining its net spending within overall approved budget levels. All
predetermined Balance and Reserve levels were maintained comfortably
above the adopted minimum levels. This position has now proven
correct in the final outturn position presented in this report.
The report also looks at the monies the Council holds in balances and
reserves and considers these in the light of the Council’s future financial
position and future Government funding cuts. Consideration is given to
the Council’s financial track record, internal and external audit reports on
financial controls and is reflective of occurrences from external factors
which affect the Council’s finances.

Links to background
information:

Link to Council Plan:

Outstanding Council and Council Services

Report in full
1.

Introduction

1.1

This report compares the outturn position (actual amount spent or income received for the
year) against budgets set for the financial year 2019/20 for the General Fund, Housing
Revenue Account (HRA) and the Capital Programme.

1.2

The report looks at the effect the outturn position has on the Council’s balances and
reserves and considers future policy for holding these sums.

1.3

The Council’s Unaudited Accounts were issued on 17th August 2020 and are published on
the Council’s website Final Accounts 2019/20 , it is anticipated the Audited Accounts will be
issued late September/early October.

2.

General Fund Position

2.1

The 2019/20 budget was set by Council with a balance of £0.236m to be met from the
General Fund Balance to meet the cost of one off items of expenditure included in the
budget. The final year end outturn position has resulted in an underspend of £2.718m
against the net budget of £15.168m, the majority of this being attributable to additional
business rate income.

2.2

There has been positive and negative variations against the budget set, the main areas
being.

page 38

General Fund 2019/20 – main outturn
variations against budget
Employee savings mainly from vacant posts,
the overall budget for employee costs is
£14.258m.
Business Rates – gain attributable to being
prudent on growth with uncertainty on timing of
developments but large assessments were
received along with maximising income work of
Revenues and Benefits team.

Variation
£000
(245)

Devon Business Rate Pool Gain – Gain on pool
not budgeted for as reliant on performance
across Devon
Savings returned by Strata higher than
budgeted.
Car Park income higher than projected – good
weather generated high use.

(316)

Income will also be
above 2020/21 budget
as rating assessments
base higher than
expected when budget
was set.
No implication

(203)

No implication

(69)

No implication

Coast & Flood Prevention savings on
contractors and support.
EDDC Elections – increase in Royal Mail
pollsort postage service. Increases in
electorate and increased payments to polling
staff have added to increased cost.
Burial Income lower than predicted.

(37)

No implication

63

No implication

88

Housing Benefit net savings after subsidy. £70k
variance against £26m expenditure budget is a
minor variation in percentage terms but results
in a significant sum.
Saving obtained in administration costs in
Revenues & Benefits service – Council Tax,
Housing Benefit, Council Tax Support,
Business Rates, Fraud and Sundry Debtors
Public Conveniences overspend, in particular
water charges. Total expenditure budget
£473k. This will be monitored closely with any
necessary action taken.
Planning application fees lower than budgeted.
Reductions in expenditure used to mitigate
overall reduction.
Recycling & Refuse – costs over and above
refuse collection contract as indices higher than
budgeted (customer base passed 71,000).
Additional Homelessness Costs. Implications of
new legislation including increased rent deposit
bonds. Also, large increase in homelessness
approaches (1126 compared to 871 in previous
year) – a rise of 29%.
This will be monitored closely.

(70)

2020/21 budget has
subsequently been
reduced by £50k.
No implication

(232)

No implications

page 39

Comment on Future
budget implications
No implication

(2,500)

73

2020/21 budget
subsequently
increased by £36k.

363

2020/21 budget has
subsequently been
reduced by £205k.
Contractual sums paid
to Suez increased in
2020/21 (+£313k).
2020/21 supplies &
services budget
increased by £82k to
bring in new duties to
prevent and relieve
homelessness.

70

55

2.3

The main positive service area variations relate to staff vacancies and savings made on
supplies and contractors along with income in areas such as car parking. Many areas of
adverse variations have previously been identified and budgets have accordingly been
adjusted, for example, the step change in the Recycling and Refuse due to contract
conditions being hit.

2.4

A new reserve has been created in 2019/20 with £84,000 for Growth Point Funding
received from MHCLG to fund initiatives in future years and is included within the
statements.

2.5

The Council was granted 100% business rates pilot status for 2018/19, this has generated
additional rating income of £3.1m to be retained by the Council. The bid to Government to
obtain this status was on the basis that this additional income would be used to promote
and protect economic development in the district. The Council to date have agreed to
support two areas from this additional income; £0.6m additional share purchase in Exeter
Science Park Company Limited (ESPL) and the purchase of £0.05m founder shares in
South West Mutual Ltd (the setting up of South West Mutual Bank). The remaining surplus,
this financial year, of £2.056m has been transferred to a reserve making it available for
future members’ consideration.

2.6

The overall General Fund Balance position at year end is given below, this shows the effect
of the outturn variation of £2.718m.
General Fund Balance Position

£000

Opening Balance 1/4/2019
Agreed use of General Fund Balance in 2019/20
Outturn variation 2019/20
Closing Balance 31/3/2020

2.7

(3,938)
236
(2,718)
(6,395)

The General Fund Balance at £6.395m is £2.595m above the proposed adopted range
which is between £3m and £3.8m. This represents 10% of our net budget equivalent to a
two year operational period which gives £3m; to this is added £0.8m headroom to give
£3.8m as a top of the range figure. This is the range we stipulate the General Fund Balance
to be within before members need to take action; whether above or below the range. With
the General Fund Balance being £2.595m above the adopted range (and £3.395m above
the minimum sum required to be held) it is proposed that:


At this stage £2m is transferred to Medium Term Financial Plan Risk Reserve
The Financial Strategy is presented on this Cabinet’s Agenda, within the Strategy there
is a significant shortfall outlined in the Council’s Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) in
the short to medium term resulting from possible changes in the Governments funding
regimes namely Business Rate Retention and New Homes Bonus Grants. It is
predicted that the Council will lose financial resources of £3.1m up to the period
2023/24, however the timing of this and final sum is uncertain. It is proposed in the
Financial Strategy that the Council set aside a MTFP Risk Reserve from the surplus
gained in the General Fund from the 2019/20 Outturn position to mitigate the sudden fall
in income from these changes.
The reserve can be used to fund services, if needed, whilst the Council reshapes its
budget to meet the available resources at a point when it can determine the amount of
savings required rather than take significant actions which effect services and staff
page 40

when possibly they are not required to the extent or time predicted. Previous practice
has been for Government to make final funding settlement announcements in
November making it impossible for Councils to wait for these announcements before
preparing detailed budget proposals for the following financial year. Having such a
reserve would give a further year and budget setting round to consider changes
sensibly. This does not negate the need to still plan and consider proposals but they
will not have to be acted upon until needed and then given full member consideration.


Remaining sum £4.395m to be retained in the General Fund Balance being
£0.595m over the adopted level (or £1.395m above minimum level).
This is to be held to mitigate estimated overspends in 2020/21 resulting from Covid-19
as detailed in the Financial Monitoring Report contained on the Cabinet Agenda.

2.8

The year end position on the other main Balances/Reserves held for the General Fund are:


£1.371m Transformation Reserve. This sum is set aside to assist the
Council’s transformation programme by meeting upfront costs necessarily
incurred in order to produce savings/efficiencies in future years.



£0.911m Asset Maintenance Reserve. Used to support the Council’s
General Fund Assets and planned maintenance backlog/essential work/asset
failure (created from one off VAT refunds). This Reserve is currently used at
a rate of around £0.100m to £0.200m annually. Details of spend are agreed
by SMT (Strategic Management Team) and previously presented to the Asset
Management Forum to ensure they do not conflict with asset strategy.



£0.639m Business Rates Volatility Fund. Available to mitigate the volatility
of business rate income should income fall below the expected budget and
allows the Council to set a level in the budget with certainty in relation to an
income source that can fluctuate.



£0.081m Local Authority Business Growth Incentive Scheme Reserve.
The purpose of this reserve is to promote and deliver economic development.
A programme of spend and authority for spend has been approved by Council
and is spent in consultation with Economy Portfolio Holder.



£2.506m Business Rates 100% Pilot Reserve. Council gain from the
inclusion within the 100% Business Rates Pilot Scheme.

Other Earmarked Reserves
There are other earmarked reserves for specific projects where funding or contributions
have been made in advance of spend and monies are held at year end to fund this work in
future years. Complete details are contained in the Accounts.

3

Housing Revenue Account (HRA)

page 41

3.1

The 2019/20 budget was set to achieve a surplus of £1.155m, the outturn position gives a
surplus for the year of £0.959m; a variation of £0.196m, the main variations are given
below.
HRA 2019/20 – Outturn variations against
budget

Variation
£000

Comment on Future
budget implications

The variance on collected rent in year vs budget
was again extremely close being only £70k or
0.39% below. The remainder and majority of the
variation can be explained by lost rent due to
voids which increased to £0.49m from £0.35m.
This was primarily the result of disruption and
increased lead times caused by the change in
contract during the year.

171 No implication

An increase of £24k has been made to the bad
provision, not budgeted for as this is a year end
assessment.

24 No implication

Supervision & Management: saving of £10k
overall, a minor overspend on Employee costs
(£70k on £3.4m budget) was offset by savings
made elsewhere.
Responsive repairs over budget by £1.1m.
The Maintenance & Repairs contract moved to a
price per property and price per void contract
during the year. Although the change in contractor
resulted in some additional unbudgeted costs
during mobilisation, such as consultant support &
redundancy costs for transferred workers
(+£100k). The large majority of the overspend can
be attributed to catch up costs during the three
months prior to the July changeover.
Programmed Maintenance, Major & Special
Repairs spending was £1.489m below budget as
the focus of the majority of officers shifted to the
implementation of the new Repairs and
Maintenance contract. The known overspend
above from July was also a factor in reducing other
expenditure towards the end of the year within
these areas with £0.35m reserved at the year end
for next years planned spend items with the
remaining balance offsetting repairs and
maintenance.
A £66k revenue contribution was made to capital
expenditure during the year to cover the right to
buy replacement homes spend.
Savings in Other Expenditure (£44k) were
partially offset by a decrease in interest received
apportioned from the General fund (£26k).

page 42

(10) No implication

1,105 The move to a price
per property and price
per void contract will
result in a large
reduction in
unforeseeable costs,
reduce invoicing
timeliness issues and
improve information
exchange.
(1,139) No implication

66 No implication

(18) No implication

3.2

The updated position of the HRA Balance is given below.
HRA Balance

£000

Opening Balance 1/4/2019
Agreed surplus in 2019/20
Outturn variation 2019/20
Closing Balance 31/3/2020

(3,100)
(1,155)
196
(4,059)

3.3

Within the year £0.350m has been transferred to the Property Maintenance Reserve to
undertake works which were budgeted in 2019/20 but will now be carried out in 2020/21.
This transfer to reserves has been included in the outturn position.

3.4

The adopted minimum level for the HRA Balance is between £2.1m to £3.1m, based on
£490 per property with headroom added of £1m. This leaves the HRA Balance at £0.959m
above the adopted range.

3.5

The Council set an HRA surplus budget for 2019/20 including the refinancing of a £1.9m
loan due for repayment at year end to use the surplus to meet other key housing spending
plans. Refinancing was undertaken and an additional loan of £4.1m taken out taking
advantage of low fixed rates and taking into consideration the request from the Housing
Review Board to continue with the right to buy replacement program.

3.6

The year end position on other Balances/Reserves held for the HRA are:


£1.6m in the HRA Business Volatility Fund. The HRA self-financing
business plan relies on a number of assumptions outside the control of the
Council, with significant debt repayment schedules this reserve was
established to mitigate this risk giving time if necessary to reshape the HRA
budget to accommodate any negative changes.



New Housing Development Fund. Used for house purchases to meet 70%
of the cost where 30% comes from Right to Buy receipts, the £0.980m
balance at the start of the year has been used up.



£0.515m in the Planned Maintenance Reserve. To be utilised for planned
maintenance related items in the coming year that were put on hold due to the
repairs and maintenance contract overspend.



£3.0m in the Fire Risk Assessment Works & Lift Replacement Reserve.
In the prior financial year £3.55m was set aside for ongoing building works to
blocks of flats based upon fire risk assessments and the replacement of the
lift at the Poplar Mount block. The residual balance within this account is the
so far unspent balance.



General Capital Receipts available for general HRA capital expenditure, all
receipts have been allocated to spend within the year.



£4.019m Ringfenced Right to Buy Capital Receipts to be spent on Right to
Buy replacements. If receipts are not spent within 3 years then they are
required to be returned to Government together with an interest payment of
4% above base rate.

Capital Budget
page 43

4.1

The revised net capital budget (after grants and contributions) for 2019/20 was £16.041m,
the outturn position is lower by £2.714m at £13.327m. The majority of this underspend is
from scheme slippage which needs to be re-profiled into 2020/21 or later years.
Capital 2019/20 – Outturn variations against budget

Variation
£000

Agreed loan to Beer Community Land Trust was not requested by year
end
Strata Convergence IT Projects – slippage in programme

(378)

Relocation Project - Re-profiling of expenditure into 2020/21

(380)

Seaton Workshops – on hold subject to re-evaluation of project

(572)

Other Industrial Sites improvements – work slipped to 2020/21

(85)

Ocean Building expenditure

2,809

The Strand Exmouth – Remaining project still to be defined

(125)

Growth Point Projects slipped to 2020/21

(136)

Axe Wetlands Developments and Seaton Jurassic access from
Wetlands - complex land ownerships issues

(212)

Delay in sports centre and swimming pool improvement schemes –
revised dates agreed with LED.

(911)

Feniton Flood Alleviation Work – project delay through complex
negotiations

(696)

Enterprise Zone – Park & Change

(1,355)

Beaches & Foreshores – Various reprofiling to 2020/21

(156)

Play Equipment / Playgrounds - reprofiling to 2020/21

(267)

Car Park works – reprofiling to 20/21

(192)

Gypsy and Traveller sites – location/s still to be identified

(500)

Energy saving/renewable initiatives (EDBC & Industrial Sites)

(152)

Beach Property improvements – scheme slippage

(109)

Magnolia Public Conveniences Improvements – scheme slippage

(200)

Expenditure funded through s106 agreements not in programme

4.2

(1,150)

433

HRA house purchase replacement scheme not included in original
programme, separately agreed – funding through HRA resources

3,234

HRA Major Repairs – underspend

(484)

The capital funding position given below takes the gross capital position (before grants and
contributions) and was funded as follows:
Capital Programme

£14.682m

Funded by
Capital Receipts

-£12.534m
page 44

4.3

Government Grants and other contributions
Applicable to be applied in the year

-£0.292m

HRA – Major Repairs Reserve

-£3.912m

New Homes Bonus Grant from revenue

-£2.324m

Monies from 100% business rate pilot

-£0.650m

Other direct revenue contributions

-£0.066m

Decrease in underlying need to borrow –
cash position met from internal borrowing

£4.445m

To remind members a capital budget is agreed to complete a particular scheme/project
(normally in the annual budgeting setting process). Profiling between years is undertaken
to help understand yearly financial commitments and for members to understand the annual
funding position. Capital scheme slippage will be re-profiled with advice from the
project/budget manager but this will be within the total budget approved for the scheme by
members.

page 45

Agenda Item 9
Report to:

Cabinet

Date of Meeting:

30 September 2020

Public Document:

Yes

Exemption:

None

Review date for
release

None

Subject:

Financial Monitoring Report 2020/21 - Month 5 August 2020

Purpose of report:

This report gives a summary of the Council’s overall financial position for
2020/21 at the end of month five (31 August 2020).
Current monitoring indicates that:


The General Fund Balance is being maintained at or above the
adopted level.
A significant overspend against budget is predicted from a
combination of additional expenditure and reduced income as
result of Covid-19. This overspend is being mitigated through
additional Government Funding, including the recently announced
income guarantee scheme, the healthy financial position of the
General Fund Balance as a result of 2019/20 Outturn position and
steps taken by services. These factors have led to a change in
position whereby it is now considered in year emergency action will
not be required to address the shortfall if members are in
agreement to using the General Fund Balance. This Balance still
maintains within the adopted range, although at the lower end.



Recommendation:

The Housing Revenue Account Balance is being maintained at or
above the adopted level.

1. The variances identified as part of the Revenue and Capital
Monitoring process up to Month 5 be acknowledged.
2. That members agree to use the General Fund Balance to meet
the in year net shortfall as result of Covid-19 currently estimated at
£1.163m

Reason for
recommendation:

The report updates Members on the overall financial position of the
Authority at set periods and includes recommendations where corrective
action is required for the remainder of the financial year.

Officer:

John Symes – Finance Manager, jsymes@eastdevon.gov.uk

Portfolio Holder:

Portfolio Holder for Finance

Financial
implications:

Contained within the report

Legal implications:

Any legal implications are identified in the report and no further comment
is required.
page 46

Equalities impact:

Low Impact

Climate change:

Low Impact

Risk:

Low Risk
In compiling this report we have looked at all large, high risk and volatile
budget areas. Predicted spending patterns have been linked to
operational activity and all material budgets have been subject to
thorough risk assessments by operational managers and finance staff.
Any continuing variances in spending patterns will then be considered as
part of the Financial Plan.

Links to background
information:

.

Link to Council Plan:

Outstanding Council and Council Services

Report in full
1.

Introduction

1.1

The purpose of this monitoring report is to update members of Cabinet on the overall
financial position of the Authority following the end of month five. The report considers
expenditure to date and projections on year end spend to determine if the Council will
maintain it’s spending within budget and maintain the General Fund Balance and the
Housing Revenue Account Balance within the adopted ranges.

2.

General Fund Position as at Month 5 August 2020

2.1

The following table shows the original budget set for the year and any supplementary
estimates approved to date affecting the General Fund position. In year variances have
been identified which are likely to alter the outturn position for the year as detailed in the
table below.
Members have been presented with financial updates during the beginning of the financial
year highlighting the significant implications of Covid-19 on the Council’s finances (briefing
note to all members and a further updated report to Cabinet). This highlighted the
significant impact of additional spend because of various measures and implications of
Covid-19 and a large reduction in income from fees and charges against the budget set.
This is a changing position and is being carefully monitored. The latest position is reflected
in the table below.
The Government have responded in direct funding of authorities, our allocation to date
being £1.710m, they have also introduced a scheme to reimburse Councils for lost income
from fees and charges (75% of lost income against the budget after the first 5% is
deducted) in recognition that authorities rely on this income to pay for essential services.
This scheme and required return has only just been released and we are currently
compiling the necessary data, our initial assessment is that we should be able to reclaim at
least £1.7m. Again this position is reflected in the table below.

page 47

General Fund Position

£000

Original Budget Requirement (set 26/02/20)

12,554

Month 5 predicted over/(under) spend at year end (detailed below)

1,163

Predicted Outturn Position 31/3/2021

13,717

A summary of the predicted over and under spends to the Year End is shown below:

Predicted over / (under) spends

Car Parks – income loss due to CV19
Beach Huts & Chalets – income loss due to CV19

Predicted
Outturn
Variation
£000
1,222

Govt
SFC* Predicted
claim
Net
scheme Variation
£000
£000
(786)
436

231

(163)

68

90

(59)

31

393

(278)

115

91

(60)

31

Green Waste Service – income loss due to CV19

130

(73)

57

Building Control – income loss due to CV19

162

(102)

60

Other fees & charges – income loss due to CV19

529

(180)

349

Net interest (after loans) – net loss due to CV19

200

-

200

80

-

80

Other Grants & Con’t 3rd party/donations loss due
to CV19

224

-

224

COVID-19 additional costs – Homeless
accommodation, mail outs, PPE, signage,
overtime, community group grants

220

-

220

(1,710)

-

(1,710)

Strata savings – additional savings made to assist
partners

(100)

-

(100)

LED – initial request scenario range £0.616m to
£1.276

1,276

-

1,276

Predicted Furlough Funding & other savings e.g.
travel

(103)

-

(103)

Local Land Charges – income loss due to CV19
Manor Pavilion – income loss due to CV19
Licencing – income loss due to CV19

Public Conveniences – additional costs on opening

Additional Government Grant received in year

Non spend grounds maintenance agency staff
budget
Predicted Net Outturn Total Variations General
Fund

(71)
2,864

(71)
(1,701)

*Sales Fees and Charges

2.2

These variations will have the following overall effect on the Council’s General Fund
Balance:

page 48

1,163

£000
General Fund balance as at 1/4/2020
Use of General Fund to balance 2020/21 Budget

(6,395)
0

Net predicted overspend

1,163

Proposed transfer to MTFP risk reserve

2,000

Predicted General Fund Balance 31/03/21

(3,232)

The Council has an adopted range for the General Fund Balance to be within £3m to £3.8m.
The predicted balance is currently within this range and any required action can be taken at
year end (based on approval of MTFP risk reserve transfer).
3.

Housing Revenue Account Position – month 5

3.1

The following table shows the variation against the original budget which will affect the
Housing Revenue Account year end position.
Predicted over / (under) spends

Predicted
Outturn
Variation
£000

Income

607

Responsive Repairs

(640)

Programme Maintenance

(395)

Special Works

(417)

Supervision & Management

322

Other Expenditure

(187)

Major Repairs

(746)

Financing interest on Balances

29

Predicted Outturn Total Variations HRA

(1,427)

Notable items of budget variance are;

3.2



Income lower but materially consistent with prior year



Expenditure significantly under budget primarily due to COVID impacting on the
Council’s ability to carry out certain types of work not possible with COVID
requirements and work restrictions.

The following table shows the original budget surplus set for the year and the total
variations as identified above, which are likely to affect the budget to give a revised
budget deficit for the year.
HRA (Surplus)/Deficit

£000

Original Budget surplus (Council 26/2/20)

(927)

Month 5 predicted net (under)/overspend to year end

(500)

Predicted Budget (Surplus)/Deficit HRA
page 49

(1,427)

The original approved budget generates a surplus of £0.927m in 2020/21. This sum was to
be used to help finance the purchase of properties, continuing with the £5m annual
investment programme (£3.5m from reserves/surplus and £1.5m from RTB receipts).
3.3

The following table shows the effect on HRA Reserve:
£000
HRA balance as at 1/4/2020

(4,059)

Predicted net over / (under) spend to year end

(1,427)

Predicted General Fund Balance 31/03/21

(5,486)

The HRA Balance is required to be maintained within the adopted range of £2.1m and
£3.1m, it is currently being projected to be £5.486m at the end of 2020/21. Other reserves
held by the HRA are contained in the detailed report to Housing Review Board.
3.4

The latest Housing Review Board finance report can be found here.

4.

Capital Programme Position up to Month 5

4.1

Below is the current position estimated for the capital programme which reflects a reprofiling of expenditure taking into account carried forward from the 2019/20 budget.
Capital Programme

£000

Net Capital Programme Budget (Council 26/02/20)
2019/20 outturn position, budget slippage into 2020/21

7,453
8,057

Revised 2020/21 budget

15,510

Capital Programme variations

-

Predicted Capital Budget Requirement Month 5
4.2

15,510

Details of the capital programme financing is given below:
Capital Programme Financing

£000

Predicted Capital Budget Requirement Month 5

15,510

HRA Financing

(4,906)

New Homes Bonus

(2,054)

General Fund Capital Receipts

4.3

£000

(100)

Contribution to/ (use of) Capital Reserve

(2,505)

Net Internal/External Borrowing

(5,945)

The Council currently does not hold a general capital reserve and all funding needs to be
found. The cash required to fund the expenditure of £5.945m can be met from internal cash
page 50

balances or through raising loans, this decision is made in line with Council’s Treasury
Management Strategy. The revenue implications of funding this position has been factored
into the revenue monitoring position.

page 51

Agenda Item 10
Report to:

Cabinet

Date of Meeting 8 October 2020
Document classification: Part A Public Document
Exemption applied: None
Review date for release N/A
Test and Trace Support Payment Scheme
Report summary:
Test and Trace Support Payments have been introduced by Central Government to encourage
people on low incomes who will be financially impacted to self-isolate when they are required to do
so. This in turn will help reduce the transmission of Covid-19 and avoid further social and
economic restrictions. The scheme needs to be live by 12 October 2020 at latest to meet the
government deadline. The Council needs to have in place a policy on how we will administer the
scheme and also approving our approach for dealing with the discretionary payment

Recommendation:
1. To adopt the Test and Trace Support Payments Policies for both the standard (Appendix 2)
and discretionary schemes (Appendix 3).
2. To delegate authority to the Council’s S151 Officer in consultation with the Leader and

Portfolio Holder for Finance to adjust the discretionary policy (Appendix 3) to take account
of changes in government guidance or from experiences in administering the scheme that
has not yet been identified or that we’ve been unable to fully consider when developing this
policy.

Reason for recommendation:
The Council needs to have in place a policy for implementing the Test and Trace Support
Payment Scheme. Due to the limited amount of time we’ve had in developing these schemes from
receiving the guidance we need to be able to make provision to adjust the policy to take account of
experiences that we may have not been able to fully consider when developing the policy which
includes the level of funding for the discretionary scheme which will be a fixed amount.
Officer: Libby Jarrett, Service Lead, Revenues, Benefits & Customer Services
ljarrett@eastdevon.gov.uk 01395 517450
Portfolio(s) (check which apply):
☐ Climate Action
☒ Corporate Services and COVID-19 Response and Recovery
☐ Democracy and Transparency
☐ Economy and Assets
☐ Coast, Country and Environment
☒ Finance
page 52

☐ Strategic Planning
☐ Sustainable Homes and Communities
Financial implications:
The financial implications are detailed in the report. There is a risk with the discretionary element
of the scheme that demand may be greater than funding allocated to the Council. This will be
carefully monitored and the report highlights that further refinement maybe required to the scheme
and that this will be brought to the Portfolio for Finance attention.
Legal implications:
The legal position is detailed in the report and no further comment is required.
Equalities impact Low Impact
Climate change Low Impact
Risk: Low Risk;
Links to background information Department of Health & Social Care Implementation Guide for
Local Authorities
Link to Council Plan:
Priorities (check which apply)
☐ Outstanding Place and Environment
☒ Outstanding Homes and Communities
☐ Outstanding Economic Growth, Productivity, and Prosperity
☒ Outstanding Council and Council Services

1.0

Background

1.1

From 28 September 2020 it became law in England for those that test positive for Covid-19
or who are identified by NHS Test & Trace as a close contact, to self-isolate.

1.2

As part of this new legal requirement the government is providing funding for a new Test &
Trace support payment for people on low incomes who are unable to work while they are
self-isolating; because they cannot work from home and will lose income as a result.

1.3

Outline of scheme:











Scheme will be in two parts. Under the standard scheme Central Government will cover
the cost of the payments. For the discretionary element it will provide separate funding
(upfront for use over the four months of the scheme).
Discretionary scheme is meant for a small minority of people who have low incomes but
for some reason aren’t on one of the qualifying benefits.
Schemes must be live from 12 October 2020 but payments will be payable from 28
September when it becomes law for people to self-isolate (will need to backdate
payments to eligible claimants)
Schemes will currently run until 31 January 2021
District authorities to administer
£500.00 payment for those that are eligible for both the standard and discretionary
schemes
Payment must be made within 3 working days of an eligible claim being made
Multiple claims can be made if someone is required to self-isolate more than once
Claims must be made within 14 days after their period of self-isolation ends
page 53

1.4

The government expects payments to be made within 3 working days of an eligible claim
being received. This means that unless authorities implement a manual faster payment
process they will need to allow two clear days for the payment to reach their bank account
which means claims will need to be assessed and verified the same day. In order to be able
to do this the discretionary scheme needs to be relatively simple to administer.

1.5

Devon Chief Executives and Leaders were keen for district authorities to explore having a
Devon wide approach for awarding the discretionary payments. Details of the approach that
is being proposed by the Devon Revenues & Benefits Managers is set out in appendix 1.

1.6

The level of government funding for East Devon District Council is as follows:




1.7

Standard(main) scheme
Discretionary scheme
Administration funding

£46,500
£27,948.60
£26,919.20

As the payment amount is fixed at £500.00 this equates to 93 eligible claims under the
standard scheme and 55 under the discretionary scheme. This funding covers the period 30
September 2020 to 31 January 2021 which is how long the scheme is open for. Should
numbers exceed this within the main scheme then the government will provide additional
funding. However, for the discretionary scheme this is capped.

2.0 Eligibility
2.1 An individual must:
2.1.1 Standard scheme (government funded)
 have been asked to self-isolate by NHS Test and Trace either because they’ve tested
positive for coronavirus or have recently been in close contact with someone who has
tested positive;
 be employed or self-employed;
 be unable to work from home and will lose income as a result; and
 be currently receiving one of the following benefits - Universal Credit, Working Tax
Credit, income-related Employment and Support Allowance, income-based Jobseeker’s
Allowance, Income Support, Housing Benefit and/or Pension Credit.
2.1.2 Discretionary Scheme



Meet the above top 3 conditions as per standard scheme
Not be in receipt of one of the qualifying benefits but is a low income worker and will
suffer financial hardship as a result of not being able to work while they are selfisolating.

2.2

Local authorities can introduce additional criteria to determine eligibility for discretionary
payment in their area, as long as these operate in addition to, rather than instead of, the
criteria set out above.

3.0

Proposed approach for our schemes

3.1

Standard Scheme - The eligibility criteria for this scheme is determined by government.
The attached policy sets out our approach for how we will administer these claims.

3.2

Discretionary Scheme – In addition to the government eligibility criteria as set out under
section 2.1, it is also recommended that we include the conditions that have been proposed
by the Devon authorities (See appendix 1 – see section 4.2 and section 5 for the rationale).
These conditions have been included in the attached policy which also sets out our
approach for administering claims under this part of the scheme.

3.3

The Test and Trace Payment Scheme has had to be put in place under extremely tight
timelines as we did not receive the first set of guidance until 27 September 2020 and the
funding levels were provided late on Friday 2 October. This means that we may need to
page 54

adjust our policies in order to take account of experiences from administering the scheme
which we may not have identified or been able to fully consider when developing them. This
is why I am recommending that this is delegated to the Councils Section 151 Officer in
consultation with the Leader and Portfolio Holder for Finance to be able to adjust our
scheme.
4.0

Other considerations

4.1

We have already updated our website to promote the Test and Trace Support Payment
Scheme which allows individuals to register now if they think they are eligible to claim.
https://eastdevon.gov.uk/coronavirus-covid-19/test-and-trace-support-payment/test-tracesupport-payment/. We will be updating this further once our policies have been approved
and the new claims form is live. We are also working with our Communications Team on
wider publicity of the scheme.

4.2

As we are also administering the Covid Hardship Scheme (DEFRA & County funded
schemes) this does mean that we can link up support under this scheme where there is
additional financial need or where someone is ineligible under the Test and Trace Payment
Scheme.

4.3

We will closely monitor spending within the Discretionary scheme and if there is concern
that demand is likely to exceed the government funding amount of £27,948.60 then this will
be brought to the attention of the Leader and Finance Portfolio Holder in order for them to
consider possible action.

page 55

Appendix 1

Briefing Paper: Test and Trace Support Payment Scheme
1.0

To update Devon Chief Executives and Leaders on the proposed approach for Devon for awarding
the discretionary payments under the Test & Trace Support Payment Scheme, as agreed in the
meeting of the Devon Revenues & Benefits Managers Group on 1 October 2020.

2.0

Background

2.1

Test and Trace Support Payments have been introduced by Central Government to encourage
people on low incomes who will be financially impacted to self-isolate when they are required to do
so. This in turn will help reduce the transmission of Covid-19 and avoid further social and economic
restrictions.

2.2

The Test and Trace Payment Scheme needs to be live by 12 October 2020 in order to meet the
government deadline. The scheme includes the ability to make discretionary payments to a small
minority of applicants who have a low income but for some reason are not in receipt of a qualifying
benefit.

2.3

Although we have now received further guidance on the Test and Trace Scheme we still don’t know
what each Authority’s funding allocation will be for the discretionary scheme. The national level is
£15 million for the discretionary payments. If each authority was to get an equal amount then this
would equate to circa £70K however it is very unlikely that this would be the case and Devon
authorities may have much less than this average. As the scheme will run until 31 January 2021 this
is not a significant sum of money, and based on the average level of funding, this would equate to
being able to support 140 discretionary payments over the 4 month period.

2.4

The government expects payments to be made within 3 days of an eligible claim being received.
This means that unless authorities implement a manual faster payment process they will need to
allow two clear days for the payment to reach their bank account which means claims will need to
be assessed and verified the same day. In order to be able to do this the discretionary scheme
needs to be relatively simple to administer.

3.0 Government guidance on the discretionary scheme
3.1 The following criteria must be met which is the same as the standard scheme:
Local authorities can make a £500 payment to individuals who:


have been asked to self-isolate by NHS Test and Trace, on or after 28 September but not before
that date, because:
-they have been notified that they have tested positive for Coronavirus, or
-they have been notified that they have recently been in close contact with someone who has
tested positive




be employed or self-employed
be unable to work from home and will lose income as a result,

3.2 In addition to the above the discretionary payment is for individuals:


who are not currently receiving Universal Credit, Working Tax Credit, income-related
Employment and Support Allowance, income-based Jobseeker’s Allowance, Income Support,
Housing Benefit or Pension Credit; and
page 56

 who are on low incomes and will face financial hardship as a result of not being able to work
while they are self-isolating
3.3

Local authorities can introduce additional criteria to determine eligibility for discretionary payments
in their area, as long as these operate in addition to, rather than instead of, the criteria set out
above

4.0

Proposed approach agreed by Devon District authorities:

4.1

All the Devon districts and Torbay Council were represented at the meeting of the Devon Revenues
& Benefits Managers group on agreeing the standard approach to the discretionary payments.

4.2

In addition to the government eligibility criteria we are proposing that the following conditions are
also included in our discretionary scheme:












5.0

A maximum gross earnings threshold of £372 per week. (This equates to 40 hours x £9.30 Real
Living Wage). This means that if someone has earnings above this level then they would not
normally be eligible unless there was an exceptional circumstance.
A minimum number of hours that an individual will need to be working is 16 hours per week.
Anyone normally working less than that would not be eligible.
Maximum capital threshold of £6,000. Anyone with capital above that level would not be eligible.
University students or those in higher education would normally be excluded from applying
Individuals who have applied for a qualifying benefit but have not yet received a decision or have
appealed against a decision not to award a qualifying benefit and are awaiting the outcome of the
appeal will be eligible to claim.
Individuals who are excluded from qualifying benefits by the “Persons from Abroad” provisions will
be eligible to claim
We will allow multiple claims in line with the government’s standard scheme
Where more than one individual in a household meets the conditions they will each be eligible to
claim.
An individual will need to demonstrate that they will suffer financial hardship by having to selfisolate.
Support will be capped to reflect the level of government funding, i.e. funding amount divide by
£500 = number of individuals that can claim support.

Rationale

Criteria
Earnings threshold

Number of hours

The Real Living Wage
(UK living wage)
16 hours per week
that an individual
needs to work.
Capital threshold of
£6,000

Reason
This provides a very simple way to determine quickly that the individual
is on low pay in order to avoid having to carry out a full means test
assessment.
The standard working week tends to be either 37.5 hours or 40 hours.
We have gone for the higher number of hours in order to not exclude
anyone working a 40 hour week.
This is a more generous rate than the national living wage and
therefore will enable more people to access support but still meets the
scheme aims of supporting those on low pay.
This is the threshold that applies in Tax Credits and Housing Benefit.
This supports those in gainful employment and not aimed at those in
casual work.
This scheme is aimed at those who will face financial hardship. Anyone
with savings above this threshold would not be considered to be facing
financial hardship. This capital threshold is what all Devon authorities
page 57

have within their Council Tax Reduction Schemes. It also mirrors the
level that DWP use before applying tariff income.
University students/
The scheme is focussed on low income workers. Students are
those in higher
principally students even where they have some part time work.
education
Vulnerable student groups (with children or disabilities for example)
would be eligible for welfare benefits and therefore supported under
the main scheme.
Applied for one of the The government have identified this group in their advice to local
qualifying benefits but authorities as individuals the discretionary fund needs to support.
not yet had a decision
or appealing against a
decision.
Persons from abroad
The payment is intended to reinforce the public health message to selfprovision
isolate where instructed to. Welfare benefits exclude many overseas
nationals from entitlement but they would equally need to self-isolate
to support the public health strategy.
Multiple claims
Where someone has to self-isolate more than once it’s important that
we treat individuals in-line with the government scheme and that they
are not disadvantaged.

6.0

Other considerations

6.1

It is important to recognise that we may need to adjust our Test and Trace Scheme Payment Policy
in order to take account of experiences from administering the scheme which we may not have
identified or been able to fully consider when developing this policy including the actual level of
funding we will have. The Test and Trace Payment Scheme has had to be put in place under
extremely tight timelines which has involved a significant amount of work in not only developing
policy but also setting up the administration process (online forms, system processes,
communications, etc).

6.2

As the Devon district authorities are all administering the Covid Hardship Scheme (DEFRA & County
funded schemes) this does mean that we can also link up support under this scheme where there is
additional financial need or where someone is ineligible under the Test and Trace Payment Scheme.

page 58

East Devon District Council
Test and Trace Support Payments Scheme

East Devon District Council/ Test & Trace Support Payment Scheme/DRAFT06102020

page 59

1

Version Control

Version

Version date

30092020 September 2020
06102020 October 2020

Revised by

Description

DA
LJ/DA

INITIAL DRAFT
AMENDMENTS

East Devon District Council/ Test & Trace Support Payment Scheme/DRAFT06102020

page 60

2

Contents
Definitions ................................................................................................................................ 5
1.

Background to Self-Isolation and Test and Trace Support Payment Scheme ................... 7

2.

An overview of the Test and Trace Payment scheme (the Standard Scheme). ................ 7

3.

Commencement of the scheme and scheme closure ...................................................... 8

4.

Applying for a Test and Trace Support Payment (the Standard Scheme). ....................... 8

5.

Time limits for making an application for a payment ....................................................... 9

6.

Multiple claims within the household and from the same applicant ............................... 9

7.

The eligibility criteria and evidence required for the Test and Trace Support Payment
(the standard scheme). .................................................................................................. 10
An individual must make a valid application to the Council in the prescribed form and
provide the all evidence and verification required ............................................................ 10
That they are a resident within the Council’s area ............................................................. 10
Have been told to stay at home and self-isolate by NHS Test and Trace, either because
they have tested positive for coronavirus or have recently been in close contact with
someone who has tested positive ...................................................................................... 11
All applicants must be currently employed or self-employed ............................................ 12
Employed ........................................................................................................................ 12
Self Employed ................................................................................................................. 12
Are unable to work from home and will lose income as a result ....................................... 12
Unable to work from home ............................................................................................ 12
Are currently receiving any of the qualifying benefits. ...................................................... 13

8.

How much grant will be paid, methods of payment and timings................................... 14

9.

Notification of Decisions................................................................................................. 14

10.

Implications for other benefits and reductions .......................................................... 14

11.

Review of Decisions .................................................................................................... 14

12.

Complaints .................................................................................................................. 15

13.

The Discretionary Test and Trace Payment Scheme and its relationship with the
Scheme ....................................................................................................................... 15
Standard Scheme ............................................................................................................ 15
Discretionary Scheme ..................................................................................................... 15
Claiming from the schemes ............................................................................................ 15

14.

Funding of the scheme ............................................................................................... 16

15.

Taxation and provision of information to HMRC ........................................................ 16

16.

Managing the risk of fraud ......................................................................................... 16

17.

Recovery of amounts incorrectly paid ........................................................................ 16

East Devon District Council/ Test & Trace Support Payment Scheme/DRAFT06102020

page 61

3

18.

The Council’s duties in relation to self-isolation......................................................... 16

19.

Delegated Powers....................................................................................................... 17

20.

Data Protection and use of data ................................................................................. 17

East Devon District Council/ Test & Trace Support Payment Scheme/DRAFT06102020

page 62

4

Definitions
The following definitions are used within this document:
‘Applicant’; means the individual making an application for a payment under this scheme;
‘Contact Tracing and Advice Service (CTAS)’; means the web-based system used by Public
Health England to contact and trace individuals who are required to self-isolate;
‘CTAS Account ID’; means the unique number provided by Public Heath England through the
Contact Tracing and Advice Service (CTAS);
‘COVID-19’; means the infectious disease caused by the most recently discovered
coronavirus;
‘Housing Benefit’; means the benefit administered by local authorities under either the
Housing Benefit Regulations 2006 or the Housing Benefit (Persons who have attained the
qualifying age for state pension credit) 2006;
‘income-related Employment and Support Allowance’; means the means-tested
Employment and Support Allowance administered by the Department for Work and Pensions
under the Welfare Reform Act 2007;
‘income-based Jobseeker’s Allowance’; means the means-tested Jobseekers Allowance
administered by the Department for Work and Pensions under the Jobseekers Act 1995;
Income Support’; means the means-tested Income Support administered by the Department
for Work and Pensions under the Income Support (General) Regulations 1987;
‘NHS Test and Trace’; means the service provided to the National Health Service in England,
established in May 2020 to track and help prevent the spread of COVID-19;
‘Pension Credit’; means the means-tested Guarantee or Savings Credit administered by the
Department for Work and Pensions under the State Pension Credit Regulations 2002;
‘Qualifying benefit’; means any of the following benefits: Housing Benefit, Income support,
income-based jobseeker’s Allowance, income-related Employment and Support Allowance,
Working Tax Credit or Universal Credit;
‘Self-isolation, Self-isolate’; means the legal requirement for an individual to self-isolate
when told to by NHS Test and Trace or the NHS COVID-19 app and the legal duty to self-isolate
under the Health Protection (Coronavirus, Restrictions) (Self-Isolation) (England) Regulations
2020 which came into force on 28th September 2020;
‘Test and Trace Support Payment Scheme’ (‘Standard Scheme’); means the Standard
Scheme introduced by Government on 28th September and administered by Local Authorities;
‘Test and Trace Discretionary Payments Scheme’ (‘Discretionary Scheme’); means the Test
and Trace Discretionary Payments Scheme which has been agreed by the Council and which
may be available for individuals who are unable to access the ‘Standard Scheme’.
‘Universal Credit’ means the means-tested Universal Credit administered by the Department
for Work and Pensions under the Universal Credit Regulations 2013;

East Devon District Council/ Test & Trace Support Payment Scheme/DRAFT06102020

page 63

5

‘Working Tax Credit’; means the means-tested benefit administered by Her Majesty’s
Revenues and Customs under the Working Tax Credit (Entitlement and Maximum Rate)
Regulations 2002.

East Devon District Council/ Test & Trace Support Payment Scheme/DRAFT06102020

page 64

6

1.

Background to Self-Isolation and Test and Trace Support Payment
Scheme

1.1

From 28th September 2020, Government has changed the legislation so that certain
people will have to self-isolate due to the current COVID-19 crisis.

1.2

A package of legislative measures has been introduced both to ensure that those who
are required to self-isolate, do so and, that those on a low income, receive a payment
to assist their finances and to encourage compliance with the legislation.

1.3

The Council, together with Government, recognises that self-isolation is one of the
most powerful tools for controlling the transmission of the Covid-19 virus and this
scheme document details who will be eligible and how the Test and Trace Support
Payment will be made. It also outlines the approach the Council will take in
determining whether a payment will be made or not.

1.4

This document, which covers the Standard Scheme, should be read alongside the
Council’s Test and Trace Discretionary Support scheme which may be available to
individuals who do not qualify for a payment under the standard scheme.

2.

An overview of the Test and Trace Payment scheme (the standard
scheme).

2.1

From 28th September 2020, individuals will be entitled to a Test and Trace Support
Payment of £500 from the Council if they meet all the eligibility criteria listed below:
(a) Make an application to the Council in the prescribed form and provide all the
evidence and verification required;
(b) Are a resident within the Council’s area;
(c) Have been told to stay at home and self-isolate by NHS Test and Trace, either
because they have tested positive for coronavirus or have recently been in close
contact with someone who has tested positive;
(d) Are employed or self-employed;
(e) Are unable to work from home and will lose income as a result; and
(f) Are currently receiving any of the following ‘qualifying benefit’s:
• Universal Credit;
• Working Tax Credit;
• income-related Employment and Support Allowance;
• income-based Jobseeker’s Allowance;
• Income Support;
• Housing Benefit; or

East Devon District Council/ Test & Trace Support Payment Scheme/DRAFT06102020

page 65

7

•

Pension Credit.

2.2

This particular scheme is designed for those individuals (applicants) who:
• meet the standard conditions 2.1 (a) to (e) above;
• are in receipt of one of the qualifying benefits listed in 2.1(f); and
• comply with the self-isolation requirements laid down by Government;

2.3

Where individuals meet all the requirements but are not in receipt of a qualifying
benefit (2.1 (f)), no payment can be made; however, they may be able to apply for a
discretionary payment under the Council’s Test and Trace Discretionary Payments
Scheme which is available on the Council’s website
www.eastdevon.gov.uk/coronavirus-covid-19/test-and-trace-support-payment/testtrace-support-payment/

2.4

Individuals will not be entitled to apply for both a payment under the Standard
Scheme and under the Council’s Discretionary Scheme.

3. Commencement of the scheme and scheme closure
Commencement
3.1

This scheme is available to all individuals who meet the eligibility criteria and
who are told to self-isolate on or after 28th September 2020.

3.2

Individuals who are required to self-isolate before 28th September 2020 will not be
eligible for a payment even if the self-isolation period continues after 28th September
2020.

Scheme closure
3.3

At the present time, Government has stated that this Standard Scheme will be
available until 31st January 2021.

4.

Applying for a Test and Trace Support Payment (the Standard
Scheme).

4.1

Individuals who are resident within the Council’s area will be entitled to make an
application for a Test and Trace Support Payment under this scheme. In all cases, the
‘applicant’ will be required to answer all of the questions asked and provide the
information required by the Council in the specified timescale.

4.2

In order to receive a payment, all applicants must meet the full eligibility criteria,
details of which are shown within Section 6 of this scheme. The applicant will be
required to self-verify certain criteria and also confirm that they will comply
with the self-isolation requirements set by Government.

East Devon District Council/ Test & Trace Support Payment Scheme/DRAFT06102020

page 66

8

4.3

Where the applicant fails to meet the eligibility criteria, they will not receive a
payment and will be informed of this by the Council, either at the point of application
or as soon as practicable thereafter.

4.4

Where the applicant is successful, the Council will notify them accordingly and make
payment in line with the timings and methods shown in Section 8.

4.5

Applications can only be accepted from individuals who are resident in the Council’s
area.

4.6

Applications will be accepted from a third party in respect of any individual who meets
all the eligibility criteria for a payment. However, the following should be noted that
any payment must only be made by the Council to the person who is self- isolating.
No payment will be made to a third party under any circumstance.

4.7

All applications shall be made online using the Council’s dedicated webpage
www.eastdevon.gov.uk/coronavirus-covid-19/test-and-trace-support-payment/testtrace-support-payment/There are no paper or other types of application processes;
however, should individuals experience difficulties in making any application, they
should contact the Council on 01404 515616.

5. Time limits for making an application for a payment
5.1

No application for a payment can be made before the 28th September 2020 or for
any individual who has been required to self-isolate before 28th September 2020.

5.2

Eligible individuals can apply for a Test and Trace Support Payment at any time up to
14 days after their period of self-isolation ended. The Council will not accept any
applications after this point.

5.3

Where an individual has been required to self-isolate on or after 28th September but
before the Council’s scheme opened on 12th October 2020, an application for a
backdated discretionary payment must be made by 26th October 2020 (14 days after
commencement of scheme).

6.

Multiple claims within the household and from the same applicant

6.1

Individuals in the same household can each make an application to receive a Test
and Trace Support Payment, if they each meet the eligibility criteria in full.

6.2

An individual may make an application more than once but only:
• If the individual is told to self-isolate multiple times; and
• they meet the eligibility criteria for each individual application; and
• the periods of self-isolation do not overlap.

East Devon District Council/ Test & Trace Support Payment Scheme/DRAFT06102020

page 67

9

6.3

The Council is mindful that this can be confusing for applicants and it will be essential,
where multiple applications are made by an individual, to ensure correct eligibility.
Therefore, a new application will need to be made for each distinct period of selfisolation.

7.

The eligibility criteria and evidence required for the Test and Trace
Support Payment (the Standard Scheme).

7.1

For payment to be made under this Discretionary Scheme, all of the criteria must be
met. As with the application form itself, all evidence will need to be provided
electronically. The on-line form provides the capability for all documents, evidence
and photographs to be uploaded.

7.2

Where documentation is only held in ‘hard copy’ or paper form, the Council will accept
digital images or photographs provided they show all the relevant information.

7.3

The Council will keep all information supplied by applicants, secure and in accordance
with Data Protection legislation.

An individual must make a valid application to the Council in the prescribed form and
provide the all evidence and verification required
7.4

As mentioned in Section 4, a valid application must be made via the Council’s
website:
www.eastdevon.gov.uk/coronavirus-covid-19/test-and-trace-support-payment/testtrace-support-payment/ All applicants will be required to provide details sufficient to
identify themselves, their address and to allow the Council to contact them including:
• Full name;
• Address;
• National Insurance Number;
• Date of birth;
• Telephone number; and
• Email address.

7.5

In addition to the above, all applicants will be required to submit a copy of their
current bank statement(s) in order to provide details of the bank account number and
sort code of the account into which a payment would be made.

That they are a resident within the Council’s area
7.6

The applicant will be required to verify that they have their sole or main residence in
the Council’s area. The Council will check other records held (and make other
enquiries where appropriate) to determine this.

East Devon District Council/ Test & Trace Support Payment Scheme/DRAFT06102020

page 68

10

7.7

Evidence supplied in support of the application will be cross checked against the claim
address. Where necessary, the Council will ask the applicant to provide additional
evidence of residence.

Have been told to stay at home and self-isolate by NHS Test and Trace, either because
they have tested positive for coronavirus or have recently been in close contact with
someone who has tested positive
7.8

A key requirement of the scheme is that the applicant has been instructed by the NHS
Test and Trace to stay at home and self- isolate either because:
• they have tested positive for COVID-19 (coronavirus); or
• have recently been in close contact with someone who has tested positive.

7.9

All applicants will be required to provide the 8-digit unique ID number which has been
provided to them by NHS Test and Trace.

7.10

For information, the NHS Test and Trace service uses the Contact Tracing and Advice
Service (CTAS) to record information about people who have tested positive for
COVID-19 and their contacts. The CTAS Account ID is an 8-character identifier unique
to each case (e.g. 3b1a3015c). Most individuals who test positive for COVID-19 or are
a contact of someone who has had a positive test, will receive a digital invitation from
the CTAS system to undertake the contact tracing journey.

7.11

All cases and contacts who have completed the contact tracing journey (including
those who were ineligible for the digital invitation such as children or individuals with
a landline number only) will receive a citizen advice message upon completion of the
NHS Test and Trace questionnaire. The citizen message (sent either via a text
message/email or postal service for people with no access to mobile phone or email)
contains the 8-character Account ID.

7.12

The Council will check that the applicant has a valid Account ID produced by the
Contact Tracing and Advice Service. Only this number will allow an application to be
processed.

7.13

The Council will not make payment to anyone who does not have a valid
notification (Account ID) from NHS Test and Trace. It should be noted that there is a
legal duty to self-isolate which only applies to people who have been told to selfisolate by NHS Test and Trace.

7.14

The Council will not accept a notification from the NHS Isolation Note service. Where
the applicant has provided this only, they will be given an opportunity to provide a
valid NHS Test and Trace notification if they have one.

East Devon District Council/ Test & Trace Support Payment Scheme/DRAFT06102020

page 69

11

7.15

This scheme does not cover people who are self-isolating after returning to the UK
from abroad, unless they have tested positive for COVID-19 (coronavirus) or have
been instructed to self-isolate by NHS Test and Trace.

All applicants must be currently employed or self-employed
7.16

Only those applicants who are currently employed or currently self-employed will be
entitled to claim a Test and Trace Support Payment. For the sake of clarity, this scheme
requires all applicants to provide sufficient evidence of their current employment or
self-employment status. In the case of employed applicants, full details of their
employer must be given on the application form including contact numbers.

7.17

The Council will also require applicants to provide proof such as listed below:

Employed
• Current wages or salary slips;
• Employment contract; or
• Letter from the employer confirming current employment.
Self Employed
• Self-assessment form;
• Details of HMRC registration as self-employed;
• Current accounts; or
• Current accounts and trading statements

7.18

The above list is not exhaustive.

7.19

As this is an essential requirement in order for a Test and Trace Support Payment to
be made, the applicant must satisfy the Council that they meet this criterion.

Are unable to work from home and will lose income as a result
7.20

All applicants will have to certify on the application form that they are:
• Unable to work from home; and
• Will lose income as a result.

7.21

The Council will need to be satisfied that any applicants meet these conditions in
full.

Unable to work from home

7.22

The Council will require applicants to give details about the nature of their work and
whether they can undertake this work from home.

East Devon District Council/ Test & Trace Support Payment Scheme/DRAFT06102020

page 70

12

7.23

Only those applicants that cannot work from home whilst self-isolating will meet the
criteria and therefore, each applicant will not only be required to verify the fact, but
also provide details of the reasons why this is the case, together with details of the
type of work that they would normally undertake.

7.24

This criterion applies whether an applicant is either employed or self-employed and
Government has provided a number of examples as follows:
• An applicant with a single job whose employer continued to pay them a full wage
while they self-isolated would not meet the criteria;
• An applicant whose employer paid them a reduced wage while they self-isolated
would meet the criteria (as they have lost income); and
• An applicant with two part-time jobs who continued to be paid a full wage by one
employer, but whose other employer did not pay them while self-isolating, would
be eligible.

Are currently receiving any of the qualifying benefits.
7.25

The final criterion is that the applicant must be in receipt of one of the following
qualifying benefits:
• Universal Credit;
• Working Tax Credit;
• income-related Employment and Support Allowance;
• income-based Jobseeker’s Allowance;
• Income Support;
• Housing Benefit; or
• Pension Credit.

7.26

Applicants must be actually in receipt of the listed benefits. Each applicant will be
required to verify that they are in receipt of one of the benefits and provide
evidence of that to the Council. Evidence will need to be provided electronically but
typically could be copies of bank statements showing the payments, confirmation of
benefit entitlement or award /payment summaries (as in the case of Universal Credit).
The Council will accept ‘screenshots’ of any online benefit account.

7.27

Where an applicant has yet to apply for a qualifying benefit; is awaiting a decision on
a benefit; is currently appealing a negative decision; or is unable to apply for a
qualifying benefit, they will not be entitled to a payment under the Standard Scheme
and will be directed to apply for a payment under the Council’s Test and Trace
Discretionary Payment Scheme.

7.28

The Council will verify the current receipt of a qualifying benefit with the Department
for Work and Pensions (DWP) and Her Majesty’s Revenues and Customs (HMRC) as
appropriate.

East Devon District Council/ Test & Trace Support Payment Scheme/DRAFT06102020

page 71

13

8.

How much grant will be paid, methods of payment and timings.

8.1

Where an applicant meets all of the eligibility criteria, a single payment of £500 shall
be paid for each period of self-isolation. Payments will be made direct to the
applicant’s bank account within 3 working days of an eligible and complete claim being
made.

8.2

Where further information or evidence is required from the applicant, the Council will
look to make payment within 3 working days starting with the date when all of the
required information is received.

8.3

Full details of the applicant’s bank account must be supplied on the application form
and this will be cross checked with the copies of the bank statements provided as part
of the verification process.

8.4

As required by Government, payments can only be made to the applicant’s bank
account. No payments can be made to third parties whatsoever.

8.5

The Council is aware that in some cases, applicants may be overdrawn and may not
be able to gain access to the payment. In these cases, the applicant may apply for
protection. This protection is called a 'first right of appropriation of funds order'.
More details of this can be obtained from the Councils website
https://www.council.gov.uk/can-a-bank-take-my-payment-to-pay-my-overdraft/ or
from Citizens Advice.

9.
9.1

Notification of Decisions
Applications will be considered by officers of the Council and all decisions made by the
Council shall be notified to the applicant either in writing or by email.

10. Implications for other benefits and reductions
10.1

The Council has been advised by the Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) that
the Test and Trace Support Payment will be disregarded for the purposes of all meanstested benefits.

10.2

The Council has decided that any payment made under this scheme shall not affect
entitlement to Council Tax Reduction.

11. Review of Decisions
11.1

Whilst there is no statutory appeal process, the Council will operate an internal review
process and will accept an applicant’s request for an appeal of its decision by a senior
officer.

East Devon District Council/ Test & Trace Support Payment Scheme/DRAFT06102020

page 72

14

11.2

All such requests must be made in writing to the Council, within 3 days of the Council’s
decision, and should state the reasons why the applicant is aggrieved with the decision
of the Council. New information may be submitted at this stage to support the
applicant’s appeal. The application will be reconsidered as soon as practicable, and
the applicant informed in writing or by email of the decision.

12. Complaints
12.1

The Council’s ‘Complaints Procedure’ (available on the Councils website) will be
applied in the event of any complaint received about this scheme.

13. The Discretionary Test and Trace Payment Scheme and its
relationship with the Standard Scheme
Standard Scheme

13.1

This ‘Standard’ Scheme has been determined by criteria set down by Government and
is primarily aimed at all applicants who are working or self-employed; are unable to
work from home and will therefore have a reduction in income and are in receipt of
certain qualifying benefits (Universal Credit; Working Tax Credit; Income-related
Employment and Support Allowance; income-based Jobseeker’s Allowance; Income
Support; Housing Benefit; or Pension Credit).

13.2

Being in receipt of one of those benefits is essential in order for a payment to be made.

Discretionary Scheme

13.3

The Council’s Test and Trace Discretionary Payments Scheme is for any individual who
meets all the required criteria except that they are not currently in receipt of a
qualifying benefit. The reason for this could be, for example, that a claim for a benefit
has not yet been made or that the individual, whilst normally resident in the UK, is
unable to gain access to public funds.

13.4

Details of the Council’s Test and Trace Discretionary Payment Scheme can be found at
www.eastdevon.gov.uk/coronavirus-covid-19/test-and-trace-support-payment/testtrace-support-payment/

Claiming from the schemes

13.5

Individuals who are entitled to a payment from the Standard Scheme are unable to
make a claim from the Council’s discretionary scheme.

13.6

However, an applicant who is refused a ‘Standard Scheme’ payment on the basis that
they meet all the criteria except that they are not in receipt of a qualifying benefit,
will be directed to make an application for a discretionary payment.

East Devon District Council/ Test & Trace Support Payment Scheme/DRAFT06102020

page 73

15

14. Funding of the scheme
14.1

Government has confirmed that it will reimburse the Council for all payments
correctly made under this scheme.

15. Taxation and provision of information to HMRC
15.1

The Council has been informed by Government that all payments under this scheme
are taxable. However, the payments will not be subject to National Insurance
contributions.

15.2

The Council does not accept any responsibility in relation to an applicant’s tax
liabilities and all applicants should make their own enquiries to establish any tax
position.

15.3

All applicants should note that the Council is required to inform Her Majesty’s
Revenue and Customs (HMRC) of all payments made to individuals.

16. Managing the risk of fraud
16.1

Neither the Council, nor Government will accept deliberate manipulation of the
scheme and fraud. Any applicant caught falsifying information to gain payments will
face prosecution and any payment issued will be recovered from them and this may
also include other recovery costs.

16.2

Applicants should note that, where a Test and Trace Support Payment is paid by the
Council, details of each individual applicant will be passed to Government. Applicants
should also note that the Council utilises a number of databases and Government
systems to verify information in connection with any applications submitted.

17. Recovery of amounts incorrectly paid
17.1

If it is established that any Test and Trace Support Payment has been made incorrectly
due to incorrect information provided to the Council by an applicant or their
representative(s), the Council will look to recover the amount in full.

18. The Council’s duties in relation to self-isolation
18.1

The duty to self-isolate is an important one. Ensuring infected individuals and their
close contacts isolate is one of our most powerful tools for controlling transmission.

18.2

We know that someone with the virus can remain infectious to other people for up to
10 days after developing symptoms. It can take up to 14 days for individuals to develop
coronavirus symptoms after they catch the virus, and in this time, they can
unknowingly pass it on to others, even if they don’t have symptoms.

East Devon District Council/ Test & Trace Support Payment Scheme/DRAFT06102020

page 74

16

18.3

Self-isolating helps prevent family, friends and the community from contracting
coronavirus, as well as helping to protect the health and care system.

18.4

The changes announced by Government on 20th September 2020 and brought into
force on 28th September 2020 (as well as providing for the Test and Trace Support
payments scheme):
• introduce a new legal duty on individuals to self-isolate if someone tests positive
or is identified as a contact by NHS Test and Trace;
• introduce penalties for those breaking the rules, including fines of at least £1,000
and up to a maximum of £10,000 for repeated or very serious offences; and
• place a new legal obligation on employers that they must not knowingly enable
or encourage their employees to break the law on self-isolation.

18.5

As part of this, the Council has a duty If it becomes aware, either through postpayment verification checks or through other means, that someone has not selfisolated, to refer the case to the police.

18.6

The Council has been informed by Government that, in order to ensure compliance
with the new legislation NHS Test and Trace call handlers will be increasing contact
with those self-isolating. Police resources will be used to check compliance in highest
incidence areas and in high-risk groups, based on local intelligence including acting on
instances where third parties have identified others who have tested positive, but are
not self-isolating.

18.7

The Council will continue to focus on the principle of encouraging, educating and
supporting self-compliance.

19. Delegated Powers
19.1

The Council has implemented this scheme in line with Government requirements and
guidance.

19.2

Officers of the Council will administer the scheme and the Section 151 Officer is
authorised by Cabinet to make technical scheme amendments to ensure it continues
to meet the criteria set by the Council and, in line with Central Government guidance.

20. Data Protection and use of data
20.1

All information and data provided by businesses shall be dealt with in accordance with
the Council’s Data Protection policy and Privacy Notices which are available on the
Council’s website.

East Devon District Council/ Test & Trace Support Payment Scheme/DRAFT06102020

page 75

17

East Devon District Council
Test and Trace Discretionary Payments
Scheme

East Devon District Council/ Test & Trace Discretionary Payment Scheme/DRAFT2 06102020

page 76

1

Version Control

Version

Version date

01102020 September 2020
05102020 October 2020
06102020 October 2020

Revised
by
DA
LJ/DA
LJ/DA

Description
INITIAL DRAFT
AMEDMENTS LJ/DA
AMEDMENTS LJ/DA

East Devon District Council/ Test & Trace Discretionary Payment Scheme/DRAFT2 06102020

page 77

2

Contents
Definitions ................................................................................................................................ 5
1.

Background to Self-Isolation and the Test and Trace Payments ...................................... 7

2.

An overview of the Test and Trace Discretionary Payments Scheme (the Discretionary
Scheme). ........................................................................................................................... 7

3.

Commencement of the scheme and scheme closure ...................................................... 8

4.

Applying for a Test and Trace Discretionary Payment (the Discretionary Scheme). ........ 9

5.

Time limits for making an application for a payment ....................................................... 9

6.

Multiple claims within the household and from the same applicant ............................. 10

7.

The eligibility criteria and evidence required for a Test and Trace Discretionary
Payment. ........................................................................................................................ 10
An individual must make a valid application to the Council in the prescribed form and
provide the all evidence and verification required ............................................................ 10
That they are a resident within the Council’s area ............................................................. 11
Have been told to stay at home and self-isolate by NHS Test and Trace, either because
they have tested positive for coronavirus or have recently been in close contact with
someone who has tested positive ...................................................................................... 11
All applicants must be currently employed or self-employed ............................................ 12
Employed ........................................................................................................................ 12
Self Employed ................................................................................................................. 12
Are NOT currently receiving any of the following benefits. ............................................... 13
Are unable to work from home and will lose income as a result and will face financial
hardship as a result of not being able to work while they are self-isolating ...................... 13
Meet the Council’s additional criteria for discretionary payments .................................... 14

8.

How much discretionary payment will be paid, methods of payment and timings. .. 15

9.

Notification of Decisions ............................................................................................. 15

10.

Implications for other benefits and reductions .......................................................... 15

11.

Review of Decisions .................................................................................................... 16

12.

Complaints .................................................................................................................. 16

13.

The Test and Trace Discretionary Payments Scheme and its relationship with the
Standard Scheme ........................................................................................................ 16
Standard Scheme ............................................................................................................ 16
Discretionary Scheme ..................................................................................................... 16
Claiming from the schemes ............................................................................................ 17

14.

Funding of the Discretionary Scheme......................................................................... 17

15.

Taxation and provision of information to HMRC ........................................................ 17

East Devon District Council/ Test & Trace Discretionary Payment Scheme/DRAFT2 06102020

page 78

3

16.

Managing the risk of fraud ......................................................................................... 17

17.

Recovery of amounts incorrectly paid ........................................................................ 18

18.

The Council’s duties in relation to self-isolation......................................................... 18

19.

Delegated Powers....................................................................................................... 19

20.

Data Protection and use of data ................................................................................. 19

East Devon District Council/ Test & Trace Discretionary Payment Scheme/DRAFT2 06102020

page 79

4

Definitions
The following definitions are used within this document:
‘Additional Eligibility Criteria’; means the additional criteria decided by the Council that need
to be met, in order to receive a payment under the Council’s Test and Trace Discretionary
Payments Scheme. These will be in addition to the standard criteria and are allowable under
Government guidance;
‘Applicant’; means the individual making an application for a payment under this scheme;
‘Contact Tracing and Advice Service (CTAS)’; means the web-based system used by Public
Health England to contact and trace individuals who are required to self-isolate;
‘CTAS Account ID’; means the unique number provided by Public Heath England through the
Contact Tracing and Advice Service (CTAS);
‘COVID-19’; means the infectious disease caused by the most recently discovered
coronavirus;
‘face financial hardship’; a key criterion of the Test and Trace Discretionary Payments Scheme
is that all applicants will, if not for the payment, face financial hardship solely due to their
need to self-isolate;
‘Housing Benefit’; means the benefit administered by local authorities under either the
Housing Benefit Regulations 2006 or the Housing Benefit (Persons who have attained the
qualifying age for state pension credit) 2006;
‘income-related Employment and Support Allowance’; means the means-tested
Employment and Support Allowance administered by the Department for Work and Pensions
under the Welfare Reform Act 2007;
‘income-based Jobseeker’s Allowance’; means the means-tested Jobseekers Allowance
administered by the Department for Work and Pensions under the Jobseekers Act 1995;
Income Support’; means the means-tested Income Support administered by the Department
for Work and Pensions under the Income Support (General) Regulations 1987;
‘NHS Test and Trace’; means the service provided to the National Health Service in England,
established in May 2020 to track and help prevent the spread of COVID-19;
‘Pension Credit’; means the means-tested Guarantee or Savings Credit administered by the
Department for Work and Pensions under the State Pension Credit Regulations 2002;
‘Qualifying benefit’; means any of the following benefits: Housing Benefit, Income support,
income-based Jobseeker’s Allowance, income-related Employment and Support Allowance,
Working Tax Credit or Universal Credit;
‘Self-isolation, Self-isolate’; means the legal requirement for an individual to self-isolate
when told to by NHS Test and Trace or the NHS COVID-19 app and the legal duty to self-isolate
under the Health Protection (Coronavirus, Restrictions) (Self-Isolation) (England) Regulations
2020 which came into force on 28th September 2020;
‘Test and Trace Support Payment Scheme’ (‘Standard Scheme’); means the Standard
Scheme introduced by Government on 28th September and administered by Local Authorities;

East Devon District Council/ Test & Trace Discretionary Payment Scheme/DRAFT2 06102020

page 80

5

‘Test and Trace Discretionary Payments Scheme’ (‘Discretionary Scheme’); means the Test
and Trace Discretionary Payments Scheme which has been agreed by the Council and which
may be available for individuals who are unable to access the ‘Standard Scheme’.
‘Universal Credit’ means the means-tested Universal Credit administered by the Department
for Work and Pensions under the Universal Credit Regulations 2013;
‘Working Tax Credit’; means the means-tested benefit administered by Her Majesty’s
Revenues and Customs under the Working Tax Credit (Entitlement and Maximum Rate)
Regulations 2002.

East Devon District Council/ Test & Trace Discretionary Payment Scheme/DRAFT2 06102020

page 81

6

1. Background to Self-Isolation and the Test and Trace Payments
1.1

From 28th September 2020, Government has changed the legislation so that certain
people will have to self-isolate due to the current COVID-19 crisis.

1.2

A package of legislative measures has been introduced to ensure that those who are
required to self-isolate, do so and that those on a low income receive a payment to
assist their finances and to encourage compliance with the legislation.

1.3

The Council, together with Government, recognises that self-isolation is one of the
most powerful tools for controlling the transmission of the COVID-19 virus. The
Government has set down the requirements for two payment schemes to be set up
by the Council as follows:
(a) The Test and Trace Support Payments Scheme (the Standard Scheme) for those
eligible applicants who are in receipt of Housing Benefit, Income support, incomebased Jobseeker’s Allowance, income-related Employment and Support
Allowance, Working Tax Credit or Universal Credit (the qualifying benefits); and
(b) The Test and Trace Discretionary Payments Scheme (the Discretionary Scheme)
for those applicants who are not in receipt of any of the qualifying benefits but
who are on a low income and will face financial hardship as a result of not being
able to work while they are self-isolating.

1.4

This document details who will be eligible for a payment under the Test and Trace
Discretionary Payments Scheme.

1.5

Any applicant who is in receipt of a qualifying benefit, should apply for a payment
under the standard scheme details of which are available at:
www.eastdevon.gov.uk/coronavirus-covid-19/test-and-trace-support-payment/testtrace-support-payment/

2. An overview of the Test and Trace Discretionary Payments
Scheme (the Discretionary Scheme).
2.1

From 28th September 2020, individuals will be entitled to a payment of £500 from the
Council’s Test and Trace Discretionary Payments Scheme if they meet the eligibility
criteria listed below:
(a) Make an application to the Council in the prescribed form and provide all the
evidence and verification required;
(b) Are a resident within the Council’s area;

East Devon District Council/ Test & Trace Discretionary Payment Scheme/DRAFT2 06102020

page 82

7

(c) Have been told to stay at home and self-isolate by NHS Test and Trace, either
because they have tested positive for coronavirus or have recently been in close
contact with someone who has tested positive;
(d) Are employed or self-employed;
(e) Are unable to work from home and will lose income as a result;
(f) Are NOT currently receiving any of the following benefits:
• Universal Credit;
• Working Tax Credit;
• income-related Employment and Support Allowance;
• income-based Jobseeker’s Allowance;
• Income Support;
• Housing Benefit; or
• Pension Credit; and
(g) Meet the Council’s addition criteria for a discretionary payment.
2.2

This particular scheme is designed for those individuals (applicants) who:
• meet the standard conditions 2.1 (a) to (g) above;
• are not receiving a benefit listed in 2.1(f); and
• comply with the self-isolation requirements laid down by Government;

2.3

Where individuals meet all the requirements but are in receipt of a benefit stated in
2.1 (f), no payment can be made under the Discretionary Scheme; however,
they may be able to apply for payment under the Standard Scheme which is available
on the Council’s website
www.eastdevon.gov.uk/coronavirus-covid-19/test-and-trace-support-payment/testtrace-support-payment/

2.4

Individuals will NOT be entitled to apply for both a payment under the Standard
Scheme and under the Council’s Discretionary Scheme.

3. Commencement of the scheme and scheme closure
Commencement
3.1

This scheme is available to all individuals who meet the eligibility criteria for a
discretionary payment and who are told to self-isolate on or after 28th September
2020.

3.2

Individuals who are required to self-isolate before 28th September 2020 will not be
eligible for a payment even if the self-isolation period continues after 28th September
2020.

East Devon District Council/ Test & Trace Discretionary Payment Scheme/DRAFT2 06102020

page 83

8

Scheme closure
3.3

At the present time, Government has stated that this Discretionary Scheme (and the
Standard Scheme) will be available until 31st January 2021.

4. Applying for a Test and Trace Discretionary Payment (the
Discretionary Scheme).
4.1

Individuals who are resident within the Council’s area may make an application for a
Test and Trace Discretionary Payment under this scheme. In all cases, the ‘applicant’
will be required to answer all of the questions asked and provide the
information required by the Council in the specified timescale.

4.2

In order to receive a payment, all applicants must meet the full eligibility criteria,
details of which are shown within Section 6 of this scheme. The applicant will be
required to self-verify certain criteria and also confirm that they will comply
with the self-isolation requirements set by Government.

4.3

Where the applicant fails to meet the eligibility criteria, they will not receive a
payment and will be informed of this by the Council, either at the point of application
or as soon as practicable thereafter.

4.4

Where the applicant is successful, the Council will notify them accordingly and make
payment in line with the timings and methods shown in Section 8.

4.5

Applications can only be accepted from individuals who are resident in the Council’s
area.

4.6

Applications will be accepted from a third party in respect of any individual who meets
all the eligibility criteria for a payment. However, the following should be noted that
any payment must only be made by the Council to the person who is self- isolating.
No payment will be made to a third party under any circumstance.

4.7

All applications shall be made online using the Council’s dedicated webpage:
www.eastdevon.gov.uk/coronavirus-covid-19/test-and-trace-support-payment/testtrace-support-payment/. There are no paper or other types of application processes;
however, should individuals experience difficulties in making any application, they
should contact the Council on 01404 515616

5. Time limits for making an application for a payment
5.1

No application for a discretionary payment can be made before the 28th September
2020 or for any individual who has been required to self-isolate before 28th September
2020.

East Devon District Council/ Test & Trace Discretionary Payment Scheme/DRAFT2 06102020

page 84

9

5.2

Eligible individuals can apply for a Test and Trace Discretionary Payment at any time
up to 14 days after their period of self-isolation ended. The Council will not
accept any applications after this point.

5.3

Where an individual has been required to self-isolate on or after 28th September but
before the Council’s scheme opened on 12th October 2020, an application for a
backdated discretionary payment must be made by 26th October 2020 (14 days after
commencement of scheme).

6. Multiple claims within the household and from the same
applicant
6.1

Individuals in the same household can each make an application to receive a Test
and Trace Discretionary Payment, if they each meet all the eligibility criteria in full.

6.2
•
•
•
6.3

An individual may make an application more than once but only:
If the individual is told to self-isolate multiple times; and
they meet the eligibility criteria for each individual application; and
the periods of self-isolation do not overlap.
The Council is mindful that this can be confusing for applicants and it will be essential,
where multiple applications are made by an individual, to ensure correct eligibility.
Therefore, a new application will need to be made for each distinct period of selfisolation.

7. The eligibility criteria and evidence required for a Test and Trace
Discretionary Payment.
7.1

For payment to be made under this Discretionary Scheme, all of the criteria must be
met. As with the application form itself, all evidence will need to be provided
electronically. The on-line form provides the capability for all documents, evidence
and photographs to be uploaded.

7.2

Where documentation is only held in ‘hard copy’ or paper form, the Council will accept
digital images or photographs provided they show all the relevant information.

7.3

The Council will keep all information supplied by applicants, secure and in accordance
with Data Protection legislation.

An individual must make a valid application to the Council in the prescribed form
and provide the all evidence and verification required
7.4

As mentioned in Section 4, a valid application must be made via the Council’s
website:

East Devon District Council/ Test & Trace Discretionary Payment Scheme/DRAFT2 06102020

page 85

10

www.eastdevon.gov.uk/coronavirus-covid-19/test-and-trace-support-payment/testtrace-support-payment/
All applicants will be required to provide details sufficient to identify themselves, their
address and to allow the Council to contact them including:
• Full name;
• Address;
• National Insurance Number;
• Date of birth;
• Telephone number; and
• Email address.
7.5

In addition to the above, all applicants will be required to submit a copy of their
current bank statement(s) in order to provide details of the bank account number and
sort code of the account into which a payment would be made.

That they are a resident within the Council’s area
7.6

The applicant will be required to confirm that they have their sole or main residence
in the Council’s area. The Council will check other records held (and make other
enquiries where appropriate) to determine this.

7.7

Evidence supplied in support of the application will be cross checked against the claim
address. Where necessary, the Council will ask the applicant to provide additional
evidence of residence.

Have been told to stay at home and self-isolate by NHS Test and Trace, either
because they have tested positive for coronavirus or have recently been in close
contact with someone who has tested positive
7.8

A key requirement of the scheme is that the applicant has been instructed by the NHS
Test and Trace to stay at home and self- isolate either because:
• they have tested positive for COVID-19 (coronavirus); or
• have recently been in close contact with someone who has tested positive.

7.9

All applicants will be required to provide the 8-digit unique ID number which has been
provided to them by NHS Test and Trace.

7.10

For information, the NHS Test and Trace service uses the Contact Tracing and Advice
Service (CTAS) to record information about people who have tested positive for
COVID-19 and their contacts. The CTAS Account ID is an 8-character identifier unique
to each case (e.g. 3b1a3015c). Most individuals who test positive for COVID-19 or are
a contact of someone who has had a positive test, will receive a digital invitation from
the CTAS system to undertake the contact tracing journey.

East Devon District Council/ Test & Trace Discretionary Payment Scheme/DRAFT2 06102020

page 86

11

7.11

All cases and contacts who have completed the contact tracing journey (including
those who were ineligible for the digital invitation such as children or individuals with
a landline number only) will receive a citizen advice message upon completion of the
NHS Test and Trace questionnaire. The citizen message (sent either via a text
message/email or postal service for people with no access to mobile phone or email)
contains the 8-character Account ID.

7.12

The Council will check that the applicant has a valid Account ID produced by the
Contact Tracing and Advice Service. Only this number will allow an application to be
processed.

7.13

The Council will not make payment to anyone who does not have a valid
notification (Account ID) from NHS Test and Trace. It should be noted that there is a
legal duty to self-isolate which only applies to people who have been told to selfisolate by NHS Test and Trace.

7.14

The Council will not accept a notification from the NHS Isolation Note service. Where
the applicant has provided this only, they will be given an opportunity to provide a
valid NHS Test and Trace notification if they have one.

7.15

This scheme does not cover people who are self-isolating after returning to the UK
from abroad, unless they have tested positive for COVID-19 (coronavirus) or have
been instructed to self-isolate by NHS Test and Trace.

All applicants must be currently employed or self-employed
7.16

Only those applicants who are currently employed or currently self-employed will be
entitled to claim a Test and Trace Support Payment. For the sake of clarity, this scheme
requires all applicants to provide sufficient evidence of their current employment or
self-employment status. In the case of employed applicants, full details of their
employer must be given on the application form including contact numbers.

7.17

The Council will also require applicants to provide proof such as listed below:

Employed
• Current wages or salary slips;
• Employment contract; or
• Letter from the employer confirming current employment.
Self Employed
• Self-assessment form;
• Details of HMRC registration as self-employed;
• Current accounts; or
• Current accounts and trading statements

East Devon District Council/ Test & Trace Discretionary Payment Scheme/DRAFT2 06102020

page 87

12

7.18

The above list is not exhaustive.

7.19

As this is an essential requirement in order for a Test and Trace Discretionary
Payment to be made, the applicant must satisfy the Council that they meet this
criterion.

Are NOT currently receiving any of the following benefits.
7.20

To receive a discretionary payment the applicant must not be in receipt of one of
the following benefits:
• Universal Credit;
• Working Tax Credit;
• income-related Employment and Support Allowance;
• income-based Jobseeker’s Allowance;
• Income Support;
• Housing Benefit; or
• Pension Credit.

7.21

Where applicants are in receipt of any of the above benefits, then payments can
ONLY be made through the Standard Scheme. The Council has designed the
application process so that the same form can used to claim either payment (Standard
Scheme or Discretionary Scheme) and applicants who fail to qualify for a Standard
Scheme payment because they are not in receipt of one of those benefits, will
automatically be directed to the Discretionary Scheme.

7.22

Where an applicant has yet to apply for one of the benefits listed; is awaiting a
decision on a benefit; is currently appealing a negative decision; or is unable to apply
for a qualifying benefit, they may make an application under this Discretionary
Scheme.

Are unable to work from home and will lose income as a result and will face
financial hardship as a result of not being able to work while they are self-isolating
7.23

All applicants will have to certify on the application form that they are:
• Unable to work from home;
• Will lose income as a result; and
• Will face financial hardship as a result of not being able to work while they are
self-isolating

7.24

The Council will need to be satisfied that any applicant meets these conditions in
full.

7.25

The Council will require applicants to give details about the nature of their work and
why they are unable to work from home.

East Devon District Council/ Test & Trace Discretionary Payment Scheme/DRAFT2 06102020

page 88

13

7.26

Applicants must be actually receiving one of the qualifying benefits. Each applicant
will be required to verify that they are in receipt of one of the benefits and provide
evidence of that to the Council if requested.

7.27

The Council will also require all applicants making an application for a discretionary
payment to provide evidence of financial hardship. All applicants will be required to
demonstrate that the financial hardship is solely due to having to self-isolate

Meet the Council’s additional criteria for discretionary payments
7.28

Given that the funding for the Discretionary Scheme is limited (see Section 14),
Government has stated that it will be up to each Council to determine additional
criteria that have to be met if a payment is to be made. The additional criteria are
shown below. They have been developed with other authorities within the County
and are designed to focus on those applicants who are not in receipt of a qualifying
benefit, on a low income, have relatively low capital, have had their income reduced
and are therefore facing financial hardship due to self-isolation.

7.29

The additional criteria are as follows:
(a) An applicant’s gross earnings are no greater than £372 per week. (This equates
to 40 hours x £9.30 of the Real Living Wage). This figure is before any deductions
for tax, national insurance, pension or other non-statutory items. This is the
amount that the applicant would normally earn prior to self-isolation.
Where an applicant has earnings above this level then they would not normally be
eligible unless there was an exceptional circumstance;
(b) An applicant must be required to work a minimum of 16 hours per week. Any
applicant normally working less than that would not be eligible;
(c) An applicant must not possess capital of £6,000 or more. Any applicant with
capital above that level would not be eligible. For the sake of clarity, capital will be
calculated in accordance with the rules for Housing Benefit;
(d) University students or those in further or other higher education are excluded
from applying for a discretionary grant;
(e) Individuals who have applied for a qualifying benefit but have not yet received
a decision or have appealed against a decision not to award a qualifying benefit
and are awaiting the outcome of the appeal will be eligible to claim provided they
meet all other criteria within this section;
(f) Applicants who are excluded from qualifying benefits by the “Persons from
Abroad” provisions within the welfare benefit schemes will be eligible to claim
provided they meet all other criteria within this section; and

East Devon District Council/ Test & Trace Discretionary Payment Scheme/DRAFT2 06102020

page 89

14

(g) In all cases applicants will need to demonstrate that they will suffer financial
hardship by having to self-isolate.
7.30

As mentioned earlier, the Council will allow multiple claims in respect of multiple
periods of self-isolation, as long as the periods do not overlap and where more than
one individual in a household meets the conditions, they will each be eligible apply for
a discretionary grant.

8. How much discretionary payment will be paid, methods of
payment and timings.
8.1

Where an applicant meets all of the eligibility criteria for a discretionary payment, a
single payment of £500 shall be paid for each period of self-isolation. Payments will
be made direct to the applicant’s bank account within 3 working days of an eligible
and complete claim being made.

8.2

Where further information or evidence is required from the applicant, the Council will
look to make payment within 3 working days starting with the date when all of the
required information is received.

8.3

Full details of the applicant’s bank account must be supplied on the application form
and this will be cross checked with the copies of the bank statements provided as part
of the verification process.

8.4

As required by Government, payments can only be made to the applicant’s bank
account. No payments can be made to third parties whatsoever.

8.5

The Council is aware that in some cases, applicants may be overdrawn and may not
be able to gain access to the payment. In these cases, the applicant may apply for
protection. This protection is called a 'first right of appropriation of funds order'.
More details of this can be obtained from the Council’s website
https://www.council.gov.uk/can-a-bank-take-my-payment-to-pay-my-overdraft/ or
from Citizens Advice.

9. Notification of Decisions
9.1

Applications for discretionary payments will be considered by officers of the Council
and all decisions made by the Council shall be notified to the applicant either in writing
or by email.

10. Implications for other benefits and reductions
10.1

The Council has been advised by the Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) that
all Test and Trace Support Payments (of any type) will be disregarded for the
purposes of all means-tested benefits.

East Devon District Council/ Test & Trace Discretionary Payment Scheme/DRAFT2 06102020

page 90

15

10.2

The Council has decided that any payment made under this scheme shall not affect
entitlement to Council Tax Reduction.

11. Review of Decisions
11.1

Whilst there is no statutory appeal process, the Council will operate an internal review
process and will accept an applicant’s request for an appeal of its decision by a senior
officer.

11.2

All such requests must be made in writing to the Council, within 3 days of the Council’s
decision, and should state the reasons why the applicant is aggrieved with the decision
of the Council. New information may be submitted at this stage to support the
applicant’s appeal. The application will be reconsidered as soon as practicable, and
the applicant informed in writing or by email of the decision.

12. Complaints
12.1

The Council’s ‘Complaints Procedure’ (available on the Council’s website) will be
applied in the event of any complaint received about this scheme.

13. The Test and Trace Discretionary Payments Scheme and its
relationship with the Standard Scheme
Standard Scheme
13.1

This ‘Standard Scheme’ has been determined by criteria set down by Government and
is primarily aimed at all applicants who are working or self-employed; are unable to
work from home and will therefore have a reduction in income and are in receipt of
certain qualifying benefits (Universal Credit; Working Tax Credit; Income-related
Employment and Support Allowance; income-based Jobseeker’s Allowance; Income
Support; Housing Benefit; or Pension Credit).

13.2

Being in receipt of one of those benefits is essential in order for a payment to be made.

13.3

Details of the Standard Scheme can be found at
www.eastdevon.gov.uk/coronavirus-covid-19/test-and-trace-support-payment/testtrace-support-payment/

Discretionary Scheme
13.3

The Council’s Test and Trace Discretionary Payments Scheme is for any individual who
meets all the required criteria, including the Council’s additional criteria, except that
they are not currently in receipt of a qualifying benefit and they would face financial
hardship due to self-isolation. The reason for this could be, for example, that a claim
for a benefit has not yet been made or that the individual, whilst normally resident in
the UK, is unable to gain access to public funds.

East Devon District Council/ Test & Trace Discretionary Payment Scheme/DRAFT2 06102020

page 91

16

Claiming from the schemes
13.4

Individuals who are entitled to a payment from the Standard Scheme are unable to
make a claim from the Council’s Discretionary Scheme.

13.5

However, an applicant who is refused a ‘Standard Scheme’ payment on the basis that
they meet all the criteria except that they are not in receipt of a qualifying benefit,
will be automatically directed to make an application for a discretionary payment. It
should be noted that in all cases, where an individual applies for a discretionary
payment, they will have to satisfy not only the basic criteria laid down by Government
but also the additional criteria set by the Council.

14. Funding of the Discretionary Scheme
14.1

The Council will receive a fixed amount of funding from Government which will be for
the four months that the Discretionary Scheme is intended to last. Government has
confirmed that no additional monies will be given to the Council.

14.2

In view of this, and to ensure that discretionary payments are available throughout
the period to 31st January 2021, the Council reserves the right to change the Test and
Trace Discretionary Payments Scheme at any time, or to limit the number of applicants
to ensure funds go to those who face the most financial hardship.

14.3

It should be noted that the total amounts awarded under the Discretionary Scheme
shall not exceed the level of Government funding

15. Taxation and provision of information to HMRC
15.1

The Council has been informed by Government that all payments under this scheme
are taxable. However, the payments will not be subject to National Insurance
contributions.

15.2

The Council does not accept any responsibility in relation to an applicant’s tax
liabilities and all applicants should make their own enquiries to establish any tax
position.

15.3

All applicants should note that the Council is required to inform Her Majesty’s
Revenue and Customs (HMRC) of all payments made to individuals.

16. Managing the risk of fraud
16.1

Neither the Council, nor Government will accept deliberate manipulation of the
scheme and fraud. Any applicant caught falsifying information to gain payments will
face prosecution and any payment issued will be recovered from them and this may
also include other recovery costs.

East Devon District Council/ Test & Trace Discretionary Payment Scheme/DRAFT2 06102020

page 92

17

16.2

Applicants should note that, where a Test and Trace Discretionary Payment is paid by
the Council, details of each individual applicant will be passed to Government.
Applicants should also note that the Council utilises a number of databases and
Government systems to verify information in connection with any application
submitted.

17. Recovery of amounts incorrectly paid
17.1

If it is established that any Test and Trace Discretionary Support Payment has been
made incorrectly due to misrepresentation or incorrect information provided to the
Council by an applicant or their representative(s), the Council will look to recover the
amount in full.

18. The Council’s duties in relation to self-isolation
18.1

The duty to self-isolate is an important one. Ensuring infected individuals and their
close contacts isolate is one of our most powerful tools for controlling transmission.

18.2

We know that someone with the virus can remain infectious to other people for up to
10 days after developing symptoms. It can take up to 14 days for individuals to develop
coronavirus symptoms after they catch the virus, and in this time, they can
unknowingly pass it on to others, even if they don’t have symptoms.

18.3

Self-isolating helps prevent family, friends and the community from contracting
coronavirus, as well as helping to protect the health and care system.

18.4

The changes announced by Government on 20th September 2020 and brought into
force on 28th September 2020 (as well as providing for the Test and Trace Support
Payments Schemes):
• introduce a new legal duty on individuals to self-isolate if someone tests positive
or is identified as a contact by NHS Test and Trace;
• introduce penalties for those breaking the rules, including fines of at least £1,000
and up to a maximum of £10,000 for repeated or very serious offences; and
• place a new legal obligation on employers that they must not knowingly enable
or encourage their employees to break the law on self-isolation.

18.5

As part of this, the Council has a duty if it becomes aware, either through postpayment verification checks or through other means, that someone has not selfisolated, to refer the case to the police.

18.6

The Council has been informed by Government that, in order to ensure compliance
with the new legislation NHS Test and Trace call handlers will be increasing contact
with those self-isolating. Police resources will be used to check compliance in highest
incidence areas and in high-risk groups, based on local intelligence including acting on
instances where third parties have identified others who have tested positive, but are
not self-isolating.

East Devon District Council/ Test & Trace Discretionary Payment Scheme/DRAFT2 06102020

page 93

18

18.7

The Council will continue to focus on the principle of encouraging, educating and
supporting self-compliance.

19. Delegated Powers
19.1

The Council has implemented this Discretionary Scheme in line with Government
requirements and guidance.

19.2

Officers of the Council will administer the scheme and the Section 151 Officer is
authorised by Cabinet to make technical scheme amendments to ensure it continues
to meet the criteria set by the Council and, in line with Central Government guidance.

20. Data Protection and use of data
20.1

All information and data provided by applicants shall be dealt with in accordance with
the Council’s Data Protection policy and Privacy Notices which are available on the
Council’s website.

East Devon District Council/ Test & Trace Discretionary Payment Scheme/DRAFT2 06102020

page 94

19

Agenda Item 11
Report to:

Cabinet

Date of Meeting:

30 September 2020

Public Document:

Yes

Exemption:

None

Review date for
release

None

Subject:

Member Champions

Purpose of report:

For members to consider the possibility of the reintroduction of a small
number of Member Champions.

Recommendation:

That Cabinet;
1. Consider the reintroduction of Member Champions following
the review by the Democracy and Transparency Portfolio
Holder.
2. If it is agreed that there should be Member Champions then
to recommend to Council that the Constitution be amended
as detailed in Appendix 2 and that the Member Champion
areas of interest and appointees be made as detailed in
paragraph 4.
3. Agree to receive a report following a further review the role of
Member Champions prior to the Annual Meeting of Council in
2021.

Reason for
recommendation:

So Cabinet can decide whether to reintroduce Member Champions and,
if so, to recommend changes to the Constitution to Council together with
positions and appointees.

Officer:

Henry Gordon Lennox, Strategic Lead (Governance and Licensing)

Portfolio Holder:

Portfolio Holder Democracy and Transparency

Financial
implications:

There are no financial implications arising.

Legal implications:

There are no legal implications requiring comment.

Equalities impact:

Low Impact

Climate change:

Low Impact

Risk:

Low Risk

Links to background
information:

Cllr Millar review paper

Link to Council Plan:
Outstanding Council and Council Services
page 95

Report in full
1. On 24th June 2020 the Council received a report in relation to its Governance arrangements
where the following was reported;
The new administration is of the view that the role of Lead Member needs review and is in an
event likely to be superseded by an effective Portfolio Team approach as well as the work of
the Governance Review Working Party. While there is likely to be interest in a small number of
members supporting the ongoing work of the Council in relation to relevant but discrete areas, it
is not appropriate to determine which ones they should be at this time and in light of the timely
need to reset our governance framework. It is accepted that should there be an urgent need to
reintroduce these roles in the short term, then this could happen with a properly considered
report to Council. The changes are therefore to remove Lead Member roles at this time.

2. The Council agreed with this and the Constitution was amended accordingly and no
appointments were made.
3. The Portfolio Holder for Democracy and Transparency has completed a review (which can
found in the background links) which advocates a small number of Member Champions
together with a rationale why. It should be noted that while the Council had called the
positions Lead Members, they have previously been referred to as Member Champions.
4. The recommendation from the review is that Cabinet recommend to Council that four new
Member Champions be created, and that Cllr Alan Dent be elected Armed Forces
Champion, Cllr Vicky Johns be appointed Sport & Exercise Champion, that Cllr Joe Whibley
be appointed Culture Champion and Cllr Tony Woodward be appointed Mental Health
Champion.
5. There has been discussion about whether these roles should be formalised through the
Constitution now, or whether they should be informal to start with and that changes to the
Constitution be proposed in May 2021 having reviewed the matter. On balance it is
considered that it is appropriate that they are formalised through inclusion in the
Constitution now, not least as it gives legitimacy to the role and sets clear expectations and
responsibilities.
6. The wording from the Constitution that was deleted in June 2020 is contained at Appendix
1. As can be seen it is quite laborious and so it is proposed that a more succinct form of
wording is used to effectively give a basic role description, who can hold the role and to set
the expectation in terms of responsibilities and reporting on activities. A proposed form of
wording for the Constitution is included in Appendix 2.
7. The Portfolio Holder is recommending reviewing the position (and remit of any champion
role established now if that is the decision) ahead of Annual Council, which is
understandable.
8. Looking forward, it might be worth considering whether Member Champions should be
subject to questions at Council to further increase the importance of the role and to ensure
that the members are accountable for their activities on an ongoing basis. However, this
issue can be picked up in the review prior to any further recommendations ahead of Annual
Council.

page 96

APPENDIX 1
WORDING DELETED FROM THE CONSTITUTION IN RELATION TO LEAD MEMBERS
In Article 6 (Cabinet)
Non-Cabinet Lead Members
A Non-Cabinet Lead Member does not have personal delegated powers to act on the Council’s
behalf on matters relating to the interest being lead on. The Lead Members will work closely
with the Council’s Cabinet and with the Overview and Scrutiny Committees and within the
Council’s Constitution.
In this overall context, the principal purpose of the Non-Cabinet Lead Member role is:
1. promoting the interest within the Council, having regard to the Council’s overall corporate
and service priorities,
2. taking a particular interest in the needs and wishes of any client groups relevant to the
interest being lead on,
3. ensuring that decision makers within the Council and externally are aware of issues and
opportunities related to the interest
4. contributing to the continuous improvement of services and functions relating to the interest
and be a catalyst for change,
5. ensuring good practice within the authority relating to the interest is shared and that
examples of good practice elsewhere are brought to the attention of Members and officers,
6. keeping up-to-date with all relevant matters connected with the interest,
7. working with national and local initiatives relevant to the interest,
The primary functional responsibilities are as follows:
8. engaging with relevant local and national bodies and communities of place, culture and
interest, promoting the interest, attending meetings as necessary, and relevant
conferences with the approval of the relevant Portfolio Holder or Leader,
9. monitoring the work programmes of the Cabinet and of the Overview and Scrutiny
Committees, working with lead Members proactively to advise, identify, challenge and
exert influence,
10. ensuring that all Members of the Council, in particular Cabinet Members, Overview and
Scrutiny Chairmen and the Council’s Officers are aware of the needs, issues and support
available relating to the interest,
11. seeking appropriate opportunities to promote the interest further with Members and
Officers through seminars, other awareness events and personal attendance at meetings,
12. to liaise with relevant partner bodies on matters relating to the interest and seek
opportunities to direct participation in issue consideration as appropriate,
13. working with a nominated lead Officer in prioritising actions as Lead Member, creating a
work plan that achieves a balance between helping to achieve corporate priorities and
delivering other priorities identified by the Lead Member,
14. pursuing such personal development and training opportunities to enable effective
performance in the role of a Non-Cabinet Lead Member and raise personal awareness of
issues relevant to the interest being lead on,
page 97

15. presenting an annual report to the Council, in liaison with the relevant Portfolio Holder, on
work achieved during the year and identifying priorities for the future.
Note:
A Cabinet Member may also be a Lead Member and in that case their primary responsibility is
for the effective performance of executive functions. The Cabinet Lead Member will keep the
interest in mind and will raise awareness of this interest and promote as appropriate when
executing his executive responsibilities.
[Table of Lead Member positions, holders and related portfolios contained in table after
Portfolio Holder list]
Part 5.5
Lead Member Protocol
1.

Lead Members have evolved in this Council to focus Member activity on certain aspects of the
Council’s business and functions.

2.

A Lead Member is an Elected Member appointed by the Council to provide a focus on a specific
area of the Council’s business or a community need to ensure it is given due regard in relation
to the activities of the Council and of its partners in local governance.

3.

A Lead Member can be an Executive (Cabinet) Member or, more commonly, a non-executive
Member.

4.

The Council at its annual meeting, or at other Council meetings during the year, will identify
the interests to be lead on and will appoint named Councillors to lead on one specific interest.
The Council will be entitled to make changes at its annual meeting but the expectation is for a
Lead Member to serve a minimum of two years to ensure some stability in the role.

5.

Within the context of the interest being lead on, and as part of their overall and individual
community leadership responsibilities:







A Lead Member will be expected to exert influence on those within the Council who make
executive decisions and on other Members of the Council in the context of full Council,
regulatory and overview and scrutiny functions.
A Lead Member will be expected to exert influence on relevant external partners and bodies
in their decision making and planning.
A Lead Member will act as a catalyst for change and improvement.
A Lead Member will work with others within the Council to maintain efficient, effective and
relevant services and policies.

6.

By appointing a Member as a Lead Member, the Council is empowering that Member to act in
that capacity. It follows, therefore, that the Council will put in place such arrangements as it
thinks appropriate to support the Lead Member in that capacity.

7.

The above role is set in the context of the specific interest or theme. The following parameters
apply to the role.


All Lead Members must act reasonably in the role.
page 98



8.

A Lead Member who is NOT an Executive Member:













9.

All Lead Members must recognise and work effectively within the political management and
executive working arrangements agreed by the Council.

is effectively given authority by the Council to take all reasonable actions judged by the
Member as being necessary to perform the role of Lead Member,
cannot commit the Council in any way that is contrary to established policy and practice,
but may confirm a Council position as stated in published policy,
cannot make decisions that bind the Council,
is not a recognised media contact on behalf of the Council, but is permitted to contribute to
media publicity with the prior agreement of the relevant Cabinet Member or Chairs of
Overview and Scrutiny,
is entitled to have access to information being held by the Council’s Officers relating to the
interest being lead on and access to a reasonable amount of Officer time to discuss that
information (although the Lead Member may not commit Officer time to such an extent that
other priority work required of Officers is prejudiced),
should agree, with the relevant Portfolio Holder/Leader, a programme of activity that can
be generally endorsed and which sets out clearly the areas of activity which the Lead
Member can be expected to be involved in and for which practical/administrative support
can be given,
the work programme must reflect the Council’s overall priorities.

A Lead Member who is a Member of the Executive (Cabinet) already has structured support
within the Council and certain legal responsibilities and functions to perform. An Executive
Member has the decision making powers delegated by the Leader’s Scheme of delegations
and to that extent may commit the Council as long as the overall policy framework and Portfolio
Holder decision making procedures are complied with and may act as a media spokesperson.

page 99

APPENDIX 2
Suggested wording to be inserted into the Constitution for Member Champions

Part 5.5 - Member Champion Protocol
Member Champions
Member Champions exist to provide a voice for traditionally underrepresented groups, or issues
which need to be kept at the forefront of council business although they may not be the
responsibility of any individual or committee and / or which may cross a number of different areas.
Member Champions are elected councillors (but not a Cabinet Member / Assistant Portfolio
Holder) who will seek to make sure that their area of interest is taken into account when Council
policy is being developed and decisions taken.
Council, on the advice of Cabinet, will decide on what areas of interest to have Member
Champions for and who the appointees shall be. Appointments will be made at Annual Council
and while changes can be made each year the expectation is that appointees will be appointed for
a minimum of 2 years to ensure continuity in the role.
Responsibilities
Within the context of the powers of the Council and having regard to the Council’s overall
corporate priorities, the Member Champion will:









Make sure that their area of interest is taken into account when the Council is developing
policy or making decisions and exert influence in that regard.
Act as a catalyst for change and improvement including working with national and local
initiatives relevant to their area.
Ask questions about performance and resourcing for their area.
Raise the profile of their area within, and outside, the Council.
Promote good practice within the Council and make the authority aware of good practice
from elsewhere.
Engage with, and exert influence on, external partners and bodies who work in the area
including sharing good practice where appropriate.
Engage with other members, officers and community groups who have an interest / stake in
the area.
Keep up-to-date with all relevant matters connected with the area and pursue relevant
personal development and training opportunities.

Mutual Expectations
The Council is empowering a Member Champion and therefore will put in place such arrangements
as it considers appropriate to support the Member Champion – this includes access to information
held by the Council relating to their area and access to a reasonable amount of Officer (provided
work priority of Officers is not prejudiced).
The Council expects Member Champions to act reasonably when carrying out their role and
recognise, and work effectively within, the political management and corporate working
arrangements of the Council.
A Member Champion cannot take decisions that bind the Council or commit the Council in a way
that is contrary to established policy or practice. Otherwise the Member Champion may take all
page 100

reasonable actions judged by the Member as being necessary to perform their role including
engaging with the media to confirm a Council position as stated in published policy or expressing a
personal view in their capacity as the Member Champion.
Reporting
Member Champions shall provide a written report to Annual Council on work achieved during the
year and identifying priorities for the future.

page 101

Agenda Item 12
Report to:

Cabinet

Date of Meeting:

30 September 2020

Public Document:

Yes

Exemption:

None

Review date for
release

None

Subject:

Member Champions

Purpose of report:

For members to consider the possibility of the reintroduction of a small
number of Member Champions.

Recommendation:

That Cabinet;
1. Consider the reintroduction of Member Champions following
the review by the Democracy and Transparency Portfolio
Holder.
2. If it is agreed that there should be Member Champions then
to recommend to Council that the Constitution be amended
as detailed in Appendix 2 and that the Member Champion
areas of interest and appointees be made as detailed in
paragraph 4.
3. Agree to receive a report following a further review the role of
Member Champions prior to the Annual Meeting of Council in
2021.

Reason for
recommendation:

So Cabinet can decide whether to reintroduce Member Champions and,
if so, to recommend changes to the Constitution to Council together with
positions and appointees.

Officer:

Henry Gordon Lennox, Strategic Lead (Governance and Licensing)

Portfolio Holder:

Portfolio Holder Democracy and Transparency

Financial
implications:

There are no financial implications arising.

Legal implications:

There are no legal implications requiring comment.

Equalities impact:

Low Impact

Climate change:

Low Impact

Risk:

Low Risk

Links to background
information:

Cllr Millar review paper

Link to Council Plan:
Outstanding Council and Council Services
page 102

Report in full
1. On 24th June 2020 the Council received a report in relation to its Governance arrangements
where the following was reported;
The new administration is of the view that the role of Lead Member needs review and is in an
event likely to be superseded by an effective Portfolio Team approach as well as the work of
the Governance Review Working Party. While there is likely to be interest in a small number of
members supporting the ongoing work of the Council in relation to relevant but discrete areas, it
is not appropriate to determine which ones they should be at this time and in light of the timely
need to reset our governance framework. It is accepted that should there be an urgent need to
reintroduce these roles in the short term, then this could happen with a properly considered
report to Council. The changes are therefore to remove Lead Member roles at this time.

2. The Council agreed with this and the Constitution was amended accordingly and no
appointments were made.
3. The Portfolio Holder for Democracy and Transparency has completed a review (which can
found in the background links) which advocates a small number of Member Champions
together with a rationale why. It should be noted that while the Council had called the
positions Lead Members, they have previously been referred to as Member Champions.
4. The recommendation from the review is that Cabinet recommend to Council that four new
Member Champions be created, and that Cllr Alan Dent be elected Armed Forces
Champion, Cllr Vicky Johns be appointed Sport & Exercise Champion, that Cllr Joe Whibley
be appointed Culture Champion and Cllr Tony Woodward be appointed Mental Health
Champion.
5. There has been discussion about whether these roles should be formalised through the
Constitution now, or whether they should be informal to start with and that changes to the
Constitution be proposed in May 2021 having reviewed the matter. On balance it is
considered that it is appropriate that they are formalised through inclusion in the
Constitution now, not least as it gives legitimacy to the role and sets clear expectations and
responsibilities.
6. The wording from the Constitution that was deleted in June 2020 is contained at Appendix
1. As can be seen it is quite laborious and so it is proposed that a more succinct form of
wording is used to effectively give a basic role description, who can hold the role and to set
the expectation in terms of responsibilities and reporting on activities. A proposed form of
wording for the Constitution is included in Appendix 2.
7. The Portfolio Holder is recommending reviewing the position (and remit of any champion
role established now if that is the decision) ahead of Annual Council, which is
understandable.
8. Looking forward, it might be worth considering whether Member Champions should be
subject to questions at Council to further increase the importance of the role and to ensure
that the members are accountable for their activities on an ongoing basis. However, this
issue can be picked up in the review prior to any further recommendations ahead of Annual
Council.

page 103

APPENDIX 1
WORDING DELETED FROM THE CONSTITUTION IN RELATION TO LEAD MEMBERS
In Article 6 (Cabinet)
Non-Cabinet Lead Members
A Non-Cabinet Lead Member does not have personal delegated powers to act on the Council’s
behalf on matters relating to the interest being lead on. The Lead Members will work closely
with the Council’s Cabinet and with the Overview and Scrutiny Committees and within the
Council’s Constitution.
In this overall context, the principal purpose of the Non-Cabinet Lead Member role is:
1. promoting the interest within the Council, having regard to the Council’s overall corporate
and service priorities,
2. taking a particular interest in the needs and wishes of any client groups relevant to the
interest being lead on,
3. ensuring that decision makers within the Council and externally are aware of issues and
opportunities related to the interest
4. contributing to the continuous improvement of services and functions relating to the interest
and be a catalyst for change,
5. ensuring good practice within the authority relating to the interest is shared and that
examples of good practice elsewhere are brought to the attention of Members and officers,
6. keeping up-to-date with all relevant matters connected with the interest,
7. working with national and local initiatives relevant to the interest,
The primary functional responsibilities are as follows:
8. engaging with relevant local and national bodies and communities of place, culture and
interest, promoting the interest, attending meetings as necessary, and relevant
conferences with the approval of the relevant Portfolio Holder or Leader,
9. monitoring the work programmes of the Cabinet and of the Overview and Scrutiny
Committees, working with lead Members proactively to advise, identify, challenge and
exert influence,
10. ensuring that all Members of the Council, in particular Cabinet Members, Overview and
Scrutiny Chairmen and the Council’s Officers are aware of the needs, issues and support
available relating to the interest,
11. seeking appropriate opportunities to promote the interest further with Members and
Officers through seminars, other awareness events and personal attendance at meetings,
12. to liaise with relevant partner bodies on matters relating to the interest and seek
opportunities to direct participation in issue consideration as appropriate,
13. working with a nominated lead Officer in prioritising actions as Lead Member, creating a
work plan that achieves a balance between helping to achieve corporate priorities and
delivering other priorities identified by the Lead Member,
14. pursuing such personal development and training opportunities to enable effective
performance in the role of a Non-Cabinet Lead Member and raise personal awareness of
issues relevant to the interest being lead on,
page 104

15. presenting an annual report to the Council, in liaison with the relevant Portfolio Holder, on
work achieved during the year and identifying priorities for the future.
Note:
A Cabinet Member may also be a Lead Member and in that case their primary responsibility is
for the effective performance of executive functions. The Cabinet Lead Member will keep the
interest in mind and will raise awareness of this interest and promote as appropriate when
executing his executive responsibilities.
[Table of Lead Member positions, holders and related portfolios contained in table after
Portfolio Holder list]
Part 5.5
Lead Member Protocol
1.

Lead Members have evolved in this Council to focus Member activity on certain aspects of the
Council’s business and functions.

2.

A Lead Member is an Elected Member appointed by the Council to provide a focus on a specific
area of the Council’s business or a community need to ensure it is given due regard in relation
to the activities of the Council and of its partners in local governance.

3.

A Lead Member can be an Executive (Cabinet) Member or, more commonly, a non-executive
Member.

4.

The Council at its annual meeting, or at other Council meetings during the year, will identify
the interests to be lead on and will appoint named Councillors to lead on one specific interest.
The Council will be entitled to make changes at its annual meeting but the expectation is for a
Lead Member to serve a minimum of two years to ensure some stability in the role.

5.

Within the context of the interest being lead on, and as part of their overall and individual
community leadership responsibilities:







A Lead Member will be expected to exert influence on those within the Council who make
executive decisions and on other Members of the Council in the context of full Council,
regulatory and overview and scrutiny functions.
A Lead Member will be expected to exert influence on relevant external partners and bodies
in their decision making and planning.
A Lead Member will act as a catalyst for change and improvement.
A Lead Member will work with others within the Council to maintain efficient, effective and
relevant services and policies.

6.

By appointing a Member as a Lead Member, the Council is empowering that Member to act in
that capacity. It follows, therefore, that the Council will put in place such arrangements as it
thinks appropriate to support the Lead Member in that capacity.

7.

The above role is set in the context of the specific interest or theme. The following parameters
apply to the role.


All Lead Members must act reasonably in the role.
page 105



8.

A Lead Member who is NOT an Executive Member:













9.

All Lead Members must recognise and work effectively within the political management and
executive working arrangements agreed by the Council.

is effectively given authority by the Council to take all reasonable actions judged by the
Member as being necessary to perform the role of Lead Member,
cannot commit the Council in any way that is contrary to established policy and practice,
but may confirm a Council position as stated in published policy,
cannot make decisions that bind the Council,
is not a recognised media contact on behalf of the Council, but is permitted to contribute to
media publicity with the prior agreement of the relevant Cabinet Member or Chairs of
Overview and Scrutiny,
is entitled to have access to information being held by the Council’s Officers relating to the
interest being lead on and access to a reasonable amount of Officer time to discuss that
information (although the Lead Member may not commit Officer time to such an extent that
other priority work required of Officers is prejudiced),
should agree, with the relevant Portfolio Holder/Leader, a programme of activity that can
be generally endorsed and which sets out clearly the areas of activity which the Lead
Member can be expected to be involved in and for which practical/administrative support
can be given,
the work programme must reflect the Council’s overall priorities.

A Lead Member who is a Member of the Executive (Cabinet) already has structured support
within the Council and certain legal responsibilities and functions to perform. An Executive
Member has the decision making powers delegated by the Leader’s Scheme of delegations
and to that extent may commit the Council as long as the overall policy framework and Portfolio
Holder decision making procedures are complied with and may act as a media spokesperson.

page 106

APPENDIX 2
Suggested wording to be inserted into the Constitution for Member Champions

Part 5.5 - Member Champion Protocol
Member Champions
Member Champions exist to provide a voice for traditionally underrepresented groups, or issues
which need to be kept at the forefront of council business although they may not be the
responsibility of any individual or committee and / or which may cross a number of different areas.
Member Champions are elected councillors (but not a Cabinet Member / Assistant Portfolio
Holder) who will seek to make sure that their area of interest is taken into account when Council
policy is being developed and decisions taken.
Council, on the advice of Cabinet, will decide on what areas of interest to have Member
Champions for and who the appointees shall be. Appointments will be made at Annual Council
and while changes can be made each year the expectation is that appointees will be appointed for
a minimum of 2 years to ensure continuity in the role.
Responsibilities
Within the context of the powers of the Council and having regard to the Council’s overall
corporate priorities, the Member Champion will:









Make sure that their area of interest is taken into account when the Council is developing
policy or making decisions and exert influence in that regard.
Act as a catalyst for change and improvement including working with national and local
initiatives relevant to their area.
Ask questions about performance and resourcing for their area.
Raise the profile of their area within, and outside, the Council.
Promote good practice within the Council and make the authority aware of good practice
from elsewhere.
Engage with, and exert influence on, external partners and bodies who work in the area
including sharing good practice where appropriate.
Engage with other members, officers and community groups who have an interest / stake in
the area.
Keep up-to-date with all relevant matters connected with the area and pursue relevant
personal development and training opportunities.

Mutual Expectations
The Council is empowering a Member Champion and therefore will put in place such arrangements
as it considers appropriate to support the Member Champion – this includes access to information
held by the Council relating to their area and access to a reasonable amount of Officer (provided
work priority of Officers is not prejudiced).
The Council expects Member Champions to act reasonably when carrying out their role and
recognise, and work effectively within, the political management and corporate working
arrangements of the Council.
A Member Champion cannot take decisions that bind the Council or commit the Council in a way
that is contrary to established policy or practice. Otherwise the Member Champion may take all
page 107

reasonable actions judged by the Member as being necessary to perform their role including
engaging with the media to confirm a Council position as stated in published policy or expressing a
personal view in their capacity as the Member Champion.
Reporting
Member Champions shall provide a written report to Annual Council on work achieved during the
year and identifying priorities for the future.

page 108

Agenda Item 13
Report to:

Cabinet

Date of Meeting 30 September 2020
Document classification: Part A Public Document
Exemption applied: None
Review date for release N/A
Updated Protocol for Members Advisory Panels on Planning Matters
Report summary:
The report seeks to review the protocol for Members Advisory Panels on planning matters to
ensure that the protocol is up to date and reflects good practice.
Recommendation:
That Members adopt the proposed protocol for Members Advisory Panels and that this be
published on the Council’s web-site and used as the basis for all future meetings.
Reason for recommendation:
To ensure that there is a clear and published protocol for Members Advisory Panel meetings.
Officer: Ed Freeman: Service Lead – Planning Strategy and Development Management
Portfolio(s) (check which apply):
☐ Climate Action
☐ Corporate Services and COVID-19 Response and Recovery
☒ Democracy and Transparency
☐ Economy and Assets
☐ Coast, Country and Environment
☐ Finance
☒ Strategic Planning
☐ Sustainable Homes and Communities
Financial implications:
There are no financial implications arising.
Legal implications:
It is within the purview of Cabinet to revise the protocol for Member Advisory Panels. Otherwise
there are no legal implications requiring comment.
Equalities impact: Low Impact
Climate change: Low Impact
Risk: Low Risk
Links to background information: Pre-application advice web-pages:
https://eastdevon.gov.uk/planning/planning-permission/pre-application-advice/#
page 109

Link to Council Plan:
Priorities (check which apply)
☐ Outstanding Place and Environment
☐ Outstanding Homes and Communities
☐ Outstanding Economic Growth, Productivity, and Prosperity
☒ Outstanding Council and Council Services

Background
In 2007 the Council introduced a process known as the Members Advisory Panel to give a
mechanism whereby Members could engage in pre-application discussions with developers
looking to submit a planning application. Prior to this time pre-application discussions had been
entirely between the developers and officers. The process was designed to give developers the
benefit of input from Members at an early stage of their proposals to inform their thinking and
minimise risk to them. From a Members perspective it gave them an opportunity to input into the
proposals and ensure key concerns were understood by the developer and could help to influence
the proposals at an early stage.
The process was founded on a basic protocol which sought to enable developers to make a
presentation to a group of relevant Members and officers then in return receive a written response
from the panel as a group detailing their views and comments. In this way the process ensured
that meaningful feedback could be provided to the developer without the views of any individual
Member being formally expressed such that it could be considered to prejudice their position when
considering any planning application that might follow.
The protocol was published as part of a schedule of charges for pre-application discussions. The
agreed protocol stated the following:
“The Council also offers a Members Advisory Panel for major applications. This is a group of
senior officers and Councillors and other interested parties who can listen to a presentation
from the agent and then through its officers respond in writing. The Council has a protocol for
dealing with requests from agents to put a proposal before the MAP. Officers can advise if a
particular scheme warrants a submission to the MAP.
The Member’s Planning Advisory Group is comprised of:The Chairman of the Development Management Committee.
The Chairman of a possible Policy sub-committee or Policy Champion.
Strategic Planning Portfolio Holder.
Environment Portfolio Holder.
Economy Portfolio Holder – as appropriate
Communities Portfolio Holder as appropriate.
Ward Members.
The system for running this group would be as follows:(i)

Developers to make presentation to Member’s Planning Advisory Group with Officers
present.
page 110

(ii)

Members to have previously acquainted themselves with the site in question
by a site visit with Officers.

(iii)

Members to ask questions of the Developers, seek clarification, test arguments
but not to give any form of view in support or against the proposals.

(iv)

Advice on the way forward or changes to be made to the proposal would be
provided by the Officers to the Developers in writing following advice from
Members in a debate once the developers have left the meeting.

(v)

Any Member of the Planning Advisory Group who has a personal or prejudicial
interesting the proposal should not form part of the group for that particular site.”

The above protocol has been in use since 2007 with numerous advisory panels having
been successfully convened with Members and developers alike providing feedback
suggesting that the process was useful.
National Context
The Governments National Planning Practice Guidance acknowledges the role of pre-application
discussions to improve the “…efficiency and effectiveness of the planning application system and
improve the quality of planning applications and their likelihood of success”. The guidance goes on
to state with regard to Member involvement in pre-application discussions:
“What involvement could the local planning authority’s elected members have at the preapplication stage?
Democratically elected members are strongly encouraged to participate at the pre-application
stage, where it is appropriate and beneficial for them to do so. Section 25 of the Localism Act 2011
confirms that elected members do not have a ‘closed mind’ just because they have historically
indicated a view on a matter relevant to the proposal. Further information on elected member
involvement in the decision-making process.
Paragraph: 007 Reference ID: 20-007-20140306”
A number of other Council’s operate similar panels under a variety of different names and
protocols. These all seek to give Members a format to input into pre-app discussions in
accordance with government guidance. It is therefore considered that Members Advisory Panels
continue to have an important role to play in the pre-application process. It is however important
that the protocol for such meetings is reviewed given the time that it has been in place without
review and mindful of concerns about issues of probity.
Reviewing the Protocol
It is proposed that the protocol be revised to achieve the following:





Have a clearly stated purpose for the panel so that all parties understand what is to be
achieved through a panel meeting.
That minutes are taken of each meeting in the same format as committee meeting minutes
to ensure that clear records are maintained.
To make it clear that as with all pre-application correspondence and records these will be
published in the event that an application for the same or similar form of development is
made on the site.
To update the relevant Members that would be expected to attend a panel meeting.
page 111



To provide clarity over the timing of any developer presentation to avoid overly long
presentations.

The revised protocol is proposed to read as follows:

Members Advisory Panels
Introduction
The Council operates a Members Advisory Panel (MAP) for major applications. The panel is
convened as required and is an opportunity for developers to present proposals to Members at
an early stage and gain initial feedback to gauge Members initial views on proposals to inform
their development. A panel meeting is charged as 1 meeting under the relevant pre-application
fee.
Purpose
To enable Members to input into emerging proposals at an early stage to inform the developers
thinking and the development of their proposals without prejudicing the views that they may
later choose to express in response to any future planning application for the development.
Membership of the Panel
A panel will be convened when a developer submits a proposal for pre-application discussion
with officers on a major development and those discussions have progressed to a stage where
the developer and officers agree that engaging Members in the discussion would help to
progress the matter.
Any meeting of the panel will be chaired by the Chairman of Planning Committee and will also
comprise of:








Portfolio Holder Strategic Planning
Portfolio Holder Coast, Country and Environment
Vice Chairman Strategic Planning Committee
Vice Chairman Planning Committee
Ward Members as appropriate to the site (inc. adjacent ward members as appropriate)
Other relevant portfolio holders and assistant portfolio holders (as appropriate)
Relevant officers from key consultees such as Devon County Council etc.
Relevant officers from other teams and services of EDDC

The Panel Meeting
Prior to the meeting Members should acquaint themselves with the site and it’s surroundings.
The panel, officers and developers to convene either in person at the Council’s offices or virtually
through zoom or similar as appropriate.
The meeting to then follow the format of:
1. Meeting to open with introductions and Members to declare any interests.
2. Developer makes a presentation to the Member’s Advisory Panel and Officers of no
more than 30 minutes.
3. Members to ask questions of the Developers, seek clarification, test arguments but not to
give any form of view in support or against the proposals.
4. Developers are asked to leave the meeting.
5. Officers advise Members of the key issues and policy considerations as they see it.
page 112

6.
7.
8.
9.

Members discuss the merits of the proposal
Members advise officers of the comments that they wish to feedback to the developer
Meeting is closed.
Officers draft a response to be sent on behalf of the panel to the developer and circulate
with the minutes for panel member’s comment.
10. Final minutes and letter is agreed by the Chairman.
11. Officers send panel response to the developer.
12. In the event an application is made for the same or similar proposal on the site from the
developer then all pre-application details including the panel minutes and letter are
published.
Administration
All meetings to be arranged and administered by the Planning Service.
All meetings to be minuted in the same format as committee meetings.
All virtual meetings to be recorded and saved.

page 113

Agenda Item 15
Report to:

Cabinet

Date of Meeting 30th September 2020
Document classification: Part A Public Document
Exemption applied: None
Review date for release N/A
THE ACQUISITION OF OCEAN BLUE, THE ESPLANADE, EXMOUTH, EX8 2AZ – PROCESS
FOLLOWED AND BUSINESS CASE FOR ACQUISITION
Report summary:
The Council completed on the purchase of Ocean Blue on 4 th March 2020, delivered in
accordance with the adopted Commercial Investment Framework.
The purpose of this report is to update Members on:
a) The process followed in accordance with the Commercial Investment Framework
b) The acquisition and business case behind this – bearing in mind that this is a public
document, some commercially sensitive information will be omitted

Recommendation:
To note the content of this report
Reason for recommendation:
To provide enhanced awareness of the detail behind this acquisition
Officer:
Tim Child, Service Lead – Place, Assets & Commercialisation
tchild@eastdevon.gov.uk 01395 571692
Portfolio(s) (check which apply):
☐ Climate Action
☐ Corporate Services and COVID-19 Response and Recovery
☐ Democracy and Transparency
☒ Economy and Assets
☐ Coast, Country and Environment
☐ Finance
☐ Strategic Planning
☐ Sustainable Homes and Communities
Financial implications:
As the report is simply to advise Members of the acquisition and process followed, there are no
financial implications requiring comment.
page 114

Legal implications:
As the report is simply to advise Members of the acquisition and process followed, there are no
legal implications requiring comment.
Equalities impact Low Impact
Climate change Low Impact
Risk: Low Risk; Due diligence sought to identify and mitigate risks before acquisition completed.
Financial modelling allowed for a cautious approach to future maintenance liabilities.

Links to background information
Commercial Investment Framework. Cabinet 06.02.19
Commercial Investment Scrutiny.06.02.2020
Marketing Details
Link to Council Plan:
Priorities (check which apply)
☒ Outstanding Place and Environment
☐ Outstanding Homes and Communities
☒ Outstanding Economic Growth, Productivity, and Prosperity
☒ Outstanding Council and Council Services

Report in full
The process followed in accordance with the adopted Commercial Investment Framework
1.1

This investment opportunity was marketed in summer 2018 and at a time prior to the
Commercial Investment Framework being adopted. The Council’s Senior Management
Team, Leader, and Portfolio Holders for Asset Management, Finance and Economy
supported an offer being made, subject to the usual due diligence and Council approvals.
Once the Commercial Investment Framework was adopted in February 2019, the Council
then followed the approach set out within.

1.2

Links within this report are to the following:
a) Cabinet report of 6th February 2019 together with attached Commercial Investment
Framework. Confidential appendix B is omitted.
b) Scrutiny report and presentation of 6th February 2020

1.3

The purpose of the Commercial Investment Framework is to provide the mechanism to help
deliver the £450,000 net income from property investment as accounted for within the
Council’s Transformation Strategy.

1.4

Prior to Cabinet in February 2019 the matter of commercial investment had been
considered by Overview Committee twice and the draft Framework had been presented to
Asset Management Forum twice.
page 115

1.5

External legal advice had been commissioned through Bevan Brittan to advise on the
Council’s powers to invest commercially along with the mechanism by which this should be
done.

1.6

The Framework incorporates a general introduction and background to commercial
investment, legal and regulatory powers, objectives, types of investment considered and
weighted scoring matrices for assessment of opportunities to ensure opportunities are
considered in a structured and objective manner by relating all opportunities to the
objectives set by Cabinet. The Framework also provided for new arrangement to ensure
agile but safe decision making.

1.7

The new Commercial Investment Governance Model adopted as per the Framework
provided for safe, accountable and democratic decisions to be taken in a more agile
manner. Investment opportunities are considered against the relevant scoring matrix and if
the necessary score and indicative return is achieved at this stage, the opportunity will be
progressed by a dedicated Investment Assessment Team, before Outline Business Case to
the Council’s Senior Management Team and Portfolio Holders for Asset Management,
Economy and Finance. If supported there would then be a Full Business Case with a
decision to invest by the Deputy Chief Executive (whilst in post) in consultation with Leader
and Portfolio Holders for Asset Management, Economy and Finance, jointly referred to
within the Framework as the Investment Decision Making Group. For commercial
investment opportunities exceeding the £5,000,000 limit then the Council’s normal decision
making route would apply.

1.8

Updates are provided through AMF (limited to non-commercially sensitive material)
although in an AMF on 9th January 2020 shortly before we completed on the investment in
Ocean we took forward a confidential agenda item on the Investment Framework.

1.9

On 6th February 2020 there was a report and presentation to Scrutiny around the process
for assessing commercial opportunities. This report contains a link to this earlier item.

1.10 The investment in Ocean Blue followed the approach and governance arrangements within
the adopted Investment Framework. In late 2019 there was a SWAP audit looking
specifically at the adopted Commercial Investment Framework and the process therefore
followed for Ocean and concluded in an assessment of reasonable assurance being given
with recommended actions given in respect of more formal minute taking of the Investment
Decision Making Group and sharing and recording of scoring for dismissed investment
opportunities, neither areas of particular concern.
Terms of Acquisition and Business Case for investment in Ocean Blue
2.1

Marketing details are included as a link to this report and provide a useful summary.

2.2

There was a Full Business Case presented to the Investment Decision Making Group
(Leader, Portfolio Holders for Asset Management, Finance and Economy) as per the
adopted Framework along with Chief Executive, Deputy Chief Executive, Strategic Lead –
Governance & Licensing and Strategic Lead - Finance. This document remains
commercially sensitive but a summary of the non-commercially sensitive and key elements
page 116

will be provided below. The Decision Making Group supported the Deputy Chief Executive
proceeding with the investment. There was a lengthy delay from this agreement through to
the acquisition due to protracted legal issues needing to be resolved and immediately prior
to exchange, Officers again sought the support of the Investment Decision Making Group
which was given.
2.3

Executive Summary
Opportunity – To purchase the head lease of Ocean Blue for £2,700,000. There is a sublease in existence for 25 years from 2015 to LED with a rent payable from June 2019 of
£200,000 per annum with a rent review in 2020 based on CPI and reviews thereafter every
5 years (subsequently determined at £217,417 per annum (plus VAT) effective from
11/06/2020). EDDC already own the land on which Ocean Blue is constructed and
therefore through purchase of the head lease the 2 interests are merged and EDDC is then
only restricted by the current lease with LED. Any other purchaser would be bound by
restrictions in the head lease, and therefore a purchase by EDDC provides the opportunity
with LED’s agreement to restructure the LED lease at some point in the future and generate
through marriage value a greater return. EDDC also own adjacent land and by purchase of
this building (through way of the head lease) and therefore having control working with LED
to vary uses, this generates wider opportunities to unlock potential of the wider area
encompassing Queens Drive, Harbour View Café and Ocean Blue into one ‘offering’. The
Business Case to invest was based on the income stream from LED but for the reasons
mentioned, other opportunities are open to EDDC that would not have been open to other
purchasers and hence the investment is worth more to EDDC than other purchasers.
Financial Performance –There is a forecast net income in year 1 of £79,000 which
represents a return of 2.79% increasing to £99,000 (est) and 3.47% in year 2. If a more
cautious approach is taken to EDDC maintenance liabilities then £49,000 representing
1.73% increasing to £68,000 (est) and 2.40% in year 2. These rates of return are after
borrowing costs and do not reflect possible enhancement in capital values.
Compliance with Commercial Investment Framework (CIF) – Achieves the necessary
scores within the weighted scoring matrices to be considered by both the Income Only Fund
(IOF) and Income Plus Fund (IPF) as per adopted Commercial Investment Framework.
That said, the year 1 financial return fails to score the 3% needed for the IOF and therefore
it was proposed that EDDC use the IPF but then flip this investment over to the IOF after
year 2 at which time it is anticipated the financial return will qualify.

2.4

Background
This investment opportunity was marketed in summer 2018 and at a time prior to the
Framework being adopted. The Council’s Senior Management Team, Leader and Portfolio
Holders for Asset Management, Finance and Economy supported an offer being made,
subject to the usual due diligence and Council approvals. An offer of £2.7m was made for
the acquisition of the long lease and eventually increased to £2.85m before being declined
by the vendor. The vendor then progressed the sale with a third party who we’re told
offered in excess of £3m. That sale fell through and in mid-December we placed a new
offer, again subject to contract, due diligence and approval, at £2.5m increasing this to
£2.7m which was then accepted with conditions that the vendor would top up rent to
£200,000 from date of acquisition to review date in lease along with completing any
outstanding external repairs, decoration and other obligations placed on the vendor within
page 117

the lease to LED. Prior to offers having been made the Council had already commissioned
LSH Property Consultants to advise on the attractiveness of this as an investment to both
a) the market, and b) EDDC as a ‘special purchaser’.
2.5

Investment Details – Property & Accommodation
Marketing details are attached, but to summarise:
 Modern three storey detached building constructed circa 2013 with an iconic design
incorporating feature curved roofs, wooden cladding, extensive glazing and roof terraces
to 2nd floor.
 Ground floor comprises 12 lane bowling alley, gaming area, restaurant and convenience
store.
 First floor incorporates soft play area with café and a coffee and restaurant, newly
refurbished with external terraces.
 Second floor provides a function suite with 2 terraces used for corporate hire, weddings
and other events.
Areas as follows and on a GIA basis:
Floor
Ground Floor
First Floor
Second Floor
TOTAL

Sq m
1,932.16
1,892.52
720.48
4,545.16

Sq ft
20,798
20,372
7,755
48,924

2.6 Investment Details - Tenure
The Council already owned the unencumbered freehold of the site (land).
There was a long leasehold agreement in place from the Council to Harlequinns Bowling &
Leisure Ltd dated 17th January 2013 as follows and it is this which was acquired. By
acquiring this leasehold then the Council merged its freehold and leasehold interests and in
effect (at least) this lease falls away. The Council now owns the land and building and is free
to do what it so wishes, subject to the terms of the LED lease along with planning restrictions.
The terms of the lease acquired is as follows:
 Term 125 years from 17 January 2013
 Use Multi –function leisure development pursuant to A1, A3, D1 & D2, bowling alley,
children’s play area, retail, café, restaurant
Restrictions - No public house, casino, arcade, nightclub, fun fair, dance club, bingo hall or
hot food takeaway. Bar sales on ground floor are restricted to only when bowling alley is
open. As for the 1st floor, any bar selling alcohol shall only be run in conjunction with and
ancillary to a restaurant and / or café and shall be closed when this restaurant / café is
closed.
* A Deed of Variation dated 10th June 2015 permits amusement machines
providing they are not for “betting or participation in a lottery”. This deed of
variation is only in place whilst LED are in occupation.
* No selling alcohol on the second floor (LED do in fact sell alcohol – and there are cash
registers at the second floor bar)
 Alienation – no restriction
 Right of pre-emption if Council sells land before 16th January 2034.
page 118

The entirety of the property is let on a single lease dated 10 June 2015 to LED Leisure
Management Limited.




▪
▪
▪
▪
▪
▪
▪
▪
▪
▪















Term - 25 years from 10 June 2015
Current Rent - £200,000 from year 5 (June 2019) increased to £217,417 from June 2020.
Other Rent - one peppercorn per annum (if demanded) for equipment.
Repairs & Maintenance –
LED responsible for interior of the Building so as to include:
the internal plaster, plasterboard and surface finishes of all walls
the whole of any internal, non-load bearing walls that are entirely within the Property
the floorboards or floor screed or other floor surfaces above the joists or other structural
floor supports supporting them
the ceiling plaster, plasterboard or other ceiling surface below the joists or other structural
ceiling supports supporting them
all Service Media that exclusively serves the Property
the rooftop condensers for the heating and cooling systems for the Building and the
pipework serving them
the CCTV system including those parts mounted on the exterior of the Building
the floor surface only of the balconies
the L’s Fixtures & Fittings
EDDC responsible for:
the main structure of the Building including the roof and roof structures, the roof system,
the foundations, the external walls and cladding, the internal load bearing walls, the
structural steelwork, the columns, beams, joists, the guttering and guttering system, the
structure of the balconies (including any balcony railings or walls) and the parapets and
mansafe system
all parts of the Building lying below the floor surfaces or above the ceilings of the Property
all of the external windows window frames and glazing in them the external doors and the
external door frames and glazing in them
all boundary walls, fences and railings of the Building
automated window and door systems
all Service Media (save for Service Media that exclusively serve the Property)
Note: Tenant also responsible for cleaning and clearing of guttering and downpipes along
with keeping glass in windows clean. Also for maintaining the bowling equipment (incl
shoes, balls etc) and play area equipment.
Service Charge – For sums incurred or to be incurred on maintenance and treatment of
cladding only up to maximum of £2,500 per annum increased annually in accordance with
RPI.
Use – As per headlease.
Break option - Tenant only Break in year 15 on giving not less than 6 months’ notice
(2030) – 10 years term certain remaining
Rent Review - Every five years in line with CPI, subject to cap and collar and with 1 st
review due June 2020, now implemented and agreed.
Insurance – Landlord insures but recovers cost from Tenant. Includes plate glass.
Alienation - Not to assign or charge part only, on the grant of underlease –not to assign,
sub-underlet or charge part only, assign or sub underlet of whole is permitted with
landlords consent. Underlease rent to be at market level in accordance with the rent
reviews.
LED have sublet circa 1500 sq ft to David and Lucy Calland (t/a Budgens) in
2016 for 10 years with a tenant only break in 2021. The rent is stepped across the 1st 5
years.

2.7

Acquisition Advice
page 119

Lambert Smith Hampton advised the Council and before offer was submitted, advised the
following:
 Value to market as an investment based on income from LED. Acknowledged that the
investment was worth an additional sum to the Council over and above other purchasers
on basis of Council’s marriage value and ability, unlike any other purchaser, to amend / lift
restrictions within the lease such as use and alienation clauses and by doing so increasing
rental value. There is also the marriage value from owning immediately adjacent sites.
These figure are not provided in this report due to commercial sensitivity.
 Rental value should Council own and LED vacate – By subdividing the building into parts
and relaxing the user covenants (which only the Council as purchaser can do) would
generate an enhanced value. Again, this figure is not provided in this report due to
commercial sensitivity.
The Council has advice on the value based on the LED income stream, the value should
LED vacate and the building be split into separate entities but for the same principal uses
and for the scenario should LED vacate and the uses at the building change. This advice
informed the Council in its decision to invest and on its purchase price.
There is also the added dimension of the Queens Drive space and Harbour View Café site.
In bringing forward the proposed new leisure scheme at Queens Drive the Council will need
to give consideration as to the extent to which any new offering will either compete or
complement existing businesses such as at Ocean Blue.
2.8

CIF Objectives
The Treasury Management Code and therefore also the Investment Framework prioritises,
in order of importance the following 3 criteria, all achieved through this investment:






Security – protecting the capital sums invested from loss –Enhanced in this instance
through marriage value by merging the Council’s existing freehold interest with the
leasehold interest.
Liquidity – ensuring the funds invested are available when needed i.e. asset could be
disposed – By merging of interests and marriage value created this opportunity
excels in this.
Yield – an acceptable rate of return from investment – Acceptable for Income Plus
Fund (IPF) from year 1.

Whilst at 1st sight this investment opportunity seems to most neatly sit within the Income
Only Fund (IOF)– purely to drive a commercial return, its proximity to the Council’s adjacent
land at Queens Drive and Harbour Road Café along with the ability by merging interests in
Ocean and lifting covenants to potentially achieve a more vibrant and dynamic mix within
and as part of a wider scheme incorporating Queens Drive space makes it possible to use
the Income Plus Fund (IPF). The investment opportunity was scored against both weighted
scoring matrices, agreed previously by Cabinet to inform the types of investment to pursue
and the tests and criteria for each were passed.
2.9

Agreed Due Diligence Post Offer

page 120

Building & Structural Survey - Commissioned through NPS Group and considered External
Envelope, Internal Envelope, Structural Report and Building Services Report. Identified no
areas of particular concern.
2.10

Relationship with LED
This investment is managed as a commercial investment with the sole objectives of
protecting the capital sum invested from loss, ensuring liquidity i.e. asset can be disposed
of if needed and ideally at an enhanced value and that there is an acceptable yield
generated from the investment. The fact that it is LED as tenant is irrelevant and in respect
of their occupation of this building, they will be treated in exactly the same way as any other
commercial tenant and with no preferential treatment given whatsoever. If LED default on
lease obligations then EDDC to take same enforcement / forfeiture actions as with any
investment.

page 121

Agenda Item 16
Report to:

Cabinet

Date of Meeting 07 October 2020
Document classification: Part A Public Document
Exemption applied: None
Review date for release N/A

Newton Poppleford & Harpford Neighbourhood Plan Examiner’s Report
Report summary:
The purpose of the report is to provide feedback and set out proposed changes following the
examination of the Newton Poppleford & Harpford Neighbourhood Plan. The independent
examination of the Plan has now concluded and the final Examiner’s report received. In accordance
with the relevant legislation, the District Council must now consider its response to the Examiner’s
recommendations and also satisfy itself that the Plan meets the necessary ‘basic conditions’. If the
recommendation to accept the Examiner’s recommendations in full is accepted, a decision notice
will be published accordingly. This will confirm that the Plan can go forward for public vote in a local
referendum as the penultimate stage in the plan-making process. An updated (Referendum
Version) of the Neighbourhood Plan will also be published. Due to the Covid-19 pandemic, the
referendum will be delayed until after May next year. However, the publishing of the decision notice
itself will give the Plan ‘significant weight’ in the determination of planning applications in the Newton
Poppleford & Harpford parish area.
Recommendation:
1. That Members endorse the Examiner’s recommendations on the Newton Poppleford
& Harpford Neighbourhood Plan (the Plan).
2. That Members agree that a ‘referendum version’ of the Plan (incorporating the
Examiner’s modifications) should proceed to referendum and a decision notice to
this effect be published.
3. That Members congratulate the Neighbourhood Plan Steering Group on their hard
work.

Reason for recommendation:
The legislation requires a decision notice to be produced at this stage in the process. The Plan is
the product of extensive local consultation and has been recommended to proceed to referendum
by the Examiner subject to modifications which are accepted by the Parish Council.
Officer: Angela King, Neighbourhood Planning Officer. Email: aking@eastdevon.gov.uk Phone:
(01395) 571740

page 122

Portfolio(s) (check which apply):
☒ Climate Action
☐ Corporate Services and COVID-19 Response and Recovery
☐ Democracy and Transparency
☒ Economy and Assets
☒ Coast, Country and Environment
☐ Finance
☒ Strategic Planning
☒ Sustainable Homes and Communities
Financial implications:
There are no material financial issues impacting upon the Council’s finances within the report.
Legal implications:
As the report identifies, it is a formal requirement for the Council to consider the Examiner’s
recommendations and satisfy itself that the proposed plan, as modified, meets the prescribed
‘Basic Conditions’. The purpose of the report is to satisfy this formal requirement. Assuming
Members agree the proposed recommendations then the Council is obliged to publish a notice to
this effect, pursuant to the applicable Regulations, and Recommendation 2 covers this aspect. The
report also identifies that the District Council is responsible for organising the referendum and
requires a resolution to progress this, at such time as the Council is permitted to arrange such
referendums under Government Covid 19 guidance. At this stage there are no other legal
observations arising.
Equalities impact Low Impact
Neighbourhood Planning is designed to be inclusive and extensive consultation is a fundamental
requirement. The Neighbourhood Plan has gone through wide consultation with the community
and has been advertised in a variety of formats to increase accessibility. All electors are invited to
vote in the referendum.
Climate change Low Impact
Risk: Low Risk; There is a risk that the Neighbourhood Plan could fail the examination if it is
considered to conflict with the Basic Conditions to which all plans must comply.
Links to background information The Localism Act; Plain English Guide to the Localism Act;
National Planning Policy Framework (2019); Neighbourhood Planning Regulations; ;
Neighbourhood Planning Roadmap Guide; East Devon Neighbourhood Planning webpages.
Link to Council Plan:
Priorities (check which apply)
☒ Outstanding Place and Environment
☒ Outstanding Homes and Communities
☒ Outstanding Economic Growth, Productivity, and Prosperity
☐ Outstanding Council and Council Services

Report in full
The Examination
1.1

The Newton Poppleford & Harpford Neighbourhood Plan has now been examined and,
subject to modifications, it has been recommended that it proceed to referendum. The
page 123

Examiner, Jill Kingaby, was selected by East Devon District Council in consultation with
Newton Poppleford & Harpford Parish Council.
1.2

The examination was undertaken on the basis of considering the written material which
forms the Plan, its appendices and accompanying statements as well as any
representations received in response to the formal consultations. The Examiner did not
consider it necessary to hold a public meeting. The Plan (as submitted for examination) and
the Examiner’s report are available to on our website.

1.3

The legislation, reflected in the Council’s Neighbourhood Planning Protocol, requires the
Policy Team to notify Members of the findings and recommendations of the Examiner and
how the Council proposes to respond to the recommendations. The agreed response will
then be published as a decision notice.

1.4

The Examiner has recommended twenty-two textual modifications to the Plan. These are
shown in Annex 1 in full as an extract from the Examiner’s report. The reasons for each of
the amendments is also explained in full in the Examiner’s report. The examiner concluded
that, “subject to the policy modifications set out in this report, the Plan meets the Basic
Conditions” and recommends that, “the Plan, once modified, proceeds to referendum on the
basis that it has met all the relevant legal requirements”.

Response to the Examiner’s Recommendations
1.5

Under paragraph 12 of the Town and Country Planning Act it is for the Local Planning
Authority (EDDC) to consider the recommendations made in the Examiner’s report and the
reasons for them and decide what action to take in response to each recommendation.

1.6

The District Council must also be satisfied that the Neighbourhood Plan:
i.

ii.
iii.

meets the necessary ‘Basic Conditions’ by;
 having regard to national policies and advice contained in guidance
issued by the Secretary of State;
 contributing to the achievement of sustainable development;
 being in general conformity with the strategic policies of the
Development Plan for the area;
 not breaching, and being compatible with European Union obligations
is compatible with the European Convention of Human Rights, and;
complies with the provisions under section 38A and 38B of the Planning And
Compulsory Purchase Act,

(or that the draft Neighbourhood Plan would do so if modifications were made to it, whether
or not recommended by the Examiner, before a referendum is held.)
1.7

The Neighbourhood Plan regulations go on to state that if
a) the Local Planning Authority propose to make a decision which differs from that
recommended by the Examiner, and
b) the reason for the difference is (wholly or partly) as a result of new evidence or a
new fact or a different view taken by the authority as to a particular fact, then,
the authority must notify prescribed persons of their proposed decision (and reason for it)
and invite representations.
page 124

1.8

The legislation, which is reflected in our protocol, requires the Council to consider and
respond to the Examiner’s report. Officer assessment is that with the incorporation of the
amendments suggested by the Examiner, the Council can be satisfied that the Plan meets
the legal requirements. There are not considered to be any grounds to reject the findings of
the report.

1.9

Members are therefore asked to agree to accept the recommendations of the Examiner’s
report and agree that a notice to this effect be published.

Next Steps
1.10

A revised version of the Plan (known as the ‘Referendum Version’), incorporating the
recommended changes, will be made available to view on the Newton Poppleford &
Harpford page of the East Devon District Council website, together with the Decision Notice.

1.11

The District Council will be responsible for arranging a referendum where all electors within
the Parish of Newton Poppleford & Harpford will be invited to vote on whether the
Neighbourhood Plan should be used to make planning decisions in the Parish. If more than
50% of those who vote say ‘yes’, the Neighbourhood Plan will be made and will form part of
the Development Plan for East Devon, where it will carry full weight in the planning decision
making process.

1.12

It should be noted that due to the Coronavirus Act 2020 and the Local Government and
Police and Crime Commissioner (Coronavirus) (Postponement of Elections and
Referendums) (England and Wales) Regulations 2020 made in response to the coronavirus
crisis, the referendum will not currently be able to take place until after 6 May 2021.
However, in recognition of the hard work undertaken in communities like Newton Poppleford
& Harpford to progress plans to such an advanced stage, updated Government guidance
has clarified that where the local planning authority has issued a decision statement
detailing its intention to send a neighbourhood plan to referendum, that plan can be given
significant weight as a material consideration in decision-making on planning applications.
If accepted, this will be the effect therefore of the recommendation of this report.

page 125

Annex 1: Examiner’s Proposed Modifications (recommended to be accepted in
full)

Proposed
Page no./
modification other
number (PM) reference

Modification
(Bold, italics = new text to be added to the wording)
(Strikethrough = text to be deleted)

PM1

Pages 6, 7
and 14

1.2 Local and neighbourhood planning policy
Second sentence: This is tThe adopted East Devon Local
Plan .....East Devon District Council (EDDC) and which
sets out policies .... independent Planning Inspector. In
addition, the East Devon Villages Plan was prepared
by EDDC and, following examination, found sound and
adopted on 26 July 2018. The Neighbourhood Plan adds
more local .....district-wide local plan and villages’ plan.
......
2 The Neighbourhood Plan Area
The Neighbourhood Plan area ....
The Built-up Area Boundary ....26 July 2018 when the
East Devon villages Local Plan was adopted. The
difficulties ....
East Devon Local Plan add a new sentence at the end:
The Villages Plan was adopted in July 2018 and the
BUAB for Newton Poppleford is shown on Map 1a in
Appendix 6 to this Plan.

PM2

Page 8 and
Appendix 6

New sentence at the end of 3.1:
Map 10 in Appendix 6 shows the location of the
principal community facilities and services.
New Map 10 – Newton Poppleford & Harpford NP –
Principal Facilities and Services.
New map should be added to Appendix 6.

PM3

Page 9, page
22 and
Appendix

3.3 Overview of the Parish
4th paragraph: The East Devon Way crosses the parish, as
shown on Map 4
in Appendix 6, and is a popular draw ...
3rd paragraph: This Parish lies in a valley ....from the East
Devon Way. Map 4 in Appendix 6 shows the extent of
the East Devon Way.
New map with revised Legend should be added to
Appendix 6.
page 126

Proposed
Page no./
modification other
number (PM) reference

Modification
(Bold, italics = new text to be added to the wording)
(Strikethrough = text to be deleted)

PM4

Pages 10 and
27

3.4 Facts and Figures
In the 2011 census ....recorded as 2095 in 930 928
households.....
7.3 Housing, Heritage and Design – Policy Overview
At the time of the 2011 census ....was 2095 in 978 928
households. ...

PM5

Page 16

Policy T1 – Adequate Parking
Developments must provide adequate off-road parking. eg.
This means that: ...

PM6

Pages 17 - 19

Policy T2 – Traffic Calming
Proposals for new development ...
a) be designed with road safety as will be a priority in
design terms, in particular ...
c) not lead to an increase in existing generate new HGV
movements ...
Developments of 10+ houses .... infrastructure will be
mitigated, and parish council sign it off, including a Travel
Plan .....
T2 – Policy Overview
Add a final sentence as follows:
When a Transport Statement or Assessment is
submitted and/or a Travel Plan put forward with a
development proposal, the Parish Council would wish
to be consulted on its content and delivery.

PM7

Pages 19 and
20

Policy T3 – Rights of Way
Development proposals....
The improvement and enhancement of existing public
rights of way (Public Footpaths, Pavements, Bridleways
and Cycleways footpaths and bridleways), the National
Cycleway and pavements will be supported.....
To enable safe walking and cycling, Rroads on new
developments must be sufficiently wide to allow two
vehicles to pass well-designed to allow convenient
vehicle access, movement and parking, without
mounting the pavements. In addition, developments of
10+ houses and employment sites must have roads
sufficiently wide to allow two vehicles to pass.
page 127

Proposed
Page no./
modification other
number (PM) reference

Modification
(Bold, italics = new text to be added to the wording)
(Strikethrough = text to be deleted)
Proposals to improve .....be supported.
A future Parish “Footpath and Cycling Strategy” will be
supported, subject to consultation and agreement....
T3 – Policy Overview
New opening sentences:
Devon County Council defines a public right of way as
follows: “A public right of way is a right by which the
public can pass along linear routes over land at all
times. Although the land may be owned by a private
individual, the public have a legal right across that
land on a specified route”. The Parish Council will
seek to work positively with landowners to ensure that
access for all users is encouraged where practically
possible.
Add at the bottom of Page 19:
Maps 3b – Parking & Problem Junctions and 3c – Lack
of Pavements and Crossings on A3052, in Appendix 6
illustrate these difficulties.
Some roads on recently built new housing
developments have been too narrow to allow two
vehicles to pass without mounting the pavement. This
creates risk for pedestrian safety and must be avoided
in the layout and design of future developments.
Modify last paragraph on Page 20:
Future Parish Walking and Cycling Strategy
As a result of these deficiencies .....


new footpath in front of the Toll House.

Improvements should allow for the maximum number
of different users and, wherever possible, should be
multi-use (walkers, cyclists and horse-riders), and take
into account the needs of disabled users.
Consultation with landowners and land managers will
be carried out at an early stage of planning and
discussion.
PM8

Page 20

Modify the appeal reference in the first paragraph on this
page:

page 128

Proposed
Page no./
modification other
number (PM) reference

Modification
(Bold, italics = new text to be added to the wording)
(Strikethrough = text to be deleted)
....appeal for new housing off at Down Close (appeal
reference APP/U1105/W/15/3032502 A/14/2229080
Appendix 8),
....

PM9

Pages 20 and
21

Policy EP1 – Conservation and enhancement of the
East Devon AONB and Natural Environment
Criterion f): not protrude above, or appear dominant when
viewed against, existing lines or groups of trees skylines
or significant lines or groups of large, mature trees.
Penultimate sentence: There is support for the RSPB to
take over Proposals to facilitate the RSPB taking over
management of the Old Quarry in Venn Ottery will be
supported, subject to compliance with other policies.
The creation of a new National Park which covers this
parish would be supported.

PM10

Pages 21,
page 22 and
Appendix 6

EP1 – Policy Overview
Add a new paragraph: The Landscapes Review by Julian
Glover reported to Government in 2019 and identified
two AONBS that were strong candidates to become
new National Parks. One of these was the combined
Dorset and East Devon AONB. At its special meeting
on 25 February 2020 EDDC agreed that further
investigation of the benefits and drawbacks of
becoming a new National Park should be pursued, with
all meetings open to the public. Residents have
indicated how much they wish to preserve the AONB,
and uniqueness of our area, and the aspiration of
National Park status would be to put more emphasis
on rural employment and local housing for families
who wish to remain in the area. The creation of a new
National Park which covers the parish would be
supported. The photographs and Map 9 in Appendix 6
show “Cherished Public Views” and illustrate the
beauty of the AONB within the Parish.
Appendix 6, modify Map 9 by changing the title to
Cherished Public Views; number the viewpoints on the
map and the photographs so that the locations can be
identified.

PM11

Page 23

Delete Policy EP2 and modify Policy EP4:
Policy EP42 – Flood Risk Assessment
page 129

Proposed
Page no./
modification other
number (PM) reference

Modification
(Bold, italics = new text to be added to the wording)
(Strikethrough = text to be deleted)
A sequential approach...
Residential developments within ... (over 1 hectare in size),
and or in areas identified as wet spots due to affected by
other sources of flooding (for example surface water
flooding), as identified at risk of flooding by the most
recent in the Strategic Flood Risk Assessment for the
area, or other more recent information, (from EDDC and
the relevant bodies with statutory responsibility for such
assessments), should be subject to a site-specific Flood
Risk Assessment that demonstrates that establishes
whether the development will be safe ......and where
possible will reduce flood risk overall whether it is
possible for flood risk overall to be reduced.
The findings of tThe Flood Risk Assessment will determine
be required to fully demonstrate that the Exception Test
can be satisfied. The Exception Test also ....the
community that outweigh the flood risk.
Policy EP3 – Minimiseing damage to existing
properties
The Environmental Protection policies should be
renumbered accordingly as a result of the deletion of EP4
(and the further, subsequent deletion of EP8 – see PM13
below).

PM12

Page 25

Policy EP7 – Local Amenity
Delete first sentence and substitute:
Development proposals that adversely impact on
residential amenity will not be supported.

PM13

Pages 25 and
26

Policy EP8 – Protect agricultural land
This policy should be deleted. The text on Page 26 under
EP8 – Policy Overview should be modified as set out below
and placed as part of the Overview to Policy EP9.
Planning permission will be refused for development
on the best and most versatile agricultural land,
meaning land in grades 1, 2 and 3a of the Agricultural
Land Classification, unless it involves development for
the purposes of agriculture and forestry. East Devon
Local Plan Strategy 6 and Policy EN13 will be applied
to safeguard the best and most versatile land. The
Parish of Newton Poppleford and Harpford is surrounded
by contains much agricultural land which gives it much of
its character .... make development permissible.
page 130

Proposed
Page no./
modification other
number (PM) reference

Modification
(Bold, italics = new text to be added to the wording)
(Strikethrough = text to be deleted)
Appendix 6, Map 7, shows the agricultural land
classification for the Parish. This map is based on the
provisional agricultural land classification data held by
Natural England. The NPPF Annex 2: Glossary defines
Best and most versatile agricultural land.

PM14

Pages 13 and
27

Objective 3. Make sure future development delivers the
demonstrable needs and requirements of parishioners the
Parish, in particular smaller affordable homes ....
Housing, Heritage and Design – Policy Overview
At the time of the 2011 census ..... 2095 in 978 928
households ....
Modify the 4th paragraph to read: Any new housing will be
required to meet the needs of the Parish. The Local
Housing Need to allow locals people with a local
connection to live or to continue living in the Parish ....
During the Community Survey, .....local connection.
However, as 67 houses have been authorised since the
2013, residents requirements have already been exceeded.
For all the above reasons, .....
If further housing is imposed on permitted within the
Parish then this should meet .....

PM15

Pages 28 and
29

Policy H1 – Meeting Demand for Smaller Dwellings
Residential development will be supported ....defined as 93
square metres* internal space (Gross Internal Area), and
have with no more ....
Policy H2 – Housing which caters for those with
mobility issues
Any development which ...
Strategy 36 must be adhered to. There is a need....
Housing with level access and complying with Local Plan
Strategy 36 which facilitates wheelchair access....
Modify reference to East Devon Local Plan – H2 at bottom
of the policy by adding a reference to Strategy 36.
Policy H3 – Housing Outside the Built-up area
boundary
Any residential development outside the BUAB:
a); b); ...outside the AONBs; c);
page 131

Proposed
Page no./
modification other
number (PM) reference

Modification
(Bold, italics = new text to be added to the wording)
(Strikethrough = text to be deleted)
d) must meet the needs of the Parish community taking
figures from Devon Home Choice or other choice-based
letting scheme as demonstrated by a Housing Needs
Survey.
Subject to the criteria above and the other policies of this
Plan, there is particular need in the Parish for proposals
that help meet the following particular needs will be
more favourably considered: ...
Guidance Note 1 – Affordable Housing
Modify the existing note by substituting the following:
The affordable housing element of a development,
comprising housing for sale or rent, for those whose
needs are not met by the market and which complies
with one or more of the NPPF categories:
a) Affordable housing for rent;
b) Starter homes;
c) Discounted market sales housing;
d) Other affordable routes to home ownership.
Affordable housing within this parish will additionally
be restricted to a person(s) who is in housing need
and is a resident of the parish of Newton Poppleford
and Harpford or has a local connection with the parish
because of family ties or a need to be near their
workplace, according to Local Plan Strategy 35.

PM16

Pages 30 and
31

Policy TD1 – Infill and garden developments and
extensions within the Built-up area boundary
Development on pPreviously developed land ....
Policy TD2 – Affordable homes to meet Local Need
through a Community Land Trust
In suitable locations ....permission may be granted for
Community Land Trusts may be supported to bring
forward .. up to 5 affordable and/or self-build dwellings ....
To assist in ensureing that these dwellings remain
relatively affordable ....

PM17

Pages 33

Policy HQD1 – Maintain the built character of our
parish through High Quality Design
Development within ...
page 132

Proposed
Page no./
modification other
number (PM) reference

Modification
(Bold, italics = new text to be added to the wording)
(Strikethrough = text to be deleted)
a) they are of high quality design, in line with the results of
the Housing Styles Consultation Survey requirements .. ..
g) services, such as power and telephone land lines,
should would be underground;...
l) they conserve or enhance heritage assets in the parish,
whether they are having regard for their status as
designated or non-designated assets and their settings ...
t) they provide adequate, well-designed off-road parking ....
garages.;.....
Remove second sentence in t) and create a new criterion
y) as follows:
y) Modern design will be supported or enhanced provided
the local character is respected or enhanced.....
Modify last sentence in the policy:
All major developments ...standard of design as defined by
reflecting the principles set out in BfL(12) (Building for
Life 12).

PM18

Page 42

Policy GS1 – Protection of Local Green Spaces
The following l Local g Green s Spaces / include local
amenity spaces identified by EDDC and have been are
designated .....
Modify the reference at the bottom of the policy to East
Devon Local Plan – EN1 (Land of Local Amenity
Importance), RC3 .......
Modify Map 5a in Appendix 6 to show the location of
LGS10. Shrubbery, Station Road, opposite Oak Tree
Villas.

PM19

Page 43

Policy TH1 – Trees and Hedgerows
Trees and hedgerows are valued ....
2. The natural woodland in the field above Down Close ......
3. b) where trees/hedgerows do not ....removal, they
should be replaced by an equal or greater .....

PM20

Page 47

Policy EM1 – Conversion from residential use
The change of use ...... to small business scale
employment-generating uses: including E(g)(i) B1a
(offices); and c, E(g)(ii) (Rresearch and Ddevelopment);
and E(g)(iii) (industrial process) will be supported,
page 133

Proposed
Page no./
modification other
number (PM) reference

Modification
(Bold, italics = new text to be added to the wording)
(Strikethrough = text to be deleted)
provided proposals ensure that they do not have a
significant adverse impact on the character and
appearance of the area and are not detrimental to the
amenity of neighbouring residents.
In addition, consideration should be given to additional
parking requirements due to the change of use. Anticipated
parking requirements and sufficient off-street parking
space should be identified within any change of use
application.
(*This modification includes an update to reflect The Town
and Country Planning (Use Classes) (Amendment)
(England) Regulations 2020 (SI 2020 No.757), which came
into effect on 1 September 2020.)

PM21

Page 48

Policy EM2 – Development of Small Business
Enterprises
Remove the last sentence of the policy and substitute:
Opportunities to secure the provision of new
employment locally will be supported, providing all
other criteria can be met.

PM22

Page 49

Policy EM3 – Superfast Connectivity
Modify second sentence to read:
Suitable ducting to accommodate FTTP broadband is a
construction requirement of should be provided in all new
development.

page 134

